BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui

MINUTES
April 26, 2005
Council Chamber
CONVENE:

9:06 a.m.

PRESENT:

Councilmember Dain P. Kane, Chair
Councilmember G. Riki Hokama, Vice-Chair
Councilmember Michelle Anderson, Member
Councilmember Robert Carroll, Member
Councilmember JoAnne Johnson, Member
Councilmember Danny A. Mateo, Member
Councilmember Michael J. Molina, Member
Councilmember Joseph Pontanilla, Member
Councilmember Charmaine Tavares, Member

STAFF:

Tamara R. Koller, Legislative Analyst
Richelle K. Kawasaki, Legislative Attorney
Shelly Espeleta, Legislative Analyst
Camille Sakamoto, Committee Secretary
Jock Yamaguchi, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Dain P. Kane
Morris Haole, Executive Assistant to Councilmember Robert Carroll

ADMIN.:

Sheri Morrison, Director, Office of the Mayor
Keith Regan, Director, Department of Management
David Taylor, First Assistant, Department of Management
Kalbert K. Young, Director, Department of Finance
Kyle Ginoza, Director, Department of Transportation
Traci Fujita Villarosa, First Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel
BrianT. Moto, Corporation Counsel, Department of the Corporation Counsel
Edward S. Kushi, Jr., Deputy Corporation Counsel, Department of the
Corporation Counsel
Wayne Y. Fujita, Deputy Director, Department of Finance
Ellen Pellisero, Public Information Officer, Office of the Mayor
David DeLeon, Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
Don Couch, Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
David Ching, Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
Robert Parsons, Executive Assistant, Office of the Mayor
Lynn Araki Regan, Coordinator, Office of Economic Development, Office of
the Mayor
Michael Souza, Acting Chief, Solid Waste Division, Department of Public
Works and Environmental Management

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

Jacob Verkerke, Information Systems Manager, Management Information
Systems Division, Department of Management

OTHERS:

John Blumer-Buell
Alan Arakawa, Mayor
Stuart Funke-D'Egnuff
Monnie Gay
Barry Gay
Douglas Levin
Jan Dapitan
DeGray Vanderbilt
Terry! Vencl, Maui Visitors Bureau
Sandy Baz, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Gladys Baisa, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Tom Blackburn Rodrigues, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Brian Klaschka, Maui Economic Opportunity, Inc.
Jocelyn Bouchard, The Maui Humane Society
Leslie Wilkins, Maui Economic Development Board
Daniel Grantham
Clyde Sakamoto, Maui Community College
Jeanne Skog, Maui Economic Development Board
Colleen Cluney
DeGray Vanderbilt
Additional attendees (5)

PRESS:

Akalcu: Maui Community Television, Inc.

Ilima Loomis, The Maui News
Amanda Cowan, The Maui News

ITEM N0.1:

FY 2006 BUDGET

(C.C. 04-287,

c.c. 05-19, and c.c. 05-63)

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. I'd like to call to order the Council's Budget and Finance
Committee Meeting for Tuesday, April 26, 2005. For the record, we have all Members
of the Committee present for today's discussions.
Members, we have several people that are signed up to testify. So, we'll go ahead and
jump right into that. If there's anybody here who has a cellphone or a pager, we ask that
you tum it to the off or to the silent mode, so that we can avoid any unnecessary
distractions to this meeting.
Those of you signed up to testify, we're going to provide you with a total of four minutes.
At three minutes, we're going to let you know of that time, and that will provide you with
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an additional minute to conclude your comments. Please make sure that when you come
to the podium that you state your name for the record. If you do represent an
organization we'd like to know that as well. And, again, it's very important that you, you
get your name in here, because we're on record.
Members, we're ready to go with public testimony. First, signed up to testify we have
Mr. John Blumer-Buell. He'll be followed by Mayor Alan Arakawa .

. . .BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Good morning, Councilmembers, my name is John Blumer-Buell, and
I came out from Hana this morning. I've distributed a number of documents, and I'm out
here today to, to ask you to exclude in your capital improvements for the water, except
for the back-up generator in Keanae.
It turns out that, you know, the controversy about the 12 inch pipeline was not really the
only part of it. We found out February 8th, from the Water Department that there is a
Master Plan for the Hana region. They've presented us with an eight part plan and
there's two other components being considered.

The community has had no input into this at all. They've completely bypassed the things
that were intended in the Community Plan. At the meetings, over a hundred of people
have attended two meetings and have opposed the 12 inch pipeline. The Mayor did stop
the work, and the intention then is to plan to go ahead with it at this point.
I look at the eight part plan. It's not a good plan. It excludes the community input from
the Community Plan and the, it's not a good plan geo ... , geologically. Now, we've had
people express concern, Earl Medeiros testified against the second well at Hamoa. Kim
Kanakaole testified against the Hamoa-Koali pipeline, and there's questions about
virtually every part of the system.
And I'm basically saying that these, the State, the County, and I think the Water
Department, I don't want to blame the Council or the Mayor at this point, but I think the
Water Department has not followed the State Hawaii Administrative Rules, Chapter 200,
on multiple or phased applicant or agency actions, which states a group of actions
proposed by an agency or applicant shall be treated as a single action, when it's part of
the larger component. I think you're familiar with that when it was brought up at the, as
part of the Kahului Airport.
So, I, I hope you'll take time to read this, because it's a very good example of how, how
there's been a complete breakdown and lack of communication between Government and
the community. And, you know, there's a lot of concerns, the, the, I respectfully
disagreed with the, one of the Mayor's two letters that came out. The, the Hana
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Community Plan and the Zoning do not protect the community in the way that the
community is comfortable with.
We, we have not dealt with the cultural overlay bill. We have not dealt with the interim
zoning issues. We've not done dealt with the kuleana land issues, and we have not dealt
with open space issues and cultural issues that are all important all over our area. I mean
if we, if we don't call a time out at this point then there's, there's a lot to be lost already.
I mean you think it's, it's, when, you've been in Hana for a while-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --the, I'll finish in a minute.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The, there, there's a lot being lost out there already. And then I, I've
heard part of the packet too, which I wasn't aware of until recently, is that the Hana
Ranch Partners did offer to sell the, the County its water system. And that would have
been a, a solution that could have potentially entered any conflict and would have been a
less expensive solution. But, you know, the community's still looking to sit down and
work things out. In the meantime, I am opposing anything that's in the Fiscal Year 2006
Budget for water, except for the back-up generator in Keanae. And I hope you'll take a
look at all this -MS. KOLLER: Four minutes.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: --okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell. Members, any questions? We have questions
for you, sir. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Chairman. Thank you for coming, John. I
appreciate your coming all the way from Hana to bring this to our attention. I do know
that there was an environmental assessment done for the current Hana-Hamoa waterline
improvements although it looks like the, the acceptance of this environmental assessment
was in April of 2003, and are you saying based on, on what you've presented here that it
was not presented to the community until February of this year, the, the water plan for
Hana?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The, the environmental assessment was published on the date you said,
but there's virtually no one in Hana that ever saw it, and the librarians don't think there
was a ever a copy at the Hana Library. Now, this just came to the community's attention
before you were, on the Council, and that was last November or December. The
community came out very strongly, and they, they wanted to only have the Council come
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to Hana for a meeting. And that was because, as you recall, there was a one and a half
million dollar budget amendment for the 12 inch Hamoa pipeline. And there was, you
know, there was a consensus of people who wanted the Council to come to Hana, and the
Council would not do it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: John.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Did the, did the Water Department or anybody from the
County come and meet with the community prior to this environmental assessment being
accepted? In other words was there any community input on the environmental
assessment for this waterline?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I don't think so, and I, I can't say, you know, I don't, but I don't think
there's any comments on the, this part of the EA, which is a good indication that nobody
was aware of. I'm aware of no public meetings regarding any of the eight components
and the two possible purchases from the Hana Ranch Partners.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the Water System Master Plan, I guess it's called, for
the Hana region there are at least eight components to it, and you're saying that based on
Chapter 343' s Administrative Rules that all of these components should be considered in
one environmental assessment and not segmented individually?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Absolutely. Absolutely, because it's not just, it, the community would
have a chance to examine each component and make suggestions regarding prioritizing in
your budgetary process. The Hana Community Plan is very specific regarding a domestic
water system for upper Nahiku and possibly Kipahulu, and yet there's nothing in here for
that. The people of Nahiku had something sent to the Mayor and the request for the
budget back in September of 2004. Now, well ahead of this whole process, and yet
there's not one mention of upper Nahiku.
So, it's very, I can say that there's people that don't agree with, with many of the specific
proposals, and I haven't talked with anybody from Keanae or Wailuanui. I was at the
hearings last time they had a well drilling, and it was very needed drilling. They, they,
the people down there didn't think it was fair to say don't trust the government when it
comes to water. So, anyway.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I have one more question, Mr. Chair. Are, are you
saying that, these water line improvements are supposed to apparently provide permanent
back-up source and upgrade fire protection for Hana. Are you saying that there's
currently sufficient fire protection in Hana and that these upgrades are not necessary for
that?
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MR. BLUMER-BUELL: The, we're talking about now for the fire protection the 12 inch line.
The record shows that there is already redundancy and, and the fire protection is up to
speed. And no one has, from the Water Department, George Tengan was at the last
meeting. I already made that same statement. Nobody has bothered to come forward
with any facts and discuss the fact that it's not up to speed.
If you read the material, my comments are in here.

I was so concerned about the
misinformation that some people are putting out there. I wrote a two page letter or three
page letter to Harry and Neal Hasegawa, because they seem to be held captive for their
new store permit, and everybody supports their new store permit, but they seem to be
held captive to this water situation. I wrote them a letter to clarify what the situation was
as the community knew it and suggested about five other options to help them out.
So, I hope you read the letter to Harry and Neal Hasegawa, because this is, nobody has
bothered to respond to the community's concerns and there's some, you know, when Earl
Medeiros ...

CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Okay. Sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, John, I think, you've helped us a lot with this.
I appreciate your coming.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Thanks everybody.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Mr. Blumer-Buell, we have another question for you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, John, you've itemized eight different aspects or
segments of the water improvements or waterline improvements for Hana. In our CIP,
we have the Hamoa-Koali waterline, we have the Hana Source Development, and Hamoa
Well 2. The Keanae Well back-up generator you want that to still continue; is that
correct?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Sure. I think that's reasonable.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: The Koali tank replacement and Nahiku water source
improvements in upper Keanae. So, like, in other words, there's six on our list out of
those, one's the Keanae Well back-up generator. So, it's just those items, even though
they don't correspond directly to your eight, because those may come in as components
of the others.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: Right.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Have you had a chance to take a look at the CIP Budget?
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: I'm looking at it right now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
suspend?

So, there's only five, I guess, that you're asking us to

MR. BLUMER-BUELL: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. I just wanted to be clear on that.
MR. BLUMER-BUELL: You know, and, and there may be a way that, that you can resolve the
conflict by carrying the money over to next year and giving the community a chance to
understand what's going on. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Blumer-Buell.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you for your testimony.
Mayor Alan Arakawa, and he'll be followed by Stuart Funke-D'Egnuff.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Good morning, Budget Chair, Finance Chair Kane, Members of the
Council. I'm here this morning to ask your support for the One Main Plaza acquisition.
Buying One Main Plaza makes sense. It will provide much needed office space and
parking for our County workers right away and into the future. It's a once in a lifetime
opportunity to buy a model commercial office building at an affordable price close to our
current location.
The concerns brought up by your discussions have been addressed, by the reports and
research we have conducted. We have provided the Committee with a worksheet that
addresses them specifically, and we have additional information if you need it for your
discussions ... (inaudible) ... put together.
We have talked to each and every one of you individually for the past year and a half
regarding the One, the purchase of One Main Plaza and ... (inaudible) ... suggested that
concept. In fact, Chair Hokama recommended this proposal to me, to my office in early
September 2004. Based on this perceived partnership, I directed my staff, who have
worked diligently for months to see this purchase go through. We've expended hundreds
of hours and tens of thousands of taxpayers dollars based on this perceived partnership.
The proposal to buy the old Wailuku Post Office and then constructing a new office
building in that location will be very expensive, two or three times more expensive than
buying
One
Main
Plaza
including
all
the
necessary
improvements,
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and ... (inaudible) ...details, in which I have explained the cost analysis of the proposal
for the old Wailuku Post Office. Spending 40 to 50 million taxpayer dollars to construct
new office buildings and parking structure would make it impossible to fund other major
projects throughout the County. Projects such as the new Kaunakakai Fire Station, the
new South Maui park complex, the new South Maui Police Station, the Haiku Fire
Station. Major renovations that are going to be needed in the Kapalua and Lahaina
Wastewater treatment plants will not be funded.
Our employees desperately need space now. We all know that we have been in violation
of the Fire Code for years, and that we've been cramming employees in closets. Think of
our employees, which are, are doing that. We ask them to be professionals, and they
cannot continue to function under such current conditions. We've waited too long to
address this problem, as a County we can wait no longer. The proposal to build new
office space is brought up to address immediate needs. It will take years to accomplish.
And the employees and the public will continue to suffer.
Purchasing available office space will. .. (inaudible) ... affordable solution addresses short
and long term needs. This is an issue that has long time ramifications. If we do not buy
One Main Plaza, the building will be sold to someone else ... (inaudible) ... the
community, multiple buyers waiting for this deal to fall through. The County will be
forced to continue leasing space here and there throughout Wailuku. County departments
will be fragmented with the loss of efficiency and, and poor public access. Buying One
Main Plaza makes sense. Let's not turn our backs and lose our employees and the public.
Let's not make this a political football at the expense of our employees and the public.
Our employees and the public need your support or your detailed solutions to address this
problem. We have here our Staff, and I have them available, because I know you're
going through a lot of deliberations. So, they're going to be available if you need to ask
questions.
MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: And I'll be up in my office if you need any assistance or you need to
call me. Thank you very much. I know that you're working through and trying to do the
best job you can. We're here to try and help as much as we possibly can. This is, after
all, a joint effort for the community. Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mayor. Members, any questions for the Mayor? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Mayor. Thank you for addressing some of the
issues that we have been speaking about in our deliberations. One of the questions that I
have is in regard to a comment that you made during your testimony about already being
in violation of Fire Codes. You know, because I'm not familiar with all the Fire Codes, I
am, I am concerned about, is it with regard to safety? Is it with regard to, we could
potentially be fined? I, I'm just not clear on that. If you could you expound.
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MAYOR ARAKAWA: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. For years now, our employees have been
working and they've been cramming into office space. The filing cabinets that are
supposed to be there and the work spaces are inadequate. We've got filing boxes and
we've got stuff stored all over the hallways. If you go and look at all of the different
departments and see how the employees are working. I mean, they have converted
closets into office space.
So, all of, all of this does not really meet the standard Fire Code. So, you know, just like
we're not legally ADA in this building. We have to make all these improvements.
That's one area that has been a major concern for us. So, we want to try and get our
employees into a safe working condition as soon as possible. This is something that, you
know, when I was on the Council, you know, we discussed this quite often many, many
times. So, you, you should go down and just take a look at it, we are in violation right
now in a lot of the offices.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, what would the potential ramifications be, because I'm
not familiar with, you know, the downside of being in violation of the Fire Codes? I, I'm
just not sure what would happen, or what should happen currently. So, what does the,
was the Fire Department informed ...
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Well, what should happen, Councilmember, is we should actually give
our employees a safe, adequate working space, just as we would require the rest of the
community. Somebody came in and wanted to run an operation, and we, we had to look
at the kind of conditions our employees working in right now. None of you would
approve it. I wouldn't approve it. That's why as, as an Administrator, I'm trying to
make sure that we can take care of our employees.
And, and, you know, again, I'd ask you just go down and look at the various departments
and how they're all cluttered in it. If we're trying to hire new employees to be able to
take care of the immediate needs of the departments, and where are we going to put them
all? You know, you can't create more office space, and it, it's just, it's just too crammed
already. We don't meet the regulations and requirements. We haven't for years. Let it
be common knowledge. We haven't been able to come up with the right solutions. This
is, this is a solution.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mayor Arakawa? The Chair has a
couple of questions, Mayor. In your opening remarks this morning, you cited a cost for
the Post Office building of 40 to $50 million, and I take note of approve for transmittal
document dated April 6, regarding the One Main Plaza justification analysis, and I
believe First Assisting Managing Director, Dave Taylor made a presentation to this body,
and here's the copy. And in this document the high up front cost regarding a comparison
to construct versus to buy, you folks cite 30 to $40 million, which is citing a ten million
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dollar difference between what was provided to us in writing less than three weeks ago
and what you're saying to us now. So, what is the right number? Is it 30 to 40 million as
you provided for us in writing, or is it 40 to 50 million, which you're saying to us this
morning?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Council Chair Kane, it really depends on what your final design is,
because we've got no details as to what your final design is. If you're buying the
building next door, we buy the Post Office, it's three stories right now; one basement and
two ... Literally, we would have to demolish the building, and then you're going to have
to figure out how much parking you're going to need for our employees, build that under,
and then try and build a structure for office space. The amount of office space that you
need depends on how high you're going to go in order to determine the cost you'll be
working with.
So, that's one of the reasons I ask in, in my statement today for details about what the
proposal is. And this is why our staff is ready and willing to help, because we don't
know what the proposal is, what you're going to do with the office area. Now, if we buy
it, you're going to demolish it. I have no engineering studies on the ... (inaudible) ...
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Mayor, and my question has been answered, because you, I'm just to
clarify the 30 to 40 that you provided in writing to us, and I'm sure you folks arrived at
that somehow with some sort of plan in your mind, and how you're citing 40 to $50
million. So, you've responded to the question.
The other question I have, Mayor, is that in that same handout there's a needs assessment
page that lists County Council, Council Services and the County Clerk totaling 10,000
out of the immediate additional space needed as of February 2005. The total space
needed there is 26,500 feet, and if you were to take out County Council, Council
Services, and the County Clerk that's an immediate need cited by your present, your
Administration's presentation that would be reduced down to 16,500 feet, which is
different from what you just told us of 30,000 feet that's immediately needed.
And the reason I ask this question is because I don't believe that this body has ever made,
had a formal discussion and made a decision on, on any type of expansion for the Council
Services Office, for the Coun ... , Council, County Council as well as for the County
Clerk. So, my question is, is it immediate needs for the Administration, or is it
immediate needs for all the bodies?
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Dave Taylor would be able to explain his study that he did,
but. .. (inaudible) ... comment on the construction part of it. Now, if you're looking at
office space, and we're also looking at the requirements, you're going to need pro ... ,
provide parking when you create new office space.
So, you're going to have to put into consideration a lot more square footage. We were
trying to put the parking lot to take care of the office space as well. So, when you look at
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a new building and the employee office space, look at what it's going to take to build the
support of the office space as well as we require all the businesses to look at. But Dave
can come down and he can explain the, the budget that he did a lot better than I can
because, quite frankly, Mr. Chair, I have assigned these to my Staff to be able to work on
it, and I'm not the engineer that has done those specifics; Dave has.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, instead of having Mr. Taylor come now, we'll provide that time
when we get into the, the detailed discussion on the One Main Plaza, Members. The
Chair can wait for that response at that time.
MAYORARAKAWA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for the Mayor? If not, Mayor Arakawa, thank you very
much for your testimony. We appreciate it.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: Okay. Thank you. And I'll be up in my office if you need to call upon
me.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mayor.
MAYOR ARAKAWA: And my Staff will be here.
CHAIR KANE: Members, next to testify we have Stewart Funke-D'Egnuff, and he'll be
followed by Mannie Gay.
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: Good morning, Members. Good morning, Chair. I am Stewart
Funke-D'Egnuff, and I am the Program Manager for Tri Isle Resource Conservation
Development. I'm speaking this morning on behalf of the Maui Cattleman's Association.
We are currently in the process of developing a grant.
The Council gave to the Maui Cattleman's Association $50,000 for the research and
development of an additional feed source for the cattle industry on Maui. The USDA and
the National Resource Conservation Service, we just awarded the Maui Cattleman's
Association an additional 40,000 to develop this feed source.
The feed sources are being required because the feed that used to be, access was through
the cane tops, the, the, the pineapple tops. And with the Maui Land & Pine switching
from one type of pineapple to the other one, in other words, we're going away from the
canned pineapple, which means that we're no longer going to have the pineapple tops
that are going to provide the source for, for feed for the cattle industry here on Maui.
The idea that had come up that we're going to develop a new source using a partnership
of HC&S and utilizing the cane tops when they're through cutting out in the fields. What
is to happen, what's going to happen is that they're going to need pieces of equipment to
follow-up on the HC&S equipment to bale and to transport the cane tops, and that will be
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taken to a silage area, and it will be mixed with molasses, and it will be mixed with what
few pineapple tops that we have to, to actually make a feed for, for the cattle, all cattle
on, on, on Maui. The excess feed, in terms of drought, would be the remainder of stuff
that is not silaged and made into a feed source.
So, what we're looking for right now is an additional $92,000 to assist the cattle industry
in the development, in the equipment, in the processing of this alternative feed source.
Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Funke-D-Egnuff. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Good morning.
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: What was the request again?
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: The request was for 92,000, and it was for, to support the 40,000
that the NRCS has awarded them, and then the additional 50,000 that has already been
awarded to them.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Stuart, with regard to the initial 50,000 that was allotted
for this particular project, was that also expended for equipment or just was it to do the
study itself?
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: No, what they found is it has not been expended yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: But we're in the process. They have done some research, and they
found from previous studies that the, the cane tops will work, it's just what nutritional
value they need to add to the cane tops to make them work. But it's primarily for
equipment and for the engineering of that equipment, because it has to be modified, and
also the nutritional studies that have to do with after the product is produced, and they do
some additional studies, what nutrients would be best for the cows.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: You're welcome.
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CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you have your request in writing, sir?
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: Yes, I believe 50,000 is in writing and has, would be submitted
within the next two or three days. On that budget there's a column for the 92,000. It has
not, we have not written up a second request for the second set of funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Hearing none, thank you very much for your testimony.
MR. FUNKE-D'EGNUFF: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Monnie Gay followed by Barry Gay.
MS. GAY: Good morning, Council Chair and Council members. It's a pleasure to see you. I'm
Monnie Gay. I'm here today representing the Maui Cattleman's Association. And as
Stuart mentioned to you, we do have a project that we started on last year for cane top
development. And in that you will have this budget submitted to you tomorrow.
Unfortunately, I forgot ... (change tape). .. and we do have the 50,000 that Tri Isle has
been kind enough to write the grant for, for the current fiscal year, and that is part of the
overall that we need for equipment, for the study, for the progression of the cane top
development. As pineapple tops do decline, as we no longer have them available to us,
and Maui Land & Pine changes their focus, we have to find alternate food sources.
I'm going to briefly give you a history on the cattle industry in the State. If you
remember, 25, 30 years ago we had a 30 million dollar income for the cattle industry. It's
dropped below ten. The cattlemen are trying to renew their growth in the State, and
especially on Maui. Maui cattlemen have vowed not to ship off their cattle. In order to
do that, we've got to find alternate feed sources. If we want the money to stay in the
State, we've got to help this particular industry.
I have written a letter on behalf of the cattlemen to Senator, I mean to Congressman Ed
Case, which also you'll receive tomorrow, outlining the proposed budget for the
cattlemen's industry. And in that, we're looking for 7,800,000. Only 1,500,000 is for
feed source and pasturing infrastructure. We might be able to keep our cattle here, but if
we don't find a source to irrigate the pastures it won't be of any use. So, irrigation,
finding another feed source instead of shipping it in is very serious issues for the cattle
industry at this time. Thank you very much for the opportunity to talk to you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Gay. Members, any questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman, could we have Ms. Gay leave her, her
budget or whatever, so that we can have Staff make copies, so, so we can get it today?
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CHAIR KANE: We already have it, and so we'll. ..
MS. GAY: We have nine copies that are available, and first. ..
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Ms. Gay.
MS. GAY: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms.-- Ms. Anderson, we've already got in five, excuse me, nine copies, and so
the Staff is going to do the necessary reproduction, because there needs to be more, so
that everybody including Staff and other people can get their copies.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand that. I just didn't want her to have to come
back tomorrow. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Monnie, thank you for coming. The, the problem as I
understand it right now is that there is existing feed source right now, but as the pineapple
goes out of production that that feed source will decrease. Is, you know, what is the
immediate plan, though, because obviously this study is not going to, you know, happen
overnight. What are you going to, or what is the cattle industry going to do in the interim
should the feed source decline more rapidly than you're able to actually bring this
particular project on line?
MS. GAY: That's already happening, by the way, Councilmember Johnson. The pineapple
industry has already changed their focus where you used to be able to buy and remove the
pineapple skins at $8 a ton. They have now increased that, and I don't want to give the
fee, because they're negotiating it. But it's much, much more, which is making it not
progressive for the cattle industry to use.
So, the pineapple skins are almost done today. And in doing that we are, luckily we've
had a rainy season, so we do have some pasture land available, but as we go back into
summer those grasses are going to dry up. So, we're looking now for alternative feed
sources. HC&S has agreed to partner with the cattle industry to see what they can do to
save those cane tops. It's not just the study we're looking at. The 92,000 that Stuart has
asked for is realistic in getting that equipment over here, getting the modifications,
getting the engineers to do whatever modifications we need to get that moving
immediately.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But there's no money in this particular request in the 92,000
for actually providing an interim supplement to provide for the shipment in, of additional
feed to keep the cattle going.
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MS. GAY: There is not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Do you have any idea what the amount of money would be if
we were to include that emergency measure?
MS. GAY: I do. In the feed source and pasturing infrastructure, you'll find it on the letter to
Congressman Ed Case, 1,500,000. And this is just addressing Maui's needs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and that request you have made of Congressman Case?
MS. GAY: Yes, we have.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MS. GAY: You're very welcome.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, Ms. Gay, thank
you.
MS. GAY: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Barry Gay followed by Douglas Levin.
MR. GAY: Good morning, Budget Chair Kane, Kane, and Members of the Maui County
Council. I am here this morning to speak in support of funding for the Molokai Kuhao
Business Center. For too long, Molokai has suffered from high unemployment. While
Maui enjoys an unemployment rate of around 3 percent, Molokai has a rate of around 11
percent. The people on Molokai have been trained and over trained for years for jobs that
are not there, because businesses are not there.
When I was running the Micro Enterprise Program at Maui Economic Opportunity, we
felt that we could help by providing entrepreneurial education and loans for small
businesses to get started on Molokai, and we did help. But it was clear that what is
needed is an office on Molokai, run by someone on Molokai that understands the
problems and solutions on Molokai.
Now, that I'm with the Hawaii Redevelopment Project, I see that what is needed has
come to life. Annette Pauole Hakowelo was hired by our RDP Molokai coordinator as a
business assistant facilitator to run the Kohala Business center. And Annette is producing
results that make me very excited; 62 percent participants have been helped, 58
businesses took business classes, 27 have started their own self-employed businesses, 11
have created additional business jobs, 11 have expanded their operations, and 20 have
secured start up capital. And those statistics are about a month old. The numbers now
are higher.
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And she isn't doing this alone. She's working with partners that support her and help
Molokai build business -- Partners like Tri Isle Resource Conservation and Development;
Molokai Chamber of Commerce; Maui Economic Opportunity; College of Tropical
Agriculture and Human Resources; CTAR, out of the University; Molokai Community
Service Council; Small Business Administration; and the Center for Entrepreneurial
Development of the Pacific, which is a non-profit that would be the financial vehicle that
accepts funding for the Center.
Annette is using these partners to educate businesses and future business people. For
capital to start small businesses and continue businesses, and to facilitate the creation of
more business on Molokai. She's trying to bring in projects that will employ the, the
residents of Molokai. She's also trying to find support so that there will be, this will be
the only time she needs help from the County of Maui.
I believe the Kohala Business Center is needed on Molokai, and the County Council
needs to see that it continues. I'm excited to see the success of the center, and how
Annette provides the personal attention that is needed. I ask you to provide funding in
the amount of $99,900 to operate the center for one year. Mahalo for your consideration
of this request.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Gay. Members, any questions for our testifier? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning, Mr. Gay.
MR. GAY: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I got, I got a couple of questions regarding, regarding the
request. I guess I'm referring to the, the operating expense sheet, and the 99,900 that
you're requesting, this is all, the request is for the County of Maui to provide $99,900.
Where is rural development's matching?
MR. GAY: Rural Development -- the Rural Development project is paying right now for
Annette's salary and some expenses. This was just a project on Molokai. It was written
into a grant over a year ago. We can help finance it for, into the Fall, but it was set there
to help support the Kohala Business Center. We were asked by, by MSC, MCSC for this
support, and we're providing it. It is, it's a program that we did, and we're continuing it.
We don't have it running past this Fall.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, this particular point, the request will be a continuous one
every year?
MR. GAY: I don't see it continuing after this year. I think, I've, I've seen Annette try to secure
funding from Tri-Isle, from other sources, and I think she'll be successful in securing
funding by the middle of next year to be sub ... , sustaining.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay, and, and can you tell me whether or not you're assisting
them in trying to get any Federal matching funds for this particular program?
MR. GAY: We are a Department of Labor, Workforce Development, an earmarked grant.
We're looking all the time for anything that will help anywhere anytime with Work Force
Development. We're trying to see if we can help them. We'll provide all the assist,
assistance we can.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And, and do you, do you have a number insofar as the total
amount of grants that this particular entity administers?
MR. GAY: Grants, Rule Development Project?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Well, they, this one on Molokai.
MR. GAY: This grant is, was approximately 50,000 for this program. It started last year some
time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. GAY: And that has only been there since late 2004. That's why these numbers that I
quoted I, I'm excited about it. We haven't seen these kind of results on Molokai before,
and, and that's why, you know-COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
MR. GAY: --how this can easily be ...
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah, I, I'm quite aware of this particular program. It's, it's
quite successful on Molokai. It has provided a lot for our community, in, in getting them,
getting that community interested in business, business development on Molokai. I'm
just kind of concerned at this particular point. One, you know, like, that this request is
just coming in now. Two, you know, the whole request is strictly, you know, asking the
County of Maui to support this particular program, and, and, and what was not identified
in the list of people who supported this particular program is the County of Maui that
provided $20,000 for the continuation of this particular program.
So, I'm quite aware of their, of their successes, and needs on Molokai, but I'm still
puzzled as to why it's only the County of Maui contributing, and, and, and, you know, I, I
don't get what rural development is doing to fight for the continuation of this particular
program.
MR. GAY: Our grants are written up over a year in advance. This program was put into a grant.
It was written probably two years ago. So, it is just coming, closing out the end of this
year. We're not a community non-profit. I'm sorry. I apologize for not getting these
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numbers here sooner. We did not plan on this. We had a teleconference with Malia
Akutagawa on Maui, on Molokai about three weeks ago, and we were talking about the
Kohala Business Center. And we all of a sudden had these results in front of us, and
we're talking about where can we go for money. And I thought, gee, the Maui County
Council would be, and should be someone to support an effort like this for the, for the
people of Molokai.
Bare bones, at that time estimate was around $72,000. And if that's what the Council can
provide that would be very helpful. But it is, it is, it is, just wasn't, we weren't planning
on doing this since last year.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. And your bare bones total, does it even
equate to the, your, your own personnel and fringe benefit total?
MR. GAY: Well, that's taking into account that we can help them into about the middle of the
Fall, another three or four months.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Well, I guess because-- because Annette is really doing
an incredible job with our people on Molokai, I'm just concerned still about the
dependency on, you know, primarily only County funds. And that's -- that still -- that
still bothers me. But your Director there, Malia, she, is, is there a dollar value of, of other
funds being generated to come into this Center, so it's not dependent totally on County
funds?
MR. GAY: I don't have that at that time.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay.
MR. GAY: You know, we'll obviously keep trying, bringing in additional funding. No one
likes to be totally dependent on the County of Maui for funding. If we can find additional
funding, we'll do it. And, and not, and not spend everything from the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Okay. Thank you, Mr. Gay. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Barry, my question has to do with the fact that Molokai
is an Enterprise Zone, and I'm curious, because I know that the Enterprise Zone money
has helped tremendously to, I, I, you know, assist in a lot of ways with things. So, why is
it that no Enterprise Zone financial aid is available for this particular project?
MR. GAY: The Kohala Business Center was originally housed in, in the Molokai Community
Service Council Building. We had provided funding. In previous years, it just did not
prove to provide results. We had people trying to do this job before that just did not
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provide the results, and I personally said we should not continue it. It didn't, it didn't
meet up to our expectations.
And then we, we had it into this grant, and Annette came along, and the thing takes off.
We got it moved out of the MCSC Headquarters. It's on its own. Kuhao, as you know,
means independent and unusual. And she is, and the whole center is. And the people
that she's got helping to support her, Maui Economic Opportunity is going over and
providing business classes. They're also providing loans to help with start-up. She's
getting start-up funding from Tri-Isle. All these other partners she's getting into the
program, getting onboard to make it a success.
And that's what I'm really excited about is that she's not just out there, you know,
helping, counseling by herself. Somebody this morning referred to her as the, the
business aunty, you know. Because I've been there and watched her talk to and counsel
people that have come in, and their business is now getting too big for Molokai, and she's
trying to help them expand. She just does it all. You know, she's a great person, and I
think she needs our support.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, if I understand you correctly, what you're telling me is
that originally because this was part of an Enterprise Zone funded project, which was
unsuccessful, now it's no longer eligible?
MR. GAY: I, I'm not on that side of the, of the table. I don't know what the Enterprise Zone
can do or help with. I'm talking about what we did, the Rural Development Project did
as far as funding.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Right. And, and so, I guess we would have to ask that of her
of what assistance is available through any of the programs under Enterprise Zone.
MR. GAY: Yes, rna' am.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions for Mr. Gay? Hearing none, thank you, sir, for your
testimony.
MR. GAY: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Douglas Levin followed by Jan Dapitan.
MR. LEVIN: Good morning, Council. I want to thank you for giving me this option to speak
with you today. Why I'm here? I'm here to speak in favor of the One Main Plaza
purchase. My name is Douglas Levin. I'm a certified public accountant. I actually have
a practice in One Main Plaza, which brings up the question of why I'm here today,
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because my wife is well aware that I really don't want you guys to buy it from a personal
point of view.
I like being in that office. It's been a very good office to me, and to my practice. And as

a businessperson, it's not really not in my best interest that you buy it. However, I'm
here today, because, primarily because of an article I saw in the paper a few days ago
regarding that, that you were considering not buying it. And I have, as a financial person,
I have an incredible difficulty understanding that decision. To me, and in my
descriptions to other people who I talked to about it, as I spoke with many of my clients
about it, because we, it was a subject of conversation all tax season, it seemed like just an
incredible bargain. Something that was impossible to turn down.
I mean I have clients who are selling their home, or actually had sold their home
immediately behind the building. It was a thousand square foot home. They got
$585,000 for it. That's $585 a square foot. They're selling you One Main Plaza, mind
you unimproved and with certain flaws that need to be corrected, for something in the
area of about $120 a square foot. That is such, I'm sorry, it's just, I can't put to words, I
have to be very careful in picking my words, because I'm just, I'm, I'm just a bit stunned
at the, the possibility of considering not buying it.

I know, understand, I do understand that the building has flaws. I had a client who, an
old, an elderly lady who went down the wrong stairwell in the parking lot and got lost for
a while. The parking structure is very confusing relative to the building. The handicap
stalls that they set up are, are poor, but having been in that building now for several years,
I can tell you that those things are correctable. You can break through P2 into the second
floor, and create immediate access there. You can put the handicap stalls there. You can
put the visitor parking there. You can create a pull in area in front of the building in the
area that is currently unoccupied on the, if you're looking at the front of the building on
the right hand side by the parking stall.
There is a tremendous opportunity with that building, and I just am here out of, I mean, I
just don't want, I'm sorry, forgive me. Sometimes I, I have a speech prepared, but then I
started talking, and I realized talking from my heart was probably a little bit better. I'm
just stunned. It is such a, a financially astute move, and not necessarily such a wise move
on A&B 's part to sell the building for that price, because I think if they spent a half
million to a million bucks on it, they could fill it. But the building has, traditionally went
on-MS. KOLLER: Three minutes.
MR. LEVIN: -- okay. Thank you very much. The building has traditionally been on sale,
A&B's a little frustrated with it, so they're getting rid of it. You guys can fill a third to
half of it right a way and, in fact, it might even be good for the community that you share
space with some of the businesses and other members of the community. This is a
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tremendous opportunity for the County. And I'm out of time, but I can't, again, but I
urge you to strongly consider it. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Levin. Members, any questions for our testifier? Mr., Mr.
Molina followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. Yeah, good morning, Mr. Levin.
MR. LEVIN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Now with your background you're a CPA, and I guess you
work with numbers all the time. From an accounting standpoint if you could just sort of
break it down in layman's term. Why, why is the purchase of One Main Plaza better than
the other consideration of the Wailuku Post Office, whether it's, you know, a possible
acquisition of land?
MR. LEVIN: I'm going to look at just some very basic issues. I, I'm not familiar with the
details. Whether the quote is $30 million or $50 million to buy that land and rebuild,
you're talking about a lag time of at least five to six years. You already have a very short
window. In addition to that, whatever you would build would probably not be salable
later. Even if you bought One Main Plaza as a hold over for a period of time, improved
it, and fixed it, and then, and then started construction on your post office, you could then
return around and sell One Main Plaza five or ten years from now, probably for quite a
profit.
It's not, see the building has some flaws and it needs to be filled, but it is financially such
a bargain. It's so hard to, it's just hard to turn down. I mean your construction costs for a
new building are probably going to run something in the area of four to $500 a square
foot, and you're going to have a time delay that leaves your County employees without a
place to reasonably and fairly work. I mean I've worked with some of the, of the County
employees here, you know, in my work with the business that I have, and I'm one of, on
one of the County Commissions, and I can tell you their, their working situation is, I hate
to use the word distrung, but it's, it's, it's kind of deplorable. It's really kind of sad the
kind of conditions that these people are being asked to work under. It hurts, it's got to
hurt your recruiting, and your morale, and, and your ability to retain and take care of
good people.
And so, when you, when you offer to them, and I'm sure they're excited about it now, the
opportunity to get out and grow and, and be able to provide the type of services by going
into the empty space in that building. I'm sure that that gets them excited and makes,
and, and helps them. And even if in the long run the building wasn't something you kept
forever, it's resalable. It's going to re ... , to do anything else. And, again, forgive me.
I'm not this focused. If I thought I was going to get questions I might have been better
prepared.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Thank you, Mr. Levin. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you. Could you share with us a little bit about your
community involvement?
MR. LEVIN: My community involvement?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh. Because you didn't state where you volunteer for.
MR. LEVIN: I serve on the Satellite Commission for the County of Maui.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, your interest in this is not just as an individual CPA out
there?
MR. LEVIN: No, honestly, if, if I was only here for my own career interest, I would hope that
you'd turn it down.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. LEVIN: Because I like the building, and I'm really not looking forward to having to find
new space in a few years.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Good morning, thank you for coming.
MR. LEVIN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You, you stated that a building cost for a new building
would run four to $500 a square foot. What do you base that on?
MR. LEVIN: I can't say that I have any practiced or professional knowledge in that area. I'm
not a contractor. I just read what I hear in the papers, and what I know about the current
building boom. I know that right now, I can't get an electrician to come out and fix some
things at my house, because they're all busy building homes on this Island. If you want
to build in the next four or five years, you're going to have to pay top dollar to attract
someone to come out here and build something. It's got to cost that kind of money, sadly
but true. Even if it's $300.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, we're trying to get facts not speculation.
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MR. LEVIN: I know. I totally understand. It would be, it would, I, I'm, I'm, I'm an accountant.
I understand numbers, but that's not an area of expertise for me, and I don't really want
to get into too much. I just, I'm just putting-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All right. Well I appreciate your answer. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions for Mr. Levin? Hearing none, thank you for
your testimony this morning.
MR. LEVIN: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Jan Dapitan, and if there's anybody else here in the Chamber that has not
signed up to testify now is your opportunity.
MS. DAPITAN: Hello, Chairman Kane and Members of the County Council. My name is Jan
Dapitan. You will be in deliberations in the next two days. I just wanted to use the
project, a project that is really close to my heart, it's the restoration and revitalization of
Old Maui High School. There are 23 acres of very beautiful prime County property that
can bring both the community sense and economic development to the areas of Maui
County by providing the kinds of. .. (inaudible) ... and experiences that remember
Hamakuapoko, and still that is of our former Representative Patsy Mink.
This project does need some attention now. It is by volunteers being cared for, and in a
sense we're trying to keep the lawn, the lawn moved and the debris from coming out of
the building, but it is a slow process with volunteer support only. And we would like
very much to have somewhere in the budget either as a part of the East Maui Park
system, which it is attached to, or within the Economic Development area, or within the
Office of Housing and Human Concerns where the task force is operating, or even in the
Community Work Day Program where we spend hours up, up there trying to keep it alive
and well and functioning, and moving forward.
$250,000 is appropriated from Congress, and that will allow us a wonderful start in the
clean-up. And I think the only missing link is the fact that it does need daily attention
and movement toward the restoration of the dinky building. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Dapitan. Members any questions? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you. Good morning Jan. You mentioned you got
support from Congress for $250,000, and I recall that a Task Force was put together and
was chaired by Housing Director Lee. What kind of support has the Administration
offered in regards to this project?
MS. DAPITAN: Well, there is, there is a monthly with the Housing and Human Concerns, and
they do bring in various departments, Parks and Public Works, Water, and the Housing
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Department. And so, they have been assumed various tasks to look at assessments and
come up with some figures on what it would take for infrastructure, for example.
Most of the work is being done through the Community Work Day Program, through a
right of entry. And the organization recruitment of volunteers is ongoing. There's a nonprofit organization that has already begun the work on restoration, and they're developing
grants through the Friends of Old Maui High School, with about 3,000 registered
membership now of mostly former students, alumni associations, and some of the historic
preservation people.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Has the topic of additional funding come up in your
conversations with the Administration?
MS. DAPITAN: It comes up in the meeting constantly, because of the need to reach labor and
inability to access MCCC right now. It's very difficult to schedule them on a regular
basis and, therefore, we are looking at the need to possibly counteract some basic labor,
trained labor. We wanted to work with other programs like the Best Program or other
programs looking. But we do need funding for those entrepreneur programs.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, and on that subject for programs like that, can you give
us an, a rough idea of what you would need?
MS. DAPITAN: I'm looking at about 50,000 for, for the personnel type thing and the rental of,
of the equipment and tools that they need. And then there's electricity and some of the
basic needs that are up there, and that were originally set up by the University of Hawaii.
And the University of Hawaii just left all systems in place, and we need to modify the
electrical system, for example, because it's extremely high, and because there are
transformers that cut on the ... (inaudible) ... and so forth, and that absorbs a lot of
electricity. So, we're looking at some of those system development. There's a need for
some one time funding to modify that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you for your work and the Maui High, the Old
Maui High School, is in a unique situation. The school was built by the State, but it sits
on County property.
MS. DAPITAN: That's right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, thank you very
much, Ms. Dapitan.
MS. DAPIT AN: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Please come forward, sir, if you can please. And we'll have you sign up as
soon as you complete your testimony.
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Chair Kane and Members of the Budget Committee. My
name is DeGray Vanderbilt. I'm resident of Molokai. I'm also a member of the
Molokai Planning Commission. I'm here today, I guess I could be speaking on behalf of
the Planning Commission, because we voted unanimously to support a, a planner for
Molokai. And you all did receive a letter from our Chairperson Lori Buchanan on April
14th, which hit some of the highlights of why a planner would be good on Molokai, and
possibly you have in the budget for Molokai a Planner V for six months at 22,000. And I
would urge that you consider keeping that in the budget, because I think this is one
situation, and the records can be kept where this money will be saved in other areas,
especially on the enforcement angle.
We were told when Mr. Foley was over at our last Planning Commission Meeting that the
job description of the Planner V could be changed to include several other jobs, which
would be very helpful to the Maui County Planning Department, and the enforcement,
and especially in the enforcement area. So, the Planner V could help with enforcement
situations. He could help get things straight at the start, because of knowing what's on
Molokai. So many times applications come in and, and people ... (change tape) . .. and
they got to be redone, at a lot of extra expense.
So, I think there's some tremendous efficiencies that'll be generated that'll bring this
money back, and it'll be a, a very small net cost if even a net cost at all. And so, I would
urge you to give Molokai a, a chance. We've got a chance to do things right as, as, as
Chairperson Buchanan says in her letter to you. We're at a crossroads, and this would be
a, a very good thing for Molokai. I think it would help the Planning Department, and we
thought it would be in the Mayor's Budget. The Planning Department requested it, but it
didn't make the Mayor's Budget, and I want to thank our representative from Molokai
and the Members of the Committee here for, for, for putting it in the budget, and
hopefully it'll, it'll make it through the next two days. And I thank you for your interest
in, in this issue.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt. Members, any questions? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you for being here. When we were on Molokai
for the public hearing on, on the meeting on the budget, your chairperson requested a
half-time planner during her testimony. And so, since that time of the testimony and your
meeting it went to a full-time planner, and could you expound a little bit about what
drove you to that recommendation? Because I actually, personally, I have a hard time
seeing a full-time person on Molokai.
MR. VANDERBILT: Well we, we thought of a full-time planner for the, I think when
Chairperson Buchanan talked to you, she was talking about not only a half-time planner,
but another position also if I, if I recall. But as far as a full-time planner, there's just a
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tremendous amount of things that, that could be done on Molokai, and especially in the,
the enforcement area, which is, we were told that on several enforcement situations the
Planning Department and Mr. Foley said that they just don't have the staff to enforce
anything on Molokai, and it's just caused a lot of inefficiencies.
So, I really believe that a full-time planner could help out, and I think originally it was
thought that the planner could also, when needed, help out on Lanai also. And so,
anyway, that's, it would allow us to, to really get things running efficiently on Molokai
and stop problems before they start.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Vanderbilt.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Good morning, DeGray.
MR. VANDERBILT: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: One of the problems that the Planning Department is having
here is their recruitment of planner positions, especially Planner V positions. On our
comm ... , in our community, can you comment on availability of individuals to, who
would be able to qualify for a Planner V position?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, I think Mr. Foley has a couple of resumes from residents on
Molokai. I know one, one planner, he was a top planner in either Denver or one of the
sub . . . , suburbs outside of Denver. And there's one other planner, somebody with
extensive planning experience that is also now living on Molokai. And the hope was that
these people could come on board, and then hopefully we could start training somebody,
a local person on Molokai, to, to take over after a few years. But we do have some
people on Molokai that have moved there and are living full-time that have extensive
planning experience in, in major metropolitan areas.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO:
Department?

And they've already touched basis with the Planning

MR. VANDERBILT: I know one has in particular, but at, at the meeting we were told there
were two.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing ... I'm sorry, Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. DeGray, thanks for being here.
Aside from planning and enforcement you said there's other jobs that this person could
do, and that Mr. Foley had said that they could change the job, job description to
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accommodate that. Can, do you have any other idea of what types of job responsibilities
could be handled with this position?
MR. VANDERBILT: Well, mainly, it was the, the enforcement situation, and, and also, just
following up with residents, we, we have on, I think we're the only Planning Commission
that has community input on our agenda. And people have been coming up, and it's
getting very popular now where you can speak on anything. It doesn't even have to be on
the agenda. It just has to be related to something you think might have to do with the
planning on Molokai.
And it started off slow, but it's been very successful now, and, and so, we're just helping
in, in following up on, on those things, and it would just, we've got a chance to plan
things right where we're moving into a Master Planning for Kaunakakai, and all this
Master Planning for the Ranch. We have a big workshop on land trusts in regard to
Molokai Ranch's 65,000 acres coming up Wednesday and Thursday with some people
from Washington, D.C. coming in, and I think a planner could be very instrumental in
coordinating this Master Plan and our Community Plan, and certainly with this General
Plan planning coming up, it's going to be very important to have somebody that knows
Molokai and can work with the community in this very extensive planning revision that's
going to be coming up in a few years.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much, DeGray.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none,
Mr. Vanderbilt, thank you very much. And if you can, please, sign the ... (inaudible) ...
MR. VANDERBILT: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have no further people signed up to testify. Without
objections, we're going to close testimony for today's meeting. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll go ahead and close that up, Members .

. . .END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
CHAIR KANE: Members, a couple of things before we get back to where we were yesterday
afternoon, and the Chair will be recognizing Member Johnson, who was the last person to
make a request on Page 10 of 29.
Members, today is April 26, it's about 10:15. We have until tomorrow night to
completely finish our work in order to meet requirements that are given to us to complete
this budgetary process with the calendar that has been set forth. Therefore, Members, the
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Chair will be very blunt in stating that I'm, I am asking you to not get into extensive
discussion points at this point in time.
We're here to make decisions in a deliberative process, and I'll ask that we can save the
actual back and forths for the final round when we vote yes or no on issues, and majority
will rule when we get to that point. And you'll have extensive time during first and
second readings to provide your comments on the outcome of our proposed budget.
So, again, Members, the Chair will try to be as accommodating as possible, however, at
times there, the Chair may seem to be abrupt in asking you to stay on point and, and
move forward. So, Members, I just want to set the parameters for where we're going.
The clock's ticking and this body informed the Chair that they did not want to do
midnight runs, and we're fastly approaching that type of scenario.
With that, Members, I know we have people here that want to get into the One Main
Plaza discussion, however, the Chair's intention is to finish up where we were, leaving
off with the Mayor's Office, and then I think it will be appropriate for us to stop there and
get right into One Main Plaza, and let's make some headway there. And before I open it
up, just as a matter of housecleaning or, or clarification, any Members have anything to
say at this point in time?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just for clarification. We want to finish up the Mayor's
Office on Economic Development, and then, so we'll put off going to the next
department until after we have the discussion on One Main Plaza?
CHAIR KANE: That is the Chair's preference-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: -- if, if the body has no objections to that, the Chair would like to proceed in
that manner.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Member Johnson, with respects to additional requests for
grants and disbursements.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair, most of my other items have been addressed.
I'm going to take No.6 on my sheet before No.4. No.6, it's under, in our budget details,
part of Economic Development Grant. There had been a line item in the past. I, I, I
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would ask that we reinstate this particular category. It's called cultural, well, I'm going
to call it cultural preservation projects to differentiate it between culture and the arts.
You heard testimony this morning, and I think a perfect example of a preservation project
would be something that Ms. Dapitan had been speaking about. Culture in the arts is
more closely, I guess, aligned with events. There are things that come up, like, you
know, the hula conference, or there are things that come up that may have to do with an
art program, or some type of sponsorship. One of the reasons why I think cultural
preservation, and this category was not utilized in the past, was because people were just
really not aware of it, and I think that what I would like to see, whether in, I didn't put a
dollar amount down, because I would like to see something put in this area.
If the Members don't want to restore it to what it was originally, which was $100,000
then I ask respectfully that some amount of money be put in to at least enable this
category to be utilized for those individuals in the community that are actually doing
preservation projects. I think a caveat could also be added that stipulates that any nonprofit, and I envision mostly, you know, non-profit entities going for this type of grant, it
would be looked at as a one time thing. It's not something that would then turn into an
annual, you know, line item.

So, I would respectfully ask for the restoration of this category under Economic
Development Grants, and I would like it entitled Cultural Preservation Projects, with a
possible proviso as I stipulated. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we don't have a dollar amount, and so the Chair will
ask, Members, are there any objections to reinstating this category, if you will, and that
dollar amount is something that can be discussed either now or move it forward. But are
there any objections to putting, including this as a revived category for consideration?
Any objections there?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would like to see the name, I have no objections, but I
would like to see the name, rather than just cultural preservation, I would like to see it
called historic/cultural preservation, because we need, we need to focus on the, the
necessity of preserving our historic sites, rather than just inventorying them, and building
all around them, and forgetting them.
So, I support Ms. Johnson's request, and, but I would like to see it extended to
historic/cultural preservation, so it can be used in that manner.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair's going to ask that we first act on Member
Johnson's request, and then if there's no objections to that, then we'll ask to, add, and if
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there's any objections to Member Anderson's request. Members, any objections to Ms.
Johnson's request to have this revisited with a category? Any objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object. Object.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. There's an objection. Members, it will not move forward at this point in
time. It will be brought back at a later point in this discussion. Members? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, my last category is one, and this is in regard to my Item
No.4, and I'll just read what I've got.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm asking that we add a new category under Economic
Development, and this was related to our Budget detail Page 10-10, to include Work
Force Incubator Projects. These would be one time grants for new pilot projects, or for
projects that have not previously been funded by Economic Development. But that will
allow programs to expand services, or to diversify employment opportunities in
developing work arenas.
And I would also request this first time that the following proviso be added to this
category as follows: provide that a minimum of $20,000 each is provided to the Maui
Long Term Care Partnership Caregiver Pilot Project and Hale O'Lanakila Transportation
needs. Again, I did not put a dollar amount on this, because this is a new grant area.
One of the things that I, you know, and as your representative, for Council on Aging, and
also in another capacity where I serve as Co-Chair for the Long Term Care Policy and
Advocacy Committee. One of the problems that we're having is under Housing and
Human Concerns, Title 3E monies, are very specific to ongoing projects, or funding
particular expansion of certain services. What they don't often provide for, and what
often is not done under Housing and Human Concerns, is the focus is not put on the
economic aspect of job creation in these developing areas.
We are facing a work force crisis that is not adequately being targeted, and as a policy
statement on behalf of this Council, and I realize that this is something that perhaps
people think of being more located in Human Concerns. But as a policy statement, I
believe that this Council, where it sees a gap or where it sees an opportunity to expand in
areas that have not previously received what I believe proper attention. We need to make
a policy statement. And I would, personally, whether it's titled what I have entitled it or
something else, I would really like to see these, and in particular these two projects move
forward.
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The Maui Long Term Care Partnership Caregiver Pilot Project is a project that would be
able with a $20,000 grant, and this would probably be to the Hale Makua, who is the
recipient of the Robert Wood Johnson Foundation grant money, under which the
partnership operates, this money would be able to be included as matching, and I have no
problem with stipulating that amount that it be utilized as matching, but I would really
like to give an opportunity to this entity to be able to go and seek additional funds in this
area.
The other project, which is Hale O'Lanakila, they provide work force development for
people with mental and physical handicaps, but their challenge has always been that they
do not have a reliable source of transportation. This would specifically provide
transportation in the form of a grant to buy a van. And, again, if there's additional money
that would be needed to match this, I think these are really areas that we have, as a
Council, an opportunity to get into.
As we try to diversify our economic base I'm looking at this, and I know I've gone on,
but because this is a new area, Mr. Chair, I feel that, I'm very passionate about this. I
would like to give this an opportunity to work. I have visited with both Human Concerns
as well as Economic Development. But I would like to add this area, and I would suggest
with a start of perhaps $50,000 for this area.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the request. Are there any objections to the
addition of this new category.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we're going to move on and come back later on. So,
Members, who are making presentations that are not making it through, please take note
and be prepared to bring it back for your final opportunity later on in this process.
Members, are there any additional requests in this area under the Mayor's Economic
Development question of the Budget?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. In the handout that was distributed
yesterday, there are two additional items that would go under here. Item No. 2, the
Kipahulu Ohana Organization dedicated to environmental and cultural restoration and
education within the Kipahulu area of East Maui, and the development of culturally based
economic opportunities for East Maui. And I'm asking for $10,000.
CHAIR KANE: Are there any objections, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
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CHAIR KANE: Question, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I thought we provide money for that Kipahulu project
or projects in, in one of the other accounts?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair, that is for another project that is not associated with
this.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What, what, what is the different, difference in the projects please?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That is the, the, the project for the kitchen and for the
development of the community kitchen in that, in helping the farmers over there to
develop markets for their products. I believe that's what you're referring to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So that one is going to be completed this budget year; right?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Well is it, aren't we still putting in money in that account?
CHAIR KANE: Item 381, Members, on Page 8, Grants and Disbursements for East Maui
Cultural Economic Development, may be one of the areas that we're referencing, Mr.
Hokama; is that the area?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah, that is the one referring to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, so, so, wouldn't your request come out of this $50,000?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No, that is, that is it to finish that other project. That is a
separate project. That has nothing to do with this project over here. That is an ongoing
project that we've had for the last four years. This is final stage in making, getting it
operational. That's the one that the last three years we've approved money for, and this
is to finish up that budget. It's the last stage. That was the project that was initiated and
actually built by the community. We were supplying money for materials, but the
community is actually the one that physically built it. They were their own contractor,
and that is the final stage of that project.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any objections in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
I would want some information from Economic
Development as to how the, the monies have been encumbered under that Item 6, Grant
for East Maui Cultural and Economic Development Programs, because if it is already
encumbered maybe what we need to do is just up that grant amount there and put the
proviso in for what Mr. Carroll is talking about.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Mr. Carroll, with that request being said, the Chair's going to
request that you make arrangements to get that additional information for this body, and
that the consideration be put under the other area on No. 381, and that a consideration for
additional be taken once we get that information back for it.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair, and I have one more item.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and the next item, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The next item, excuse me, the next item on the handout is
Item No.3, and that's the carpentry program. I think everybody's familiar with that. We
have honored the group over here, the Council has before, and that's the one teaching our
Hana youth construction building techniques. It's been an extremely popular program.
It's something that has been very effective in retaining our students that ordinarily would
have just dropped out of school. The retention rate has really been impressive of children
at risk because of this program. And I'm also asking $10,000 for this program.
CHAIR KANE: Members, objections to this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I, I would say the same thing that we look at getting infor. .. ,
I'd like to know how this program has been funded in the past. And if it is something we
want to consider, that we consider it under the Grants and Disbursements to East Maui
instead of putting all these little line items in that we try to consolidate them into the
existing line.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Carroll, you've heard the request. If you can provide additional
information for consideration into incorporating it under Line 381 for East Maui Culture
Economic Development category, and that way we can have a further discussion the next
time around.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For Mr. Carroll. This particular program, is, is this the
first time that they're requesting money from the County of Maui?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL:
money, yes.

This is first time they've come before the Council for

COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, are there any final requests in the Mayor's
Program under Economic Development Grants and Disbursements? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I guess I'm looking for some
guidance on this one. This is in relation to the request made by Ms. Dapitan for the
Friends of Old Maui High School for the clean-up. I would like to ask for some
consideration of that for the 50,000. In actuality, the needs are more like 100,000; 50,000
for personnel and 50,000 for supplies. But I will consider the 50,000 in that it be used at
this point for, more towards supplies.
So, as I stated earlier I'm looking for guidance as to, if this is the appropriate area to
consider this or another area as well, Mr. Chairman. The, if Members want information
on what the Friends of Old Maui High are doing, they are a certified non-profit 5013C,
and I do have a newsletter, which backs up Ms. Dapitan's comments regarding the
Federal funding courtesy of Senator Inouye. But the clean-up is ongoing, so I'm
basically at this point, or I appreciate the volunteer effort to promote history and preserve
some of our sites. And the Administration, I guess, they have some long term plans for
this area, but in the meantime we have to deal with the clean-up and addressing other
needs.
So, Mr. Chairman, I make that proposal, and at this point is, and, you know, asking for
some guidance as to if this is the appropriate to consider this under, or if it should wait,
and, I, I only had time at this point being that it just hit us this morning to look at other
areas.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair's recommendation to consider Mr. Molina's would
be to consider it under the Grant to the Community Work Day Program and a
consideration for addition of $50,000 and proviso that additional 50,000 specific to this
project seems like the best way to put it. Members, are there any objections to adding
this into Mr., addressing Mr. Molina's request?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA: Chair, what line?
CHAIR KANE: This is going to be, again, and this is what the Chair sees as the place to put it,
unless we can make an adjustment that will be make it a better suited Line 212, on Page
5, under Community Work Day Program. The request is to add an additional $50,000.00,
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is correct, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: And have it proviso that that 50,000 is specific to the Old Maui High School
project. And then if we can, Mr. Molina, provide some written comments later on to
work with Staff to get the proviso specific to the request and identifying or, I believe
identifying the specific use of the monies, which I believe were cited as rental of
equipment and tools. And I think she was also asking for one time funding, but that's not
something that's in this request.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, we'll get that language worked out. Any objections to adding it
here?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there's going to be a number of 50,000 added to Line 214, the
revision stated in Line "E." Mr. Molina, any further items?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: No.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Molina, excuse me, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. Chairman, on Line 433, the
Grants and Disbursements for Molokai Economic Development and Cultural Programs, I
would like to add to that category the 99,900 that the Molokai Kuha 'o Business Center
had requested this morning. And I will add it to that particular category, because in the
past this particular grant fund had, in fact, assisted this particular organization with
support financially in the continuation of, of the Business Center. And I will leave it up
for discussion by the Members, and just indicate that I think this is exactly what this
particular grant does, help produce economic viability for the Molokai community.
Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, the request has been made on Page 9 of 29
on Line 434 and 435 to add $99,900.00, and I'm assuming provisoing it that that money
be directed specifically for that program, Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, are there objections to this request?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Just information. I'd like to see what the Grants and
Disbursements have been out of this line item from OED.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Mateo, is that information that you can get for this Committee?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes, I can. I'd be happy to.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and so, we're going to defer on this request and have this brought back.
So, please take note of bringing it back for final consideration on our next go around.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I, I don't have an objection to adding it in now as, as long as
we get the information later when we deliberate.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair's request is to use this as the working number
$70,000, and provide Mr. Mateo some additional time to gather that information, and
then we can have a discussion one time to decide whether or not it's ready to go or not.
Okay. Members, any additional requests under Grants and Disbursements, Members?
And don't be ashamed of asking to revise by going down as well, Members. Mr.
Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I have one left in this, in the Mayor's Office, but it's
not in Grants and Disbursements.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Are there any other Grants and Disbursements requests? Hearing none,
any other points or, we have the E-Tech Program, and so, the Chair is going to be moving
forward to the E-Tech Program. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, my understanding of this funding request there is a
amount of $200,000 as it relates to GASB-34. You know, my understanding of where we
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should be and where we are, I find this to be a very hard request to support. And I am
willing to cut $200,000 from this program as it regards to the GASB-34, an initiative that
we have undertaken many years ago, and should have been completed.
And I have my concerns with the HR/Payroll Vendor. I'm dissatisfied with that
performance. But, you know, Chairman, just, we got to find ways to pay for all these
new requests that we're adding, and for me, I'm presenting this reduction of $200,000 in
this program area as one way to pay for these other additions that the Committee feels is
appropriate for consideration ... (change tape) . ..
CHAIR KANE: The request has been made. We have a current working number of 430,225.
Mr. Hokama is proposing that 200,000 be deleted from this program area. Are there
objections to the deletion?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I have a question, and that is if the $200,000 is cut from this
program what will that do to the ability to continue the implementation of the HR/Payroll
System?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair, Chairman, if I may?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding of the request, Ms. Johnson, is that out of that
430, 240,000 is for the HR/Payroll Program, and I'm not asking that any funds that
impact that program to be reduced.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Obviously, if $200,000 is being cut from this area though,
something's going to go, and I want to understand what that something is. So, if we
could get the answer, whether it's from Administration, Mr. Chair, or someone. I would
really like to know before I support the request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, in that case, Member Johnson, are you saying that you object to the
reduction until you have that information?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, because I can't make an informed decision without that
information.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Members, we have an objection. So, therefore, it will not move
forward. It will be up to the requestor, and this goes for everybody on requests that don't
make it. It's up to you to gather the additional information to provide your, your, your
position for getting support at the next round.
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Okay. Members, we're moving on. Is there any other points within the Mayor's Office
before we move on to the next item, which is going to be our One Main Plaza? And the
Chair recognizes the time. So, without any further discussion in the Mayor's area,
Members, the Chair is going to call for a 10-minute recess, and we'll reconvene at 10:50.
And I ask Members to be prompt. Thank you. We're on recess ... . (gavel) ...

RECESS:

10:41 a.m.

RECONVENE:

10:55 a.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay. Members, we're reconvened. Members, just a point of
information for all of you. We do have as, as Mayor Arakawa has stated, we've been
provided with the resource people to hopefully adequately address your questions with
respects to the One Main Plaza to purchase or not to purchase option that is before us
right now. I think we have Managing Director Regan; Director of Finance, Mr. Young;
as well as his Deputy, Mr. Fujita; and I know we have the First Assistant to Mr. Regan,
Mr. Taylor available to us.
I also note the presence of Mr. Brian Moto. I know part of the, well a major component
in the discussion of One Main Plaza was, I think, the most desired need to have Corp.
Counsel's consideration of movement or for their migration out of their current situation.
So, I believe Mr. Moto is here in the event any of you need him to respond to any specific
questions with respects to Corp. Counsel's needs.
Members, we have all of them here. I can either sit them all up front or we can ask,
maybe one or two of them, who can provide us with the primary responses, and then just
as needed have them come forward. Any preference, Members? I think it may be
appropriate without objections from the Members to ask without disrespecting the
protocols of Mr. Regan, if we can have maybe your first assistant come down, since I
think he has a lot of the information that can be responded to. And then, Director Young,
if you'd like to come down at this time. Maybe you can join us down here at the seat.
Members, it is the Chair's intention on this item that we make a decision this morning
before lunch, if possible. If not, well, then the Chair understands it will continue until we
can make that decision. But this is an item that the Chair feels needs to be decided on
sooner rather than later, so that we can move on with the rest of the budget, and we have
a lot more to go.
So, with that, the resource people that are here understand that they're here to respond to
questions, not to give presentations, because we've had that opportunity already. And so,
they're here to respond to any questions that you may have specific to the One Main
Plaza purchase option or not to purchase.
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The Chair is opening the floor to Members who have any questions, or would like to
open up with a position. We're clear that the, your Chair's proposal does counter the
Mayor's proposal. It is a starting point for us in this discussion. The floor is open. Mr.
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. Just the one question
regarding the response that has just been given to us to the One Main Plaza concerns.
Regarding condemnation of the land. The property tax assessment is valued at 960,000.
Any idea what the market price would be for the land that the One Main Plaza sits on
currently?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. We would have to project about 12 years worth of
appreciation before the option to purchase is exercised. Is that what you're talking about,
Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes.
MR. YOUNG: Or are you talking about condemnation?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Condemnation.
MR. YOUNG: Condem ... , I'm sorry. Okay. Condemnation wouldn't probably involve if the
County was to, say, purchase One Main Plaza if that was a scenario, and then condemn
the land, we would be looking at a fair marketable price that would take into account the
lease, rent stream for, for the next 12 years that involves approximately three
readjustments from currently $98,000 for the next, I believe it's the next three years, and
then it's up to 137, and then 175. So, we would have to do an evaluation of the, the
capitalized present value of that lease, of that rental stream.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, that might take you a while then to come up with
those, with, with those figures, I guess. Again, I'm just kind of sort of taking it from the
point of, there may be people out there who are asking why not just condemn the land as
well, and then, of course, make the building purchase. So, just so we could get some, I
guess, ballpark figures as far as what we're looking at if we're to pur. .. , you know,
condemn the land for One Main Plaza. Anyway, just a thought. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Members? If there are no questions at this time,
Members, the Chair's going to excuse our resource personnel, and the Chair's going to
ask for, call for a question on this decision. Any questions to be responded to? Ms.
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Chairman. I believe Ms. Anderson had
some questions regarding the parking, and I don't know if she was going to pursue that
line of, of questions, or did she get enough information to, for her on what she requested.
I don't mean to put you in a spot, Ms. Anderson, but I know you were concerned about
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how many parking stalls would be available to employees at the onset of the move on the
first acquisition. I think that was one of the questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, it was.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Now that you mentioned it.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, Ms. Anderson, and, and with all, you know, due fairness, I want
to make sure that you're, you're willing to, are you prepared at this time to bring forward
your, your remarks? And if you're not, then you can yield, and we can allow you time to
prepare for that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm happy to bring up the parking issue right now, Mr.
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's go.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If Members would reference, excuse me, the April 15th
memo or letter from our Budget Director, which attaches an April 13th memo responding
to some of our questions. And on Pages 3 and 4, the parking issue is addressed. Mr.
Taylor, do you have a copy of this?
MR. TAYLOR: No, Ms. Anderson, I don't have a copy.
CHAIR KANE: We'll make sure he gets one.
MR. YOUNG: The Budget Director just handed us a copy.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. It appears that my question was originally asking
you to provide the total number of proposed parking stalls needed by County employees
at One Main Plaza, and how many stalls will be provided for public use. I also had
requested that you provide the total number of parking stalls available at One Main Plaza,
and how many are currently used.
The response in this memo indicates that there really is no stalls available. There's a total
of 210 stalls. Ten percent have been lost due to an ADA exchange. I'm not really certain
what that's about, and that Level 3 has been dedicated by the ProPark contractor for
parking storage. So, that takes away 35 spaces. So, that leaves us with 165 spaces. Of
those spaces, 47 are dedicated for customers who come, the general public, who come
and visit tenants in the building; 20 spaces are currently used by State and County
employees under contract with ProPark; 20 spaces are used by tenants' employees; and
78 spaces are those spaces that are dedicated to the tenants through their leases. That
totals 165 stalls.
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So, I'm having a hard time seeing how there will be any additional stalls for the County
to use, which is why I asked my questions, and the answer is that, Mr. Taylor, you're
basing the, the number of parking stalls available for employees, you're basing that on
the formula that One Main Plaza currently uses, and that is one stall for every 600 square
feet of building space.
And then on Page 4, you show what the occupancy would be in the building per year,
occupancy that the County would take. Year 2005, 5,000 square feet and that eight
parking stalls would be dedicated to that 5,000 square feet. And then it goes on through
the year 2015. As tenants vacate and space becomes available for the County, as the
square footage space increases for County offices the parking stalls would be dedicated at
one per every 600 square feet.
So, this appears to me that, sort of like, trying to fit a shoe in a glove, I mean a foot in a
glove rather than a shoe, because we're using the commercial building's current formula
to predict what parking will be available for County use, and I can tell you right now
there's way more than one employee for every 600 square feet. So, I'm having a hard
time seeing how the parking that this building will offer us will in any way address the
parking needs of our employees now or in the future. So, if you could maybe address
that and maybe clarify. If I have it wrong, I'm willing to hear it.
MR. YOUNG: Ms., Ms. Anderson if I, if I may respond. This letter that you referenced was
provided by my office to Budget Director Morrison. The parking scenario that's laid out
here, it takes into account the current One Main Plaza structure. There's 210 stalls in the
entire parking structure at One Main Plaza. Admittedly, it, it's not going to solve all of
the parking problems of the County for this current building, or even for that of One
Main Plaza if the County was to move over.
There currently is a number of stalls that have been identified as, identified for specific
for the tenants roughly in the area of about 78 stalls. If the County was to, say, wanted to
allocate the entire vacant stalls right now in One Main Plaza to employee parking, it
would be 210 minus by the 78 spoken stalls. So, we could provide about 120 stalls right
now.
Just for point of reference this building has only 47 public stalls in the front of it. One
Main Plaza, we're looking to maintain the same number of public stalls at One Main
Plaza, thus, the 47 that is presented on Page 3.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The 47 for customers of the County?
customers who are visiting current tenants?

What about

MR. YOUNG: That would be both, Ms. Anderson. Just this, this scenario as projected here
where we, where we present the total stalls used, 165, says that will be presenting for 47
stalls for general public and vacancy, as well as 20 stalls, if we maintain the current, as
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you put it, the foot and glove scenario where, where One Main Plaza currently has 20
stalls that are available to State and County employees as well as, excuse me, 20 for these
employees of the building, monthly employees. And then the, if the 78 stalls that are
earmarked for the leases in the building remains constant that takes up 165 stalls. There
are 210 stalls available in the building, so there is additional capacity, if you will, to
afford to be able to distribute more stalls.
The 600 square foot per parking stall ratio is presented to give you a sense of how the
allocation of parking stalls could be done relative to the office space usage, because at, if
we look at this building as an example, we don't provide stalls for all of our employee,
we don't have parking for all of our employees. There is a ratio that is based, transposing
that, the ratio that we use for this building to One Main Plaza would be something on
order of about, I believe it's like 200 square feet for every one parking stall that we
provide for an employee of this building. The One Main Plaza one, ratio just shows you
that they have a higher ratio for square foot to parking ratio for their, for their
tenants/employees.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's my point, Mr. Young, is that the building was
not meant to be high density use, or they would have provided more parking initially for
the number of people who could occupy the building. So, I, I don't think you've, you've
relieved my concern in any way, because we're still dealing with these same numbers.
The, I'm assuming in this, this chart that you give, you give on Page 4, where it shows
how much space will be occupied per year, that that space is a reflection of the tenants
who are leaving the building; correct? At what, at what year that that space would be
freed up for County use?
So, I, you know, I, I don't know how this 78 spaces that are dedicated to current leases
works within this scenario, because what you're showing for parking stalls is just what
would be available currently by square footage. In other words, if you take 5,000 square
feet, which is what we would occupy immediately, we're only going to get eight stalls
and so forth down the line. So, you know, by the Year 2015 are you saying that all 78
spaces that are currently dedicated to tenants will be vacated, because their space, their
tenant space will be vacated?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. As the, as the stalls from tenants, as the leases from tenants
become expired, their stalls will become vacated and ready for deployment. The matrix
that you reference on Page 4 only shows, does take that into account, but this shows if
you maintained the 600 square foot ratio that's the deployment that is available. By no
means does that mean that that's the only limited amount of stalls that are available,
because as we see right now, only 165 of the 210 stalls are actually earmarked for
specific purpose, and the specific purpose includes customer parking.
There's an additional 35 stalls, approximately, that represent additional capacity. If you
wanted to be so generous as to apply those to employee, County employee parking on the
day of acquisition, they could be deployed as up to, as much as 35 stalls.

-42-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well that would mean breaking some kind of contract
currently with ProPark, and do you know what that contract is?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, the, actually the contract that is with the current parking
tenant does not prohibit the building owner from assigning parking. It's purely, they,
they will still get their revenue from customer parking as they have now, and they will
get a portion of the revenue for whatever monthly paid parking.
So, even if the County employees, if these stalls were assigned to County employees,
there would be a monthly fee that the employees would have to pay whether it be $15.00
that we currently charge for covered parking on the, on this, this County campus, or if it's
some other fee structure that the Council decides, the parking contract would still apply.
We would not be in any way prohibited from assigning parking of the 35 additional stalls.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, does that mean it's a month to month arrangement? I
mean, are you aware of actually what the contract says with ProPark? Because you've,
you said in documentation that all current existing service contracts will remain. I'm
assuming that means ProPark, the property management contract, and all existing
contracts; is that correct?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, that is, that is the intent.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you don't know if it's a, you're saying that the County
can go in and take back those Level 6 parking spaces for our use? Are you saying that
unequivocally, or is there a month to month to agreement that ProPark has with whoever,
I mean, we, we really don't know who's renting these spaces.
MR. YOUNG: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It sounds like vehicle storage to me.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, the, specifically on the sixth floor parking, those are long
term contracts that must be honored. We don't know the exact expiration date for each of
those stalls, but the ProPark contract is the contract, they manage the entire parking
structure, all the, you know, all floors, the entry and exit. Those, that contract is the
contract that I'm referencing that we intend to maintain in place.
The scenario that's presented here on pages 3 and 4 does take into account the sixth floor
parking, that once those are expired we, the County will basically liquidate them and all
that floor will become available as well. And that is taking into account on the matrix
that is presented on Page 4.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'm hearing contradicting things, because you just
said previously that once we take over the building if we want those 35 stalls we can have
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them. And now you're saying that there's a long-term contract, that ProPark has
contracts, a long term contract for these.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Pro Park has rented stalls on parking level six for long
term parking storage plus has six stalls fenced off for storage of construction materials.
So, I, I'd like to see what that contract is, or what kind of long term agreement has been
made regardless of those 35 spaces ...
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, maybe we can get a response from Corp. Counsel. They might
have some ability to shed some light on your question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, if I could finish what I was saying, I'd appreciate it,
Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I, I apologize. I thought you were trying to get a response, Ms. Anderson.
Proceed, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Regardless of the 35 spaces, in 2015, when it looks like,
now this occupancy that you're giving this is usable space, correct? You give a total
occupancy, square footage occupancy of 2015 of 62,368 square feet, and I know the
University of Phoenix is not moving out until 2017. So, you're basing this square
footage on the total square footage of the building, which is 86,000?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. The, the difference is, is the effect of that last lessee, which
is the University of Phoenix.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, I'm asking you that the square footage that you're
breaking down here, in other words, there's only actual usable space in the building of
64,000, 68,400 square feet not 86,000 square feet. So, the 600, let me put it another way.
Do you know how many spaces that University of Phoenix uses during the day? Of this,
of the total, of the total210 parking spaces that the building has, by the Year 2015, 104 of
them will be available to the County. So, after 2017, are we going to have another, the
balance of the 210?
MR. YOUNG: Ms., Ms. Anderson, the University of Phoenix, I, I don't know specifically how
many stalls they use, but for all tenants in the building, they, they are, all the tenants only
currently use about 75 stalls. The University of Phoenix probably doesn't use as many
stalls, because they are a night-time operations.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, the 600 square foot formula is based on the total 80,
80,000 square feet of the building, not the useable square footage; is that correct?
MR. YOUNG: Yes. Yes, Ms. Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
something to add, I'd be happy to hear it.

Mr. Chair, if Corp. Counsel had

CHAIR KANE: Corp. Counsel.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: Mr. Chair, I just wanted to mention that the service contracts that
are with One Main Plaza such as ProPark and the property management, those contracts
don't automatically get transferred to the County unlike the leases. Like, for instance, the
tenant leases that are currently at One Main Plaza, the County would be obligated, unless
we bought them out, we would have to continue on with those leases.
With the service contracts, the discussion was that we would keep them on for a time
during, at least during the transition period to figure out how, you know, how the County
was going to continue operating the building, but we aren't obligated to continue on with
these, with these service type contracts.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, there's no obligation in the purchase, I, I went through
and saw some of these contracts, and they seem, they seem rather short term. Some of
them had just been renewed as a matter of fact, and once the building is taken over by the
County we would be obligated to maintain the contracts until their expiration date
current. .. , currently?
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: We would have to specify in the closing documents that the service
contracts would be assigned to the County. It would be an additional part of closing. We
don't have to do that, but I think that that was the intent just so that there would be a
smooth transition period just to give us some time to figure out how the County was
going to operate. Whether we were going to continue with some or all or none of these
service contracts. I don't, I don't know that that was decided yet. But I know in the
interim period there was some discussion about having the service contracts assigned to
the County, at least for a short period of time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you. I'm willing to yield. I have other
issues, but I'm through with parking, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions, Members? Mr. Fontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Earlier we were presented these
proposals in regards to, I guess a comparison, to One Main Plaza and the Old Wailuku
Post Office. I'm looking at one of the pages here, purchase of One Main Plaza would be
10.5 million, and then the renovation and improvements at One Main Plaza would 3.75.
And I'm assuming that's the initial cost to do renovation and improvement at the
building. And part of your plan was to transition various departments into One Main
Plaza, come back to the County, and do some renovation at this County facility. Would
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you have any cost in regards to the renovations, I guess, per department per floor once
you do the transition? And I think the transition is going to take several years to, to do.
MR. TAYLOR: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. The, our initial concept is to improve the raw space
that exists in the building as one project. So, there's roughly 11,500 square feet of
unimproved space. So in this first year, we would improve that space by putting in hung
ceilings and lights and air conditioning ducts and things. The rest of the building, the
space is already finished, and they're ready for people to move into. So, the bulk of these
renovations would happen during this first ... (change tape) . ..
MR. YOUNG: Mr. Pontanilla, if I could also add, I'd like to reference the same communication
that Ms. Anderson had examined, and this is specifically in regards to the question one in
which there is a breakdown for the initial year for, on a per square foot estimate for
unimproved space, the one that Mr. Taylor has referenced for 11,500. We're estimating
improvement cost of anywhere from $175 to $200. And for the additional space needs
for those spaces that are already fully improved where people could move into, assuming
that there may be some minor improvements or upgrades that may be necessary, we
estimate a per square footage cost of about 75 to $100. And that is where we are
requesting in the budget the 2.5 million for the first year for what's considered space
improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: That's for One Main Plaza; right?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Pontanilla, for One Main Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. When we move the various departments from
this building here to One Main Plaza, the intention is to also do some renovations in this
building to reaccommodate those people that, you know, are going to be moving to One
Main Plaza. You have a cost breakdown as far as the renovations for this building?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, we, we do have those numbers, because those would be put into
individual departments operational budgets in future years.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And, by any chance, do you have any estimated figures
that we can look at as far as, you know, how much it would cost the renovations per, per
square foot for this building here?
MR. TAYLOR: The, most likely there would be limited renovations if people just sort of moved
around within the building. Most likely as has happened before in this building people
have moved into space that's become available and just made use of the space as it was.
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So, we, we don't have any numbers, because we, there, there isn't any plan about who
might juggle into which spaces later.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, well, good, good to know, you know, those tapes
information, because when we do the moves, you know, it's going to take several years to
do all these movements, and if the cost is not too exorbitant then, you know, fine. But if
it is then I'd like to know.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Again, we, we feel that, there have
been ... (inaudible) .. .in this building in the past, in the past decades and different groups
have moved out and changed spaces. And I don't believe there's been major renovations
for that. As people have moved out other people have moved in, rearranged desks, put
temporary partitions and file cabinets, and just made use of this space. And that's really
the intention as different groups and departments move out of this building and other
departments and groups move in, move into their spaces, most likely they would just be
making use of the space as it exists. So, the cost would be very limited.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Very minimal. And to the departments?
MR. TAYLOR: That would be, the intention is to have departments put into their operating
budgets in future years when those moves are planned.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any questions, Members? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, thank you very much. Good morning,
gentlemen. Can, can you just tell me what assurances there are that the, the land under
the building in the, in the event that we do purchase One Main Plaza, that the land would
not be sold for the next number of years? Or if, in fact, it is sold by the, by the owners
that the, that the lease amount will remain the same for the next 14 years until we have
the option to buy.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Mateo. First of all, the lease with the landowner clearly identifies what
the annual lease rent will be each year between now and 2017, when we have the option
to purchase. In regards to, so we, we know each year how much it will cost us. In
regards to the purchase of the underground, of the land, the County has already as part of
this transaction approached the landowner, which is the Kunewa Trust, asking if they
would be willing to sell the land to the County as part of this transaction or any future
time. They have indicated that they have no intent to sell now or for the foreseeable near,
near future. I do not believe that the intent of the landowner is to sell to anyone.
Of course, the County, because we own the building we would be the most motivated, I'll
take that back. If we own the building, the County would be the most motivated to
purchase the underground land. They would have an incentive to sell it to the building
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owner essentially. But there is no other way to guarantee that they will, that the
landowner will sell it at all, or that they would sell it to the County.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: That, the County's inquiry of whether or not the landowner was
interested in selling, well did a dollar figure also come with that discussion?
MR. YOUNG: I, I was the one that initiated the discussion with the, with the representative
from the landowner. I did not offer a dollar amount, because of negotiation tactics, I did
not offer any dollar amount. I merely asked if, one, if they would be willing to sell as
part of this transaction knowing that the County was intent on purchasing the building. I
did offer some persuasion that it would, that they would seek a, it would be more
financially attractive to them if they were to get this money up front rather than receiving
their estimated lease rent that they currently receive and that they will receive looking
forward for the next 12 years. But the, for personal reasons or, fam ... , familial situations
they were just not interested in selling.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: So, from, and, so that means for the next 14 years or so they'll
be, they'll be, I guess, content in receiving the, the lease rent that they'll agree to at this
point?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Mr. Mateo. And, and that's to be attuned for the next two to three years.
It's only $98,000 a year that we'll be paying.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: And then it steps up to $135,000, and then in the last five years before
negotiation it will be 175,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Uh-huh. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, within the agreement, I guess, _ _ the landowner,
would entertain some type of purchase in 2017. In the interim, if there were an outside
buyer to come in, does the County as the owner of the building have right of first refusal?
Is that contained anywhere within that documentation?
MR. YOUNG: Ms. Johnson, I would, I would have to check the contract to be certain, but I
believe there is a right of first refusal clause in the, in the current contract.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: But I would, I would, before I offer that as definite I would, I would need to
refresh my memory.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and that is something that' really critical, I think,
in terms of having somebody buy the building out from underneath the current owner, or,
I mean, if we were to buy the building, I would not want to have that kind of situation
occur because, you know, for obvious reasons.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Johnson. I, I, I would say that would be, while that is possible that
would be rather unlikely. And, again, the, and then the reason why I say it's rather
unlikely is that although that could occur the County unlike any other landowner has a
very powerful tool and that is the right of condemnation.
And so, it would not be likely that a private landowner would, or another buyer would
want to come in and buy the underground lease to a County Building when the County
always has the right of condemnation to a, we, would be, if, if the scenario wasn't
developed we would essentially own the building, not the land truthfully, but I, I cannot
imagine that someone with business prospects would want to purchase the underground
land from the County when we're the only business in town that has the right of
condemnation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, so, what you'd be saying is that in essence if, let's say a
buyer does step forward, at that point in time whether there was a right of first refusal or
not, you would know what the value of that purchase price was, and you would then
proceed with eminent domain just to protect our interest?
MR. YOUNG: It, that, that would be my, my thought. And financially speaking, if
condemnation, the, to determine the value is based on the remaining leasehold interest
that the County has if we were to acquire the building, that interest gets less and less as
we approach renegotiations. So, the condemnation price will get less and less as we
approach 201 7.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Before I recognize you, Mr. Fontanilla, I'll go ahead and recognize Ms.
Anderson again, and then followed by you, Mr. Fontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I just want to follow this line of
questioning. The current assessed valuation is $960,000. How would this assessed
valuation be affected by the $10.5 million purchase? I mean it sounds like an awful low
assessment.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, the, that, that, that's just the assessed value of just the land
not, not the building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It doesn't include the building?
MR. YOUNG: It does not. That 960,000 is only for the assessed value of the land, yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And the purchase of the building may affect the assessed
valuation of the building, but it's not going to change the assessed valuation of the land in
any way?
MR. YOUNG: I, I, I would say, Ms. Anderson, that, yes, because this, regardless of who the
owner is it should not change how the property is valued especially for the land.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, it's not a question of who owns it, it's a question of
exchange of money, you know.
MR. YOUNG: Oh. Oh, well, I would say that anytime there's a large commercial transaction it
could affect the assessed value, the, the future assessed value. So, yes, that is, that is true
from that perspective. However, the current assessed value and the actual sale price of
this transaction are rather very close, and it shouldn't, we should not see a spike up in
assessed valuation for the building, and the land is not really in question.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you know what the assessed value is, for the building
is right now?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, in fact, yes, Ms. Anderson, in fact, the assessed value was presented in the,
in the, the appraisal, and I believe the assessed value from two -- for 2004 numbers was
something on order about 8.6 million. That's the assessed value. The appraisal report
conducted by ACM also validated that the actual, the actual appraised value of the
building is on order with the transaction price. In fact, the appraised value was slightly
higher than the appraisal pri ... , than the transaction price.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, while we're on the appraisal I did have a
question. Is there a market study in here? I, I did not locate a market study. You know,
in, in other words, how much vacant office space is there in Wailuku? What, what is its
term of vacancy? In other words, how often does office space, well, you know, what I'm
getting at.
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Was there an actual study?
MR. YOUNG: The appraisal report didn't do a market analysis. It did do a market evaluation in
that they did look at all the commercial space that is available in Wailuku, and the
vacancy rates. And, however, again, I don't have the specific report in front of me that
was provided earlier, but I would say that the majority of the vacant, the va. . .,
commercial vacancy in Wailuku is actually in One Main Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Isn't the market study normally, especially when you're
doing the appraisal for a purchase like this, isn't that normally part of an appraisal?
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MR. YOUNG: It, Ms. Anderson, it, it could be, but the, the two different approaches of the
appraisal that the appraisers use, cost approach and the income approach. The income
approach would take only considerations of the overall market. The income approach
really looks at the income stream of the existing facilities, so the building. So, it looked
at what are the current rents for the tenants in the building, and what is the prospects of
the future rent stream. So, that's where this future rent stream will take into
consideration what is the overall vacancy in the geographic area. But it doesn't
necessarily need to look at the specific market analysis of the overall commercial market.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think that's a matter of opinion especially since
we're not buying this building for income stream, which leads me to my next question,
and that is the pro forma, Mr. Chair, if I can, unless other Members want to continue on
the ...
CHAIR KANE: Continue, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: On your April 6th communication to us, what was
transmitted April 6, and, Mr. Young, it, it transmits your April 4th letter, which provides
a summarized property and transaction review for One Main Plaza. Do you have a copy
of that?
MR. YOUNG: I, I don't have a copy of that in front of me, but-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It, it. ..
MR. YOUNG: --you may speak to that, and I'll try and recall as much as I can, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I think you need a copy of it. It includes your pro
forma operating statement. The, the date from our Director is April 6. I'm just going to
review this briefly, so others know what I'm talking about, and then when Staff provides
a copy for you, Mr. Young, I'll have a few questions.
This pro forma statement is for the period ending June 30th for 2005, 2006, and 2007.
Under income from services there is 61,000, approximately 62,000 for this year, 2005,
and then '06, '07, it goes up to 65,000. Is it, is that income from parking, solely from
parking?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, it's not, well, it's not solely from parking, but the majority
is, yes, parking.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And then what would the other revenue be?
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MR. YOUNG: They have, yes, the, the building has other contracts such as a mail service that's
in the lobby. I believe it's a DHL or Federal Express or something. There's also a small
income stream from that as well.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
parking spaces are rented, correct?

So, this income is likely to increase as more

MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, that is, that would be logical.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If we keep the same $55.00 a month fee? Well, apparently
Staff can't find a copy of it, but. ..
MR. YOUNG: Ms. Anderson, I, I'm sorry, I, I, I did-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you found it? Okay. Great.
MR. YOUNG: -- yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. The, under expenses for contractual services,
that's cleaning and maintenance only, Item B?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, that that's all that's included in there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, the increase from '05, which is now 186,000 to '07,
which is 525,000, that is to reflect an increase in the cleaning for more units occupied or
exactly what does that reflect?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, exactly. It, it reflects and increase occupancy on the part of the County.
We looked at the, you know, the space, the amount of space that would be taken up by
the County. Taking a look at the current contract and how much cleaning services are
provided for the current space occupancy, and then there's also a 10 percent inflationary
factor year over year.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, is it safe to say that we'd be obligated to maintain this,
this contractual cleaning service, and maintenance. I see it also includes maintenance
until the County fully occupies the building, so that we can maintain the building for the
current tenants?
MR. YOUNG: Well, well, Ms. Anderson, the intent is, only the intent. The intent is that we
would maintain these current contracts in place, so that the building could be maintained
in it's "A" class category for the pur... , you know, for the benefit of the tenants. But in
no way are, is the County obligated to continue on with these service contracts. If the,
you know, if the County was to say, Staff, make cleaning personnel there, we, we could
amend, you know, the pro forma essentially. But, I guess, to the extent to try and
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maintain the building in it's "A" class category, that's why the intent is that we would
maintain the current level of cleaning and maintenance with existing contracts.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And under Professional Services that goes from 50,000 to
111,000 between '05 and '07. That increase is due to, is that, I'm assuming it, it says
Administration. Is that the property management contract?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson. Well, it, it is property management as well as some of the
other administrative expenses that my occur, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And so, the increase is due to ...
MR. YOUNG: It's due to the increased needs of, of the tenants largely the part of the County as
the, as the County takes up more space there. The actual, the actual property
management contract itself is actually reflected in Operating under Expense "A."
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I see. So, the property management is under
Operating Expenses "A" and the Administration Fee, who does that go to? I mean, it's
doubling in two years, so I'm having a hard time understanding exactly what it is.
MR. YOUNG: Basis pro forma on the expenses that the current building owner budgets and has
results as they've shown for the last couple of years and, and projected for it. These
expenses for Administrative Expenses are stuff that would be, you know, copying, filing
of whatever, financial documents, if, if there's any legal fees, for instance, that, that
would eventually get charged back to the County.
The operating, the difference between that and the operating line is that I wanted to show
on operating what exactly was the amounts that are most directly related to a, the
property manager itself. This would be for discussion purposes if we were to say, the
County did not want to no longer have the services of a property manager, and we will
take on property managing this building ourselves. This is what, this line, Line "A" is the
line that we would look to eliminate.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well, let's go back to Line "C," which I'm having a
hard time understanding. If the County's taking over more space in 2007, why do the
administration fees double? And, and who do those fees get paid to?
MR. YOUNG: Well, these professional services it, it's like the other categories for professional
services for each department now, are for services that may be not specific to one
contractor or one vendor. They're cop ... , you know, for instance copying services to
Kinko's or mailing services to the postal service, et cetera. Relative to professional
services here though it's, we have more, you know, with more tenants there is more need
on the part of the building operations for our professional services. That's why it, it
reflects, the increases reflect the growth in occupancy.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, the growth in occupancy is, is going to be the
County itself, so I don't, I don't understand why we have an increase in professional
services for the County. They're going to have their own copy machines and, and what
not. I'm not going to get tied up over 50,000, Mr. Chair. What I'm leading to in this
whole discussion is by 2000, by June of 2007, the building will be operating at a net loss
of $627,000.
So, I'd love to see this extended out until 2017 when we have full occupancy of the
building, but is it safe to assume that this, this $627,000 operating loss will be duplicated
every year af ... , thereafter?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Anderson, because I guess the only way we can offset the operating
expenses is, I guess much like this building, which obviously operates at a loss is that we
don't have any rental stream as the tenants move out. So, as the tenant's move out then
our rental streams diminish, and we're only left with our operating expenses of, of offices
that move over there.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: If I can recognize Mr. Pontanilla to ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm happy to yield, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Should the, first of all, let's clarify
about the owners. You say Kunewa Estates.
MR. YOUNG: It's Kunewa Trust.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: And, and part of the Trust is this Henry Ah Sam, who is
a personal representative of the Estate of Marjorie K. Martinez?
MR. YOUNG: I know Henry Ah Sam is one of the owners on record.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So there's the Trust and Henry Ah Sam, as far as we're
concerned?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, and one of, and one of, one of the parties in, of the owners is Henry Ah
Sam, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And should the property owners opt
not to sell this piece of property when we negotiate in 2017, looking at the Resolution the
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lease term expires March 1st, 2051. Hopefully, in between time, you know, we take a
look at probably the condemnation process.
MR. YOUNG; Well, Mr. Fontanilla, to be clear, in 2017 the option to purchase is the right of
the building owner, the lessee. The landowner could say that they're not interested in
selling at that point, but the contract, the contract clearly states that in 2017 there is an
option to purchase, and it, it's not a question of if they don't want to sell. It will be a
question of how much, and the contract, again, clearly states that the value of the property
will be, will be appraised at the unencumbered, unimproved value of the land. And there
is a process that is laid out in the contract for the landowner and the building owner to
enter into a negotiation, whether it be mediation or arb ... , arbitration. If the, if the
building owner wants to purchase the full right of execution is on the part of the building
owner, the lessee.
COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA: And this lease expiration date of 2051, what does that
represent?
MR. YOUNG: If, if the building owner, the lessee, opts not to exercise the right to purchase in
2017. As I mentioned to Mr. Mateo earlier, between now and 2017, each year the rent is
clearly specified in the contract. Beyond 2017 the rent is not identified in the contract,
but it, the contract has provisions that, of course, the terms will be negotiated for periods
until the, the expiration of the full lease 2051.
If the County or the building owner opts not to purchase the building in 2017, then the
building owner, the lessee will negotiate with the landowner for what the annual rent
amounts will be from 2017 forward until the end of the lease.

COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. At the end of the lease then what happens?
MR. YOUNG: At the end of the lease, of course, the building owner will have the right to either
renegotiate with the landowner for a new terms of lease that will extend forward, or to
simply walk away.
COUNCILMEMBER FONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, any further questions? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: With regard to the parking, one of the questions I forgot to
ask was because so many of our employees and others drive cars that aren't the full, you
know, width, has the parking situation been looked at, so that the restriping might be a
possibility to actually get additional spaces of the existing spaces, because I know in
some of the parking garages, and I think, you know, the last time I went into that parking
area, some of the stalls were, you know, made for full size vehicles. So, is that an
additional option that we could look at in terms of restriping to create additional parking?
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MR. YOUNG: Yes, Ms. Johnson, there was, we, we didn't do a full analysis of how many stalls
could be increased in the parking structure. I would say that the majority of the stalls in
the structure right now are standardized size. There are a couple of stalls that are a little
bit larger, because the building owner currently has identified them as "ADA" stalls, and
they'd be a little bit larger. I think there's, like, two or, two to four per floor in the
parking garage. These are the stalls that we looked at whether or not they could be
expan ... , you know, we could put in more stalls in place of these if we came up with a
different ADA solution.
So, yes, there was that consideration given that there could be additional stalls. It, it's not
to say that we're going to be able, with 210 stalls in the parking structure, it's not to say
that we could increase it by 25 percent. But, you know, conceivably, yes, we could
squeeze out an additional eight stalls, ten stalls possibly.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and with regard to other parking that may be utilized
with regard to people accessing that building, have we looked at other options too within
our own current parking situation to actually, you know, move people into specific areas
where they do have vehicles that would be able to fit within a compact space. A more
... (change tape) . .. something that we're looking at right now.
MR. YOUNG: That's a very good suggestion, Ms. Johnson. We have not, we don't do that
currently in our current parking allocation right now. One Main Plaza, even with the
restriping scenario we, we probably will not be forced into a situation where we need to
park only compacts, car-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. YOUNG: -- compact size cars. I don't think, we will not be that tight on the parking. I
don't think the current layout will allow us to be, actually that tight.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh. Well, I was just looking as an option. I don't mean,
you know, every space would be that way, but since certain areas where you might be
able to gain, maybe one, two, maybe three additional spaces. I know that people are, you
know, there's still people with trucks, but, you know, I look at that as one option.
MR. YOUNG: That, that is a very good suggestion, and maybe applicable even to our current
parking situation around this building itself.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any further questions? Ms. Anderson.

-56-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'd, I'd like to follow-up on
that, because, you know, usually when we, when the Council meets to make a decision on
the land use entitlement I appreciate our new Land Use Chairman offering site
inspections, because it makes a big difference when you're able to see something in
person when you formulate your decision. I've taken it upon myself to go over and visit
the building on several occasions over the last two weeks. I have a compact car, and I've
had trouble getting in an out of parking spaces in their parking garage with my small
compact car.
So, I think you're pressing it to say that you can restripe and get more spaces. I don't, I
think it's, I think it's, frankly, I think it's a hazardous parking garage. You have to be
very, very careful, because you're backing into traffic coming around a blind curve often
times. So, I, I just have that to say about the parking, because as I said, I've been there
several times, and both times I've had to maneuver my car. It's not just back out and go.
You've got to back out and adjust, back out and adjust. So, I, I don't see how you're
going to get any more parking spaces.
I, I would like to ask a question about the ADA consent decree. Is the 1.4 million that
you've allocated for that going to fulfill the requirements of the ADA consent decree
totally?
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, Ms. Anderson, I'm not sure the consent decree is, is the right term. I, I, I
believe maybe Corp. Counsel can, can give the right term, but there was a, an, a
settlement of a lawsuit, and I'm not sure whether it's actually a consent decree. It was a
consent-- okay, it was a consent decree.
Most of, most of those things have been finished. In our engineering study, we do have
another specialist looking at the building for ADA compliance and made a list that's
eng ... , in the engineering study of outstanding items, and that money, is in those funds
are intended to take care of the rest of those items, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, everything that's outlined in the engineering study, all
these recommendations you have quantified to know for a fact that the 1.4 million will
bring this building up to ADA compliance?
MR. TAYLOR: They're not quantified by the line item, and the, the largest item is certainly the
parking issue. So, we do feel that it is enough money to cover these items though.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But you're not certain?
MR. TAYLOR: It would be uncertain until we have constructive bids that, there's really no
absolute certainty until, until the bids come in. But we ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, what do you base the 1.4 million on?
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MR. TAYLOR: We looked at some estimates of basically retrofitting an elevator, doing
additional ADA parking across the street, and looked at some of that. The high cost
estimate was really the elevator. Adding an elevator to the exterior of the building and
making it ADA access. That was certainly the largest item, and then the rest of the items
in the engineering study are relatively inexpensive.
So, based on the, the rough estimates of what that would cost we came up with this, with
this value.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that's strictly for the ADA. What about some of these
other structural, I know you, you, you characterize them as minor structural problems,
but, you know, what starts out minor, once you start fixing it can turn major. Especially
since none of these structural problems have been evaluated beyond just a visual cursory
type observation. So, have you done any estimates on that, on the recommendations
within the structural report?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. When we hired the engineering firm to lead the
study we gave them some, some pretty strict scope requirements and that was to do the
visual inspection of the building, identify what, anything we considered major, and let us
know immediately, and if there was anything they considered that might be major
structural problems that we would have them do further investigation of, of how bad that
might be.
After they did this investigation they didn't find anything that triggered their judgment to
think that any of these issues might be deeper and more extensive than what was
observed. So, based on that, we're, we're calling them minor in the realm of engineering,
meaning that they're not structural from the sense that they don't immediately affect the
structural stability of the building.
They're really cosmetic from an engineering standpoint. They don't affect the primary
systems of the building. They don't affect the load carrying resistance of the building.
They're architectural cosmetic repairs that need to be done. So, that, that's where the
word minor comes from. It's in, it's in relation to a major structural defect, which would,
which would have some operational or mechanical or structural impact to the building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I, I appreciate your evaluation of that, Mr. Taylor,
but I would, I mean we, we're making a big investment with taxpayer dollars, and I'd
like, I'd like more assurance that there's structural integrity to the building rather than
just this visual review. I mean-CHAIR KANE: And-- sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --there are parts, I'm going to just read for the record that
there is a disclaimer on their report --
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: -- that the opinions and recommendations in the report are
based on visual observations. No physical testing was performed to determine the
adequacy of the structural system. This report does not address any portions of the
existing structure other than those areas mentioned, nor does it provide warranty, either
expressed or implied, for any portion of the existing structure.
So, and, you know, the, visually it shows corrosion, it shows leaks, and way, while it may
only be cosmetic, as you say, you never know until you start exploring it, and we found
that out with this building, with the many leaks that we have in this building. Until they
started exploring it, we didn't find out how bad the problem was.
So, that's why I'm concerned about that, and, and also with the ADA. You know I
consider whatever, whatever repairs we have to do to the building, whether it's cosmetic
as far as structural or ADA compliance needs that those are really costs of the purchase of
the building.
So, rather than a 10.5 million dollar purchase, we're looking at something greater than
that. And I, I'm excluding the renovations, because I recognize there's a lot of unfinished
space in the building that will need to be renovated for County use. But if we go in to
purchase of this building, we have to bring it up to ADA compliance, and the
recommendation of this report is, is to look into this further. So, I mean they're asking us
to do various things that, while they may be cosmetic and minor, we don't have any idea
what it's going to cost, and what the end result might be once they start looking into the
structure.
So, you know, that's my concern, Mr. Taylor, is that we're not getting a complete picture
of what the overall cost is going to be in the purchase of this building. It's, it's more than
the 10.5 million. It's at least 12 million considering the ADA requirements that we have
to fulfill.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Ms. Anderson, I'm going to inject-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Go ahead.
CHAIR KANE:
at this point, and because I want to reserve this opportunity for questions, and
you'll be able to state your position once we get to the actual discussion. And, in this
case, I do agree with you, but even if I was completely disagreeable with you I would say
the same thing that we need to focus in on getting questions that you need answered, and
then we can save our, our points of position for the time when we come to voting on this
item. So, I appreciate your comments.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I understand, Mr. Chair, and I appreciate your, your
caution. It's very difficult to ask questions, and then not state what your observation is,
because, you know, one question leads to another, and, and I feel that I need to premise -CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to some extent what my concerns are, but I will try to
hold my comments. One other question I have is, and I know I've asked this question
before, and I didn't get an answer, because, you know, different departments need
different space for their, whatever their operation might be. But I think that it's not that
difficult a question to give us a ball park figure of how many employees will be moved to
this building. And my main concern, Mr. Taylor, is I want to see what the end result is
going to be. How is this, this purchase going to be beneficial to the County overall, to its
employees, and to the public we serve? And I can't get a handle on that unless I have
some idea what divisions, what departments, what combination of employees will be
occupying the building. And is there any way we can get an idea on that?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Anderson. In the first phase of movement over the next year and a
half or so, the intention is to move all of Corporation Counsel, all of Long Range
Planning, all of GIS, and then some overflow from Prosecutor's, some people from
Treasury, and CDBG.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Wait. Wait. Wait. That, that's going to happen in
the next year and a half?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, that's right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And how many people will that be?
MR. TAYLOR: That's roughly, just off the top of my head, that, that's around 50 to 60 people.
CHAIR KANE: Can you also provide that in writing, Mr. Taylor, as far as just giving the body
some written figures since this is, if I may, Ms. Anderson-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: --just briefly interject on this, because I know in your movement plans that you
state on letter "A" of that response, Members, previously presented and discussed with
Councilmembers. If you recall, Members, at that time they did not have a migration plan
specific, and that this is the first time that this body is getting any form of formal
specifics regarding their, their migration plan. So, we'd like to get that in writing please.
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, and thank you, Mr. Chairman. To me this is the key,
because why would we make this kind of an investment unless we know the end result is
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going to be beneficial, because there's, there's a good possibility that we can be
segmenting our, our services, segmenting departments, and really end up with a
fragmented way of servicing the County and, and coordinating employee operations.
So, that's why I think it's very important. If, if you could continue with that, Mr. Taylor.
Do you have ...
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Anderson. And we'd also like to mention that we should've, we
brought a big board down here when we were down for our, our original presentation.
And it showed the continuous space availability as it progressed through the years as
tenants moved out. And we do recognize that there is limited continuous space available
at the present time.
As more tenants move out and larger contiguous spaces become available, it will be
possible to become more efficient and consolidate groups. Until that happens, we will
have different small groups of overflow employees from various departments in One
Main Plaza, until we have enough contiguous space to sort of reorganize. And that's
probably based on the contiguous space availability going to happen in the Year 2010,
2011, 2012, when all of a sudden there are contiguous large blocks where we can start
consolidating in a more efficient manner.
But you are correct in that in the time between now and then we will have to have
overflow employees that are not necessarily operating in, contiguously to, to their
managers and, and their department staff.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, again, the, the migration plan you gave me, 50 to 60
employees in the next year and a half. Can you carry that through? We understand that
this is only, you know, a ball park, so to speak, that it's difficult. But you're asking us to
make a, a large long term investment, and there's going to be a long period of time, in my
opinion, until, unless we, we can see different with this plan that we're going to be
spending money for very few County employees being in the building. So, I want to see
how this overall scenario works out up to 2017, when we get the option to purchase the
building and have 100 percent of its use. Do you understand?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, we understand, Ms. Anderson, and un ... , unfortunately the needs of the
County and the priorities of the County and the personnel changes that will be, be made
between now and then are, are really a lot of variables that are just unknown. For
example, when the Bill 84 passed and all of a sudden the Long Range Planning Group
had to grow to accommodate the general plan needs, all of a sudden there was an influx
of personnel in Long Range Planning.
Other policy decisions that are made between now and then will affect how different
departments and divisions grow, and it will affect who needs space, and how they should
be contiguous. We do not feel it's possible to layout a specific movement plan through
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the Year 2017, because there's just too many unknowns that will, will occur be ... ,
between now and then.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well-CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, additional questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --you can give us some idea of the number of employees
this building is going to be holding by the Year 2017, and none of us know what's going
to happen between now and 2017, but we know how many employees we currently have.
We know the expansion needs. I mean you've already done a needs assessment, and you
know, at least you think you know, what we're going to need into the future. So, based
on that, I think you should, you should be able to come up with some kind of analysis for
the purpose of making a long term decision.
MR. TAYLOR: Ms., Ms. Anderson, if I can answer it this way. The building square footage in
One Main Plaza is very similar to the building square footage in the Kalana o Maui. And
so, it will have roughly the same number of employees that are currently housed in this
building. I mean the, the office space and square footage is going to be roughly the same.
So, I know there's a few hundred people that work in here. I don't know the exact
number, but it will be by 2017, roughly, it will be able to accommodate roughly the same
number of people that work in this building.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. That's all I have for now, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional questions, Members? The Chair is aware of the
time. The Chair does have a few questions, but I'll yield. Member Tavares, questions?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, thank you.
response to One Main Plaza concerns.

We had this handout today, I guess,

CHAIR KANE: Yes, rna' am.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And, you know, what are the options is, is the next page, or
the second page. And if we can have a little explanation of that part please.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Seeing that there, there was some questions from the
Council about, yesterday about what are the other options besides buying One Main
Plaza. So, we put together a, a quick list of the options, which are purchasing One Main
Plaza; we could lease space indefinitely; we could status quo, which is do nothing; or we
could build a facility.
So, going through these in order. If we were to lease space, we would be looking at
leasing 20,000 square feet immediately in One Main Plaza, which at $3 per square foot
including the maintenance fee would cost about $720,000 per year. We would still need
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to do renovations and ADA improvements for these spaces, because, again, this would be
in One Main Plaza where there is raw space that would need to be improved.
We would then have a long term commitment to spending this money on rent. There
would be a limited quantity of space available that, because the additional space in One
Main Plaza may be leased out by the owner, and the future availability may be uncertain.
So, if we leased at One Main Plaza, we really don't know if there will be future available
space in that building. It may all be leased out, and two years from now we could be out
of space again.
So, One Main Plaza is currently the only major office space, which is close to the County
campus and within walking distance of the County campus. So, if we decided not to buy
or build anything, and we looked at leasing space, this would be sort of our future, and it
would be very uncertain, because of the uncertain lack of availability of rental space in
Wailuku.
The second alternative is status quo. We do not rent space. We don't build space. We
don't buy a building. We would need to cease hiring additional staff to meet the needs of
the public. We would continue the low morale because of inadequate working space for
our employees, and we have this issue of violations, which the Mayor raised this
morning. So, that's if we do nothing.
Or we can build a facility, which would mean probably demolishing the Old Wailuku
Post Office, and spending in the neighborhood of 40 to $50 million over the next few
years. These construction costs, 40 to 50 million are estimates based on maybe an 80,000
square foot building or two buildings and a parking structure.
And the, these were based on the Chris Hart study that I think most of the Council saw
last year. And the costs are a little hard to nail down; because we don't know exactly
what we would do, how much we would build, what we might knock down, what sort of
offset improvements might be required, what sort of community concerns there might be
in order to get through the permitting process. And this large expenditure would tie up
the bonding capacity for many years.
So, these are really our total options about what to do regarding space, and the
Administration feels really strongly that purchasing One Main Plaza is the best of these
options for our short and long term needs.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you. On your, one of your responses, or I guess it
was your presentation, you had a page that showed, it was Page 3, Page 3, Members, of
the presentation that was given to us some time ago. There's a needs assessment on their,
on Page 3. Of those needs assessment you have in the column immediate additional
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space needed, 26,000 plus, 26,500. And the total space needed is 138,000, and the
estimated space needed by 2020 is 178,000 approximately.
So, there's a deficit, space deficit in 2020 of 66,000 square feet. Does this number
account for, have you put One Main Plaza's 60,000 square feet in this formula already?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. This assessment you're looking at is where we started
by saying what are our needs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MR. TAYLOR: This is before we looked at how we were going to fulfill those needs. So, One
Main Plaza fulfilled this need by, by having, by being able to offer us the 66,000 square
feet roughly anticipated to be needed. So, One Main Plaza would be the answer to this
space deficit that's noted on this needs assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Also, another, just a note. On your current space leased
column, you do not reflect the space at the Service Center, or is that somewhere else?
MR. TAYLOR: No, we
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Finance Department.
MR. TAYLOR: -- we do not identify that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, you're just talking about Wailuku area?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, this is the needs of the, the current campus with the administrative
functions that are currently housed here. We didn't include all the functions, like, in
Kaunoa -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: -- and base yards and anything like that.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you for that explanation. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing none, Members, if there are no
objections, the Chair just has a few questions for clarification. First, on the discussion of
the land, Mr. Young, maybe you can respond. Your discussion regarding a potential
purchase option, which we know is not available, so, I know the Members were asking
about the condemnation figure, and it seems some Members were trying to hammer down
what potential number we'd be looking at there.
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So, my question is you reflect on the property review page a land value, which is
assessed, a tax assessment of, at 2004 of 960,200 ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair, what page, where are you?
CHAIR KANE: I'm on your April 6 purchase of One Main Plaza document that has the pro
forma operating statement that you were working off of -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --Ms. Johnson and Members. It has two items, a summarized property and
transaction review and a pro forma operating statement for Fiscal Year '06 and '07.
That's what the Chair's looking at. So, on the property review page, which I believe is
the third page in, my question is, and I'm, I'm trying to get an understanding, the closer
we get to the option to purchase the less of a number we'd be looking at based on the
annual payments that we are currently making. Is that what you represented, Mr. Young?
MR. YOUNG: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Not quite. If the question was condemnation-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. YOUNG: --the condemnation price will get less as we approach the 2017.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. That makes it very clear for me. So, hypothetically, if we
were to buy One Main Plaza and wanted to own the land now, the potential would be we
would take the lease, annual lease payments we could add them up, and I went ahead and
added them up, it's about $1.675 million if we added that up. We also took the assessed
value of the land itself, because that, if anything, will increase, and by looking at another
document by your office showing that commercial space in the Wailuku-Kahului District
as far as revenue by district, the commercial space in this area has shown an average
percent change increase of approximately 19.6 percent. It would be safe to say that the
new assessed value would be rising by approximately that since that's an average number
that you folks provided. Is that a safe assumption, Mr., Mr. Young? And I know there's
a give or take and there's a margin of error, and that would be included since we're
talking about, assessments in currently not what was assessed back in 2004.
MR. YOUNG: I, I would say that anything above 19 percent looking forward for the next 12
years as an annual rate of appreciation for commercial property in Wailuku might, in my
opinion, would be considered rather high.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
MR. YOUNG: But for the, for the sake of discussion, if you said 15, anywhere between 15 and
19, I would say that would be reasonable.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Now, if we were to be looking at that scenario, we're looking at what
you've identified as the 2004 tax assessment value, would we be looking at closer to a
2006 assessed value, as far as if we were to proceed down that road for condemnation?
In other words, if we used the lay number that you considered of 15 percent a year, so we
would look at an addition of 30 percent added on to the 96,000, which would be another
$282,000 added to that 960 value?
MR. YOUNG: Yes, at least, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: At least. Okay. Okay. So, we'd be looking at Members, it seems that
conservatively we'd be looking at close to $300,000, 3 million, excuse me, $3 million for
the purchase of the land over and above the purchase of the building.
The other question I had was on one of our options, in many areas, or in one area, under
the, what are our options, second page that Member Tavares was referencing, and it
talked about renovations and ADA improvements. And then I also look at the
memorandum dated April 14, excuse me, April 13th, and preliminary review questions
from the April 7th meeting, and I'll read, estimated allocation for ADA improvements,
based on historical documents, all significant ADA improvements to the interior of the
building have already been installed. And that 1.25 million cost estimate reflects a
generous consideration for whatever the eventual solution may be.
And then on that, what are our options page, I know you've included the renovations and
ADA improvements, and this only deals with a specific amount of lease requirement that
you folks were identifying as 20,000, which I don't understand how that correlates with
what Member Tavares also cited on that needs assessment page, on Page 3, which that
26,595 included almost 10,000 square feet for Council, Council Services and County
Clerk requirements, and 16,000 feet, and what you've identified in the first year and a
half that you answered to Ms. Anderson that there's, the primary movers Office of
Council Services, excuse me, Corporation Counsel as well as GIS, et cetera, which I, I
guess I'm confused, because GIS has no immediate additional space needed.
My point being that there's a lot of inconsistencies in the written material that you're
giving us with respects to dollar figures, which as I asked earlier to the Mayor, between
30 and 40 million in a presentation to us in early, this month as opposed to now and
including your written comments, and your comments this morning, Mr. Taylor are 40 or
$50 million, and that's what creates the problem for me. And so, help me understand
how we can rely on ... (change tape) .. . giving us if there's notably a lot of
inconsistencies.
MR. TAYLOR: Yeah, thank you for this opportunity, Mr. Chair. The first thing I want to
explain is that when engineers and planners do long term predictions there's usually a lot
of ranges, low ranges and high ranges, and medium, and what if this, and what if that.
And when you pull these numbers together they, they're usually almost unreadable, just
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matrices full of numbers. So, we try to simplify this for presentation in more of a general
discussion. We choose numbers to try to help the discussion.
In the case of the estimated space needs, these were, these were done very early to get a
ballpark figure of how much space do we need. Do we need 10,000 square feet and will
that grow to 20? Do we need 100,000 square feet and that will grow to a million. It was
meant to, for the space, the space needs assessment was meant to get us into the ballpark
and to start looking at what options fulfilled that. In this case, we identified that we need
about 25, 30,000, 25 or 30,000 square feet now, and about 80,000 square feet in the
future.
Because we're currently leasing in the David Trask Building, we also wanted to start
moving those people into something that the County owned. So, the actual leased space
gets added to the needed space, so that's where GIS comes in. So, these numbers are
very ballpark, and it was meant to identify what options can meet these ballpark
estimates.
The next numbers you saw from us were during our presentation when we were trying to
compare the One Main Plaza purchase to building a new building. So, the way we do
that is we took the known cost of purchasing One Main Plaza and compared it to the
lowest possible cost to build. And that was the 30 million dollar plus number that was
listed. And we did that to emphasize that even if the construction of a new building went
really well, we had no problems, there were no offsite infrastructural needs, we made a
very conservative building approach that was very utilitarian, there was no problems with
the public that we needed to do any extra work for, the lowest, the closest those numbers
could be would be the purchase versus a 30 million dollar building. And that was the
presentation we made to the Council saying this is the lowest the building could possibly
cost, and that's why I said 30 million plus.
In the numbers we gave you yesterday, the 40 million dollar number, we saw the Council
was really rethinking this idea of buying One Main Plaza and looking towards building a
building. So, we tried to put together some numbers to say if are going to build a
building, how much do we need to budget for in FY '06, and how much do we need to
budget for in FY '07. So, now we don't use the low number anymore. Now we have to
start assuming that, okay, we're really going to build this, we really have to finish the
design, we really have to do an environmental assessment and deal with all those issues,
we really have to mitigate the construction, and now the low cost estimate is
inappropriate to use for a budgetary cost estimate.
So, that's where the 40 million or more medium range number came from. It could
actually be much, much greater if all of a sudden we need to replace sewer lines, and
water lines, and State highways, because we have to put in traffic lights and do road
improvements. As everyone knows, when you start building a project and you go
through the permitting and entitlement process, all sorts of different comments and, and
needs come out.
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So, that's the reason for these varying numbers. This is very common in, in infrastructure
planning projects. We do a ballpark estimate first, and as you keep moving through and
making your decisions, you keep narrowing and having better and better numbers that are
necessary to make the decision in front of you. And that's the reason for the, the
inconsistencies in the numbers. There's just a wide range of numbers that we try to
simplify so that we can discuss them.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and thank you for that response, because that will bring me to my final
question in asking then why is that approach of getting specifics being presented to us for
the purchase of One Main Plaza, since this is your thrust? Your thrust is to give us as
much detailed information, and I think Ms. Anderson touched on it very, very, very well.
She pointed out specifically within the reports that we received a lot of the potential
issues that are being, we're going to be faced with, and you folks have yet to provide us
any real numbers as far as costs and overhead on the maintenance of this building, the
building One Main Plaza.
And there's multiple areas within the reports that are pointing out several items and
recommendations that, and repairs and modifications that need prompt attention, and yet,
you folks have, until today in asking for this purchase, have not specifically identified the
type of cost that would be associated in relieving us from those long term problems that
could be apparent if we don't take care of these things.
So, help me understand how we can rely on, when you put in your Section 2 of your
responses, engineering study, that there's no major issues to deal with, when you turn to
Page 13 in the mechanical report and they start telling you basically about the, number
one, air conditioning ventilation, corrosion cooling tower should be repaired to be prevent
a potential major failure in the future. There's significant corrosion in both towers, and
yet you have not specifically identified what you're going to do and the cost estimate to
address this issue. And yet, you cite to us in some document up front and center with
bold letters that there's no major problems to deal with, and yet we got to go dig into 104
pages before somebody can find something in small detail, and that's one of many that's
listed.
So, that's where the concern is, Mr., Mr. Taylor. So, if you, if you want the support of, of
the Members I'm hoping that you can provide consistency in your presentations on both
items, not just one that you want, and then the one that you really don't want provide
ambiguity to this body. Can you respond to, to the, the major components that will have
costs associated to them? And can you, at this point, update your recent responses of not
having a dollar amount? Can you replace that with dollar amounts at this time?
MR. TAYLOR: I do not have a dollar amount, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, it's 12:32. Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair, I just have one quick question.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: In your handout you gave us today about the options,
you're stating 40 to 50 million for demolishing and building a new building at, where the
Old Wailuku Post Office is. Fifty million dollars for an 80,000 square foot building
that's $625 a square foot. What do you base that on? Did you have a, did you speak with
a contractor? How, how did you come up with that figure? And I recognize it's not easy
to get a detailed figure, but, you know, we have to have something concrete to make our
decision on, and, you know, I've spoken to contractors that build commercial buildings,
so I have in my own mind what the cost per square foot should be. So, I'd like to know
why you've come up with this amount? What, what do you base it on?
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you, Mr., Ms. Anderson. The initial amounts were put together in the
Chris Hart and Associates study that was presented to Council February 2004. And they
looked at a number of different options, and did some cost estimates with the architects
and, and their cost estimators. We bumped those numbers up, because construction costs
are higher now than they used to be, and also from talking to the architects, they didn't
take into account the Government procurement process and the fact that the County doing
major construction projects is more expensive than a private entity.
So, we put some, we bumped those numbers up a little bit, and those are the basis of the
numbers that we see here. The Chris Hart and Associates numbers also did not take into
account any offsite improvements that were unknown at the time. For example, it may be
that a new building could put the existing water and sewer system just over that
threshold, or we may have to do major improvements in the streets for Maui Electric, or
for water, for sewer. There may be a traffic impact study that leads to the Department of
Transportation improvements. Things like that were not included.
So, we wanted to put in a kind of a range that encompassed a lot of these variables that
are just currently unknown when you go to build a new building, but the basis of the
square footage costs came from the architect and construction estimate in the Chris Hart
Study.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: For 800, for 80,000 square feet?
MR. TAYLOR: The report had a number of different options with different buildings of
different sizes, and it, the total cost of their concept was, I think, $89 million for a
number of buildings and parking structures. We took some piecemeals approach of
different structures they identified, and said to try to put them on an apples and apples
comparison to One Main Plaza, we tried to use some of the square footage costs and
general layout that they provided to try to give the Council and the public an apples and
apples comparison of some, of what it would cost to build something with roughly the
same square footage as One Main Plaza with 210 parking stalls.
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So, we felt that that was the best way to compare the relative value of the One Main Plaza
purchase.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, Mr. Chair, I, I'm like you, I mean, here we have the
assessment that we were given in the presentation, and we were told it would cost $30
million to construct an 80,00 square foot building. That's $375 a square foot. Now
we're being told that, that the only real option we have other than One Main Plaza is
going to cost us $625 a square foot. And, you know, without any details or substantiation
I'm having a real hard time having any confidence in these figures. And I'm sorry,
because I know that they've worked really hard on this, and I appreciate all their efforts,
but, you know, to make this kind of a, a major financial decision that really is going to
affect the future of the County and how we operate, I need, I need more facts than this,
not ballpark figures.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, the Chair is going to ask that we take our
lunch break, and I'd like to provide you with ample time to eat and take care of personal
business, however, with the task at hand, I'm going to ask you that reconvene this
meeting at 1:45. So, that would give you just over an hour to take care of your lunch and
personal needs. Members, is there any requirement for Mr. Taylor or Mr. Young or the
Managing Director's Office to be available after the recess? Is there any request for their
presence? Hearing none, thank you very much, Mr. Young, Mr. Taylor. Appreciate your
being here and making yourself available. Members, this Committee stands in recess
until 1 :45 .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

12:38 p.m.

RECONVENE:

1:53 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. We are reconvened. Members, are there any additional questions
or comments? The Chair will provide you one final opportunity as far as reference or
resource personnel. Mr. Taylor is still here. Mr. Regan is here. Seeing no request for
further discussion, Members, at this time the Chair will open it up with the intention of us
moving to decide on One Main Plaza's request. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one, my apologies, before you ... (inaudible) .. .I want to
ask a question first and if they cannot respond then it doesn't make sense for the resource,
but I was wondering if they may have already provided to you, as our Chairman, the
annual amount of dollars that we spend to lease property for County requirements? I
know this one is going to propose 720 if we lease, yeah, and again, yeah, and that's why,
you know, I'm sure there was a response, but I don't have it at my fingertips.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: There is a response. It's not totaled. I tried to total it up
real fast. It's the very last thing on the April 15th, the April 15th communication to us. If
Mr. Hokama ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What's your round number please, Ms. Anderson? I'm happy to
take your round number.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I got to add it up.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Oh, I thought you had it.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. No, but I'll do that right now. And, Mr. Chair, you
know, we just received something from Corp. Counsel.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and before I let you go on, Ms. Anderson, Mr. Hokama did have the
floor, and I know you were just helping us by getting us to that document, but I still
would like to recognize Mr. Hokama with the floor, and then I'll recognize you, Ms.
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you, Mr., Mr. Chairman. Because I was listening
intently to my colleagues questions, and I can tell you there are, I find it very responsible
of the Members asking the questions, and I listened intently to the responses, and
especially the, the response to the mitigation, not mitigation, migration plan, if, if that's
the appropriate term, Mr. Chairman.
And while I heard of considerations for Corporation Counsel and a few others, my
question to our resource people, if they can, is if that is not finalized the mi ... , migration
plan or the transfer plan, was it given thought that we would only have those that pay
rent, like, Section 8, CDBG, there is still, I think, an open question debate on whether or
not Water Department actually pay for the space here under the old system whereby
through their special funds they could pay a portion of rent at that time. And, again, I'm
not too sure what the official position would be of the Department or, or the County.
But that, was that given thought that those things would be placed at One Main Plaza to
offset the debt service, so that if that service was "X" dollars, and you subtract what
Section 8 would pay from Federal funds, CDBG from Federal funds, and all these others,
even Liquor Department, Liquor Control, subtract that. Then what you would offer us as
the net that service would be something that made some sense as, as a justification or
rationale why we should consider this opportunity for the purchase price.
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CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor, before I recognize you I'd like to recognize the Managing Director,
Mr. Regan, and if you'd like to defer your comments, then please I'll, I'll allow you to, to
make that judgment, sir.
MR. REGAN: Thank you. Good afternoon, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Good afternoon.
MR. REGAN: Good afternoon, Members. Actually, I, I will allow Mr. Taylor to expound on
that and provide detailed information regarding that, that request.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
MR. TAYLOR: Thank you for that question, Mr. Hokama. We, the first thing we looked at for
the migration plan was efficiency and use of space. We also looked at the issues you
brought up. Who, who can pay rent? CDBG, obviously, that was one of the, the items
that led us to believe they were a good choice because they can pay rent.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MR. TAYLOR: Liquor Control is sort of on a radar. Their lease in the David Trask Building is
not up for a few more years, so they're not, they're not going to move right away. The
Water Department, there are certainly some discussions about whether or not, you know,
they would be a good tenant over there. They, they are relocating only their Planning
Division, which is only about four or five people to the Hokama Building. I think it's
called the Hokama Building in Wailuku, and they were told that when that lease expires
they will be, that group will be going to One Main Plaza.
So, yes, we did think about who can help with the debt service and that is, that that has
been part of the ongoing discussions.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay, and, and my first question to, to the Chairman and, you know,
Ms. Anderson was able to give us a reference, but maybe you can just give us your best
response at this time of outside of One Main Plaza's consideration, if you can remind us
this afternoon or rein ... , reinform us of what the County is paying out for rental space?
Like, what, $600,000 a year? Okay. I think Ms. Anderson's rough calculation is about
550,000 in round numbers.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes. Oh, this is not your number?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, you know, I want to qualify that, because I'm using
a little tiny hand calculator, and I went through once and I got that figure, went through
twice I got 800,000. So, I'm doing it a third time.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, well, I, I just, you know, and, and what, if, if the
number is in between those two ranges, I think it's important to know what we are
already currently paying out in, in rental or lease dollars, because for me I'd like to, I, I
would take it in the bigger financial picture, since obviously the debt service of this
consideration will affect the total financial picture of the County. I, I would tend to look
at it in that manner also.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Taylor.
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Mr. Hokama, just looking at the lease schedule by department, which I
think also Ms. Anderson pointed out, I just really quickly look at who was leasing space
that might relocate to One Main Plaza, because that's really, I think, the core of that
question, and just really quick looking at who these departments are. It looks to me like
in the neighborhood of about $200,000 for the groups that could be relocated to One
Main Plaza.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh. Okay, and I know that, you know, we, we tend to want to
honor our agreements, but have you considered, if I may, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: You have the floor, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you. Have you looked at utilizing those options that are in
lease agreements to terminate earlier and relocating certain divisions or programs or
operations that would help offset any outlay of debt service for this consideration?
MR. TAYLOR: Chair, if I may? Thank you. Member Hokama that is a consideration that
we've taken into account, and we've looked at. I believe that in most, if not all of our
lease agreements that we have throughout the County, there's a provision contained
within the lease agreement, which states that if it's not funded, or it's based on funding as
provided by the Council, I'm not sure of the exact legal language that's, that's contained
within those particular lease agreement, but essentially it's based on whether or not the
funding is provided, so that is one mechanism of allowing us to get out of those lease
agreements.
So, you know, one of our goals is to obviously try to consolidate as much as we can into
our facility, so that we forego having to pay these lease payments, because obviously
we'd want to have, we'd want to have our operations in our own facilities, so that we
wouldn't have to incur those costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you very much for your response. Mr. Chairman,
thank you very much for my opportunity.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Anderson, any additional, I see you adding up, so I'll, I'll
defer readdressing you at this point.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I, Mr. Chair, I just wanted to have a chance to read what
we got from Corp. Counsel before we close off this session.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Staff has handed me a number of approximately 860,000 in
annual lease costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for that number, Mr. Chairman.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, thanks.
CHAIR KANE: And the Chair will just follow-up with another question. Is there a breakdown
between general fund and special funds, and how it correlates-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Good question.
CHAIR KANE: --to how the breakdown is since we're talking about CDBG getting Federal
allowances for paying their overhead with special funds supporting departments based on
their costs, and if they have annual costs associated with housing their Department
personnel that that could be a part of the costs associated with facility requirements? Is
there a breakdown that you folks have made for us?
MR. TAYLOR: We do not have a breakdown like that, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and, Members, that's something that if we are talking about self
sufficiency then let's, let's be consistent and say that all special funds that want to, don't,
that we don't want dependent on the general fund, then let's take it to where it's supposed
to be, and that's self sufficiency. And if they have requirements of personnel, etcetera,
that's funded through special funds, then let's look at their requirements for office space
as well. And that's something for maybe not today, but just keep in the front of your
minds. Any additional questions or comments to, excuse me, let's limit it to questions to
Mr. Regan or Mr. Taylor. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. We just received from Corp.
Counsel an estimate that they would need to expend 1.2 million in order to renovate One
Main Plaza for their use. So, is that 1.2 million included in the renovation cost that
you've already cited us?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Anderson, it is included.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, 1.4 and 1.2 that's 2.6. So, that really leaves basically
of the 375 that you cited for renovation, 1.4 is going to ADA, 1.2 for Corp. Counsel.
That leaves about a million dollars for other renovations?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And that would be used to effectuate the movement that
you've cited for '05, the movement to the building for '05? Or does that include beyond
that?
MR. REGAN: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Regan.
MR. REGAN: Thank you, Member Anderson. I, I believe your question is, is what will the
million dollars be used for, or the additional remaining funds will that be used for, and it
is anticipated that those funds will be used to do any additional improvements to the
facility for the other additional raw space, which will be utilized by or for County
operations as well as the various communications, upgrades, which are going to have to
be made within the building to allow us to have that kind of activity to our current
network and system.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, is that, is that for 2005? What I'm trying to do ...
MR. REGAN: It is for 2005, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. So, then in 2006, we're anticipating that there'll be
another 9,000, approximately 9,100 square feet available for use by the County?
MR. REGAN: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And will there be funds necessary, what I'm trying to get
at, gentlemen, is as we take on more office space in the building will there be more
renovation costs needed as these years and square footage accumulate?
MR. REGAN: I'm going to let Mr. Taylor answer that question.
MR. TAYLOR: Ms. Anderson, the, the intent is to finish all of the raw space in the building in
2005. And any future movements would be into spaces that were already improved that
have carpet and walls and air conditioning and lights. So, there wouldn't be any of these
construction type improvements. Any improvements would be limited to furniture and
partitions and things like that.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. For, for Corp. Counsel, they're anticipating using
Suites 101 and 175; is that correct? For a total square footage of 70, 7,450?
MR. TAYLOR: I, I believe that's correct.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And they, and they're going to need, for this 7,450 square
feet, they're going to need 1.2 million. Can you tell me are these suites completely clear
bones or is that what they're ...
MR. TAYLOR: It's raw.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's raw?
MR. TAYLOR: Yes, Ms. Anderson, the suite they have is, is completely raw. Concrete floors,
the walls aren't finished. There are not air conditioning ducts yet, but some of the other
suites have some of those improvements. Some have air conditioning ducts, some have
some walls finished. So, the Corporation, the suite that has been identified as the most
likely place for Corporation Counsel is as raw a space as exists in the building. So, that
would need the most improvements. But it's also the only size, suite of that size. It's by
far the largest available contiguous space in the building at this time.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I see. And then everything else is smaller space and not in
a raw condition?
MR. TAYLOR: There are a number of other smaller unfinished spaces. Some are raw, some are
partially improved, some are fully improved. So, the intention of this money is to finish
all the raw spaces.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: All the raw spaces. That additional one million that we
just mentioned will take care of all that?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions for the Managing Director's Office? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: The $860,000 annual lease costs, these are properties not
only Wailuku but different parts of Maui?
MR. TAYLOR: That's correct, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. And for the Wailuku property it
would be around $52,000?
MR. TAYLOR: I'm sorry, can you repeat your question?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: For the Wailuku area.
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MR. TAYLOR: The, the leases in the David Trask Building, according to that list that you're
looking at, I, I just added it in my head, and that seemed to be about $200,000 a year.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Yeah, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions, Members? Hearing none. Managing Director, Mr.
Taylor, thank you very much. Appreciate your presence and participation in providing
responses. Okay. Members, to the task at hand, Members, we have a proposal by your
Chair to delete the One Main Plaza and it basically came off of our first page of revenues
that kind of sparked our discussion. It's located throughout. So, Members, it's not with
reference to any particular page, but it is the largest single issue that we have before us.
Your Chair's recommendation has been to delete it. Are there any requests for an
adjustment to that, for that proposal? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I, as I, as I stated earlier I do support the inclusion of
One Main Plaza. I had an opportunity to also visit with my husband, who I respect very
much, because he's been in business for so many years. He's really looked at this issue
at length. We've discussed it ... (change tape) .. . I respect his opinion, and he believes
that for all the reasons that have been previously talked about that even though there may
be some unknowns, it is a prudent business decision. He worked with major
corporations. I mean he and I ran our own business.
The way I'm approaching this is as a business decision. And for all of the reasons, which
I'm not going to rehash, I do support the inclusion of One Main Plaza, and I do respect
the other Members' opinions who may disagree with that, but I believe that if we're
going to continue to attract and keep employees, if we're going to move forward and
there is an immediate crunch for space, I think that to keep morale up, to keep us moving
along and to avoid costs that, at this point in time, are not known, because we don't have
a proposal before us for engineering studies and what other things might be involved with
tearing down the Old Post Office building, or looking at other sites, that too is an
unknown.
I, I would rather go with something that at least we have a reasonable degree of certainty
of what we're looking at. So, I'm going to be supporting that, and I, as I said before, my
husband has a great deal of experience in business over many, many years. I respect his
education, and when somebody from Harvard tells me that this is a wise business
decision, I'm going to be a dutiful wife and listen, but I'm also going to look at it from
the perspective that other people who've come before this body have also raised similar
issues that I've spoken about privately, and I just would ask the other Members to please
consider this as something that we can support. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. I also would support putting it
back in. I know that at the onset of this or last week, it seems like the days go by so
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quickly, that I really hadn't, wasn't fully supportive of this. And since then I have been
thinking and listening and reading about various things, and what I want to look at in
particular, because I, we've rehashed some of the things about parking and who's moving
where, and whatever.
But just from a purely, our County standpoint I want to take people back to the year
2000, in fact, I think it was 1999, when the Council, at the time, made a decision to lease
space that we needed very desperately. And that space ended up being our current
Service Center at Maui Mall. And as you recall, Members, we talked about the lease rent
annual for that is $275,000 that's in the budget. I asked some questions and got some,
some responses, but it cost $113,000 plus to do the design for the renovation of that
already existing shell. The construction was $1.398 million, for a total of 1.5 million to
do the, the renovation. Our annual cost is 275,000.
To date, with the rental and the design and construction costs, we have spent $2,886,643.
And at the end of the lease, which I think is a ten-year lease, and I wasn't able to verify
this, but I think it was a ten-year lease, we will have spent with construction money $4.2
million on a space, and should we decide not to be there anymore, we will not recoup
any of that money. That is just down the toilet as far as I'm concerned.
I also looked at, asked the question about how many square feet are in this section, and
it's 13,000, a little over 13,000 square feet. There are 83 employees, the public space is
about 25 percent or about 3,400 square feet. If we look at the cost of that, the cost of the
lease divided by, let's see, yeah, the cost of the lease at the end of ten years plus the
construction divided by the square feet, we get a cost of $323.00 per square foot.
If you take One Main Plaza at the cost of acquisition plus improvements at 14.25 million,
and that's the number I'm using, so if that's incorrect please let me know, divided by the
80,062 square feet, the cost comes out to $178.00 per square foot. If I'm looking just at
numbers, and what it cost to build things, and what I'm hearing out there, not from what I
heard in the Chamber, what I hear outside about what it cost to build commercial
properties, it's running $200.00 plus per square foot. And based on just these kinds of
numbers, you know, I will support the purchase of One Main Plaza, because I don't think
we can build anything, even if we could have it built, and we could start today and just
pay for a building that's empty or whatever, I don't think we can build it for this kind of
price.

Secondly, if we don't do this our option to me is to wait. To have everybody wait until
we do have our own building. I do not support spending millions of dollars in lease rent
to somebody else. That to me is a, is a waste of taxpayers dollars. So, I think our, we
only have two options. Either to buy this or not to buy it and don't move anybody. We
just let our employees continue to work in the conditions that they're working in, and
we'd be really careful about what kind of expansion we're requesting or that we're
approving, and go forward from there.
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Of course, this is not a perfect building, but, you know, given, given the, the numbers I
just kind of ran through, I think we'd have to take that chance. And even if it cost more
to do the renovations, another two or four million dollars, to me we're still way ahead of
the game. So, for those reasons, Mr. Chair, I will support the purchase of One Main
Plaza.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Other discussion, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, Chairman, if you would please.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I will be the first to say that I made a strong argument with the
Mayor, who at one time had only con ... , well, I shouldn't say the only, he was at that
point just considering leasing space from One Main Plaza. And in my rough calculations
of what we have been outlaying in County funds, I thought that at best a lease to purchase
option made very good financial sense. And so, I share that, because I, I want the record
to be clear that I did my part to, and I take my responsibility fairly of how maybe this
budget consideration is before all of the nine Members this afternoon.
I made an argument with the Mayor, in a discussion manner, not argument, why I thought
it made good sense for us to at least pursue that opportunity and, of course, at that time I
was asking him to consider a purchase price of about $9 million because of my
understanding of what improvements I thought was necessary to get that building up to
acceptable level of service. Well, it's costing us a little more, but I still believe, Mr.
Chairman, with all respect to your recommendation, that it still makes very good sense
for us to consider it this afternoon.
I think one of the greatest options that the people allow us to have should we go forward,
and it becomes a time when that service, cash flow becomes even tighter and more
critical to the long term health of this County, the option of liquidation and disposal of
County assets to recoup financial resources of this County, to me is very viable and is a
very good tool for this County to exercise if, at that point in time, it makes the best sense,
where we could offset some of the net debt service that will still be required with this
consideration.
I for one take into account the current situation of our employees. You know, many of us
have walked the floors. We know what it looks like. But for me, you know, one of the
interesting aspects of asking you to consider this option, Members, this afternoon is what
is the first thing you see when you walk in the second floor lobby, and you look at
Department of Finance? At one time, you would see clear windows, employees waiting
to serve the public. What do you see now? Boxes and boxes of files. Cannot, you hardly
can see the employees anymore.
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Obviously, times have changed. The good of this County has changed. Requirements of,
of service have changed. You know, some of the old folks in the Asian mentality say,
you know, how you keep your house is how you do your work. That's why if it's a
cluttered house, you have a cluttered mind, and you lead a cluttered road. Well, that may
not be true with this County, but for me, I believe we are at this difficult point in time,
when we're going to, we are going to be required to make a hard decision, and I, and I'm
agonizing over it, because it's a lot of money, and I'm sure for all of my colleagues it's a
hard decision too, and not to be taken lightly.
But I would say I cannot do nothing knowing the situation we are in. I wish I had the
ability to stop the clock and move five years forward immediately and get, our annexes
built, and able to serve our community and our employees. But with that not being
realistic, One Main Plaza for me, still makes good financial sense, and I hope my
colleagues will, as I appreciate your positions, Members, that you can appreciate mine,
and that you know I'm thinking of the County's welfare just as much as you do. But I
just ask that you consider that final option that we do have. If bought, we are not
required to keep it. We always have our ability of liquidation and disposal in the future if
we see fit to reduce that service.
So, I just ask that you think about that and, again, whatever we decide, when the time
comes I will be in full support of the Committee's position to move forward. Thank you,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Further comments? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you very much, Chair. Chairman, I greatly appreciate
your position, and I think you brought up a lot of good issues. You know, I was on the
fence with this one from the start. Mostly conflicted with do we do something now, or do
we wait. You know, we've heard all of the concerns regarding the expenses that will
come with this purchase if that is the will of this body as well as the long term potential if
we look at purchasing the area where the Old Wailuku Post Office is. But the fact
remains, materials and labor costs are going to be high, and one way or another, we're
going to be spending the taxpayer's dollars on something.
Looking over the long term, we have a lot of other CIP concerns in our communities,
such as the Kahului Wastewater Treatment Plant, which will, which is something that has
to be done as well, and we're talking about safety and health. And that's going to cost in
the millions, three digit millions. So, we're looking at three to four hundred million
possibly. The Fire stations in Kaunakakai and Haiku, and now we have a multitude of
other concerns. That's just to name a few.
And this is just one situation where we're dealing with the health and morale of our
workers as well and to provide the best service possible for our community. It's almost
like we're, we are in a no win situation here, Mr. Chair. I think the concerns are valid
about the cost today for repair of One Main Plaza. We don't have any ownership of land.
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And, of course, there's questions arising about the building itself, and it's condition.
We're looking at about roughly a 15, 16 year old building. And then there's the issue of
can the County maintain the building? When you look at this building right here, all
valid concerns. Well, what do we do? Do we do nothing, or do we do something?
So, with One Main Plaza we do have the option if we go that way, to get out of a lease,
and also it helps the County to become compliant in areas that we weren't before. And, if
part of the migration plan includes putting departments that can get funding from the
Federal Government or assistance, we can offset the rent there. And it's not, this is not
the perfect plan. If One Main Plaza isn't, then what is?
So, with reluctance I will support One Main Plaza, with reservations. Basically, the
reservations is a statement about the potential cost that we may incur down the road. But
at the same time we have to do something otherwise I, I don't see what the purpose is for
us being in Government if we don't do something to address the pressing need. Thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is a tough decision for all
of us to make, because we're making, basically I consider this a policy decision that
we're making in a very short period of time, in a manner that I don't feel fairly addresses
all of the issues in front of us. There's lots of missing information, and I think when we
make a decision like this that has long term ramifications for the public and for our
employees and for the bottom line of, of the County, we need to have all the facts, so that
we're making a truly informed decision. Excuse me. And, unfortunately, I don't think
we have all the facts.
I know that we need the space. You know, I've been in this building myself for eight
years, and lucky enough to be on the eighth floor where we're not crammed in like many
of the other offices are. But a decision like this, I think we need more time. I think we
need more information. I think we need to look at the long term ramifications, and we
need to look at our options.
And, you know, two years ago what, maybe three years ago, we were presented with the
option of moving the County seat to Waiko Road, and that idea didn't fly very far. And
here we are almost three years later, and we're, we're given this, you know, do or die
decision right now. I would have much preferred to have had this come before the
Council in a committee, so we could have really ferried out all the details. I'm not
comfortable with some of the estimates that we've been given. I'm not all confident that
it is a cost effective move for us to make.
You know, the fact is we're not going to have full use of this building for quite some
time, and there is space in the building for offices that are cramped right now to move in,
to move in under a lease. I know that's not optimum, but none of the choices we have

- 81 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

right now are optimum. And if we could take some time to discuss this further, look at
all the options. We've got property that we already own that is under utilized. And to me
that's just not a cost effective way to use the taxpayers dollars.
So, I reluctantly cannot support this. I would like another shot at it. They say they've got
another buyer in the wings, but everybody that's selling property tells you that. So, I, I
can't, I can't consider that. The building has had less than full occupancy since the day
it's opened. So, there's no reason for me to believe that it's going to be snatched up
tomorrow if we don't take it. And my concerns with the parking, my concerns with the,
the unknown mechanical upgrades we have to do to the building, the fact that we're
sharing space with commercial tenants, excuse me, constrains us to a certain extent on to
how we can use this building.
So, no matter how you look at it, it's not an optimum choice for us to be making right
now. And, you know, for that reason I, I can't support it in, in this budget session. Thank
you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Further discussion, Members? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. This is one of the, I guess, the most
difficult decision that I've, you know, got to do as a Council person here. And, you
know, after listening to the Mayor, talk this morning in regards to cramped in the various
offices of this County building as well as some of the citations, but the violations that we
do have in this County facility. You know, it made me stop and think. You know, how
do you get more space for our employees? Yeah, One Main Plaza is a good location.
But, again, given the timeframe to make a decision on such an important issue, two
months is not enough time. I don't know if we look at all of the various options and, you
know, with the proper numbers to back up those options, in regards to a facility that we
all can be happy with.
When I first came to the Council there were presentations made by a group in regards to
this campus here. That was two years ago, two and half, two years three months, and,
you know, if we knew that we were going to be in this condition today, why didn't we do
any planning at that time? Proper planning. For me, maybe those departments that are
on special fund to One Main Plaza would create some vacancies in this building here. I
don't know how much space we're going to gain, but at least give us some time to
properly plan for expansion.
Reading the engineering report this building is 16 years old. In a few years, we're going
to be looking at a major maintenance replacement in regards to the mechanical facilities
for that building. Up front, yeah, it's going to cost us at least $50 million, but on the long
run, how much more are we going to be expending for that particular building?
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In the beginning, when I first got into this Council, I was advocating then, eh, because we
leased Old Wailuku Post Office, why don't we buy that thing or fix it, so that we can
move some of our employees into that building. But nothing was done. So, for me, if we
need to lease space at One Main Plaza to continue this discussion, to properly plan for the
facilities here in Maui, for Maui County, and its employees, give us the time.
So, for me, it's hard to support this acquisition at this time. I, I, I just need more time.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further discussion, Members on this item?
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. I think in the last few hours, I
think if you take a look at me I've aged five years. This has indeed been, been a very
difficult decision, because of the major implications to purchase of this particular
building has on the future of Maui County. I continue to, to hold my own concerns.
I continue to share my issues of the lack of the structural inspection of the building versus
its visual inspection. I still have my own concerns about the, the overhead cost that we
will have to deal with that we're not, perhaps at this point, aware of. I'm still concerned
about the life of the equipment cost that, that takes care of One Main Plaza. I'm still
concerned about the need of more specific, Members, that could be consistent with the
actual purchase of One Main Plaza.
And I can still understand the need of Administration to continue to ask us to purchase
this building primarily because of the need of the employees that work in less than
desirable quarters. This has been a difficult decision for me, and like Member Pontanilla,
I would like more time to consider the purchase of One Main Plaza, but for now I'm not
able to make that decision. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Any further discussion, Members? Okay. Members,
hearing none, the Chair has made his proposal. The Chair will stand on his proposal of
not purchasing One Main Plaza. And I'll just take a moment and try to be brief on my
comments.
I'm concerned about the representations about the immediate, immediate needs of this
building. I've basically concluded that we're being put into the position of crisis
management for space needs. I have a concern that there's a representation of 10,000
feet for the Council, for the Office of Council Services, and for the County Clerk when
this was never, never made a formal issue and discussion, and it represents approximately
40 percent of the need that is represented by the Administration and their additional space
need requirements.
Further, the Corporation Counsel's desire to move out of the building, I believe is a, in
my opinion, not a good choice and not a functional, I don't think it would be functional
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or the effective way for us to continue conducting the business of the County by having
that arm of our Government detached from the needs of the Legislative Branch as well as
the Administrative Branch. I can understand it being off the ninth floor, but I cannot
understand how it can be placed somewhere else.
And quite frankly, the crisis that has been portrayed to us was not presented to us, as I
can recall, in any of the previous State of the County Addresses, or in any of the
messages to this body with respects to this Department, and that it came down this year.
And if you look at the numbers, they're ask, they're asking for more than double, over
100 percent increase. And, in fact, it's about 170 percent increase in space for needs.
Now how it got to that without having no discussion about it prior to this, raises a major
eyebrow, raises a major concern for me.
I had my concerns about the information that's been provided to us and the
inconsistencies as I've stated earlier. And I agree with the comments that were made
earlier. Where is all the planning? We know that we have the difficult position of having
a five year lease with a five-year extended lease for the Maui Mall Service Center.
Unfortunately, that was a necessary evil, if you will. We had to. Look at where we were
before that down at the swimming pool area, deplorable conditions, and that's why we
had to make that move. Because, again, there was poor planning over a long period of
time.
So, we had to do that. Unfortunately, since we've made that decision to have that lease,
we have made, taken no steps whatsoever, as you can hear, as you've listened, and I've
listened very carefully. Within this migration plan there is no discussion whatsoever
about the Service Center being relocated after the five year with the additional five years.
Again, no plan.
We have been told that this discussion on the purchase of this building, I believe, from
the comments from the Mayor this morning, and I may be wrong, but from what I
deducted that the purchase of this building started last September. And here we are now
with probably the most major decision as many of you have cited. If you look at your
CIP, you'll note that there are no expansion of our facilities, and have, never had any
expansion of our administrative functions and facilities for a six year window. In other
words, there's no plan.
So, if the One Main Plaza is the way out then you will definitely not see any additional
plans for later for our growth. Meantime, we're in a 32 year old building, and we're
looking at buying a 16-year old building that, as I've termed before, is going to be a high
maintenance building folks, I can assure you of that. And we're going to get nickeled
and dimed to death. It's going to be a very difficult one, and in the end if we do decide to
sell One Main Plaza, if we move forward with the purchase, if it is a benefit for us to sell
it, then we're right back to square one where we will have to build a new facility to
accommodate the anticipated growth of this County. However, it's not there.
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The other concern I have, which makes it even more of a crisis situation is, is there a plan
"B" in front of us, if we don't purchase this? I can tell you what I've sensed is a major
scramble to figure out how are we going to get through this if we don't get One Main
Plaza. And the last several months it was decided that we were going to go scramble for
this building, make it work, and if it doesn't work, let's not do anything, because nothing
has been presented in, in the event that it doesn't go through.
So, I've had difficulties, Members, with supporting the purchase. Yes, it's difficult. Yes,
it's going to be costly if we don't move forward with the One Main Plaza purchase, but
you know what, I think the administrative function of this County needs to be looked at
just as much as your fire, your police, all the necessary growth that we're going to
anticipate to keep this County moving. And it's unfortunate that it hasn't been taken into
account, just looking at flying by the seat of our pants and hope it works.
So, Members, the Chair will not be supporting it. But providing any additional comment
... (change tape) . .. if not the Chair will call for the vote. Okay. Members, as far as the
Chair's proposal to not buy, since that's been consistent with the approach on, on the rest
of the, rest of the document, since there is a proposal to adjust back to the original I will
call for the vote on the Chair's proposal that is before us as a recommendation. All in
favor say aye.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: My question was because you asked for a proposal to be
offered initially, which was the one that I offered, I'm confused about what we're
actually voting on. Are we voting to support your proposal, or are we voting on the
measure that you asked me to introduce, which is to reintroduce this measure into the
budget?
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
recognize yours.

Thank you, Member Johnson, and the Chair apologizes.

We'll

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And so, therefore, Members, the vote will be to the purchase of One Main
Plaza. All in favor say aye for the purchase.

AYES:

Councilmembers
Johnson,
Vice-Chair Hokama.

CHAIR KANE: Those saying no.
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NOES:

Councilmembers Anderson, Carroll, Mateo, Pontanilla, and
Chair Kane.

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's have a roll call. Member Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: No.
CHAIR KANE: Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBERMATEO: No.
CHAIR KANE: Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: No.
CHAIR KANE: Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Aye.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair votes no. Okay. Members, I believe we have four noes, excuse me,
four ayes, and five noes. Okay. The motion fails.
PROPOSAL FAILED.
RESULT:

Retain deletion of the purchase of One Main Plaza, as noted in the
Chair's proposal.

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, at this time the Chair's going to call for a recess, and we'll
reconvene at 3:00 o'clock. .. (gavel) ...
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RECESS:

2:45p.m.

RECONVENE:

3:04p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . (gavel) .. . Okay. Members, we're reconvened. Thank you, Members. The
Chair recognizes the difficulty of that decision, and the beat goes on. Let's move on to,
as we were proceeding through operations, Members, the Chair would like to continue on
that track. Are there any objections to that?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair would direct your attention to Page 10 of 29, under the Department
of Parks and Recreation. Members, looking at the clock, let me give you, let, let your
Chair give you his anticipated schedule for this evening. First and foremost, the Chair
will let you know that in his opinion working with Staff we are behind. Okay, and so, the
Chair is going to ask that you folks work tonight after dinner. And the Chair will also
suggest that we work for two sessions this evening.
So, I'll give you anticipated schedule. I'd like to go until 5:00. Recess at 5:00 and come
back at 6:30. Go from 6:30 to approximately 8:30, break for a little bit, and then come
back and do a final session before we wrap it up. And the Chair would not like to stay in
here later than 10:30, quarter to elevenish. So, I'd like to be out of here by 11:00,
because we still have tomorrow to go. Okay. Members, so that's what the Chair
anticipates. We'd like to have you move. If we do move quicker this afternoon, then I
would suggest that we can maybe cut back on that final leg of this evening, and we go
with one solid session this evening, and, and break for the evening and come back. But
right now, we're not as, where we were scheduled or anticipating to be.
So, I know, I took two minutes out of our time to say that, but at least you folks know
where we're at, and where the Chair intends to go. And, again, I will, as much as you
want to comment and expound and explain, Members, I'll ask you to, to apply some level
of restraint, and that we're trying to move through this thing. If there is consensus, we
move it forward. If there is any one objection then I will not recognize additional
discussion. That will take place later on when we go through our final rounds, when we
decide on each of the items as the come.
That being said, Members, we are under Line 462, the Administrative Program for the
Department of Parks and Recreation. There have been two adjustments as stated. Are
there any requests for adjustments in this area? Hearing none, Members, under Grants
and Disbursements, we have the Workline Program and the adjustment, which is a, which
is an area in the ordinance, so we made the necessary adjustment to reflect the correct
amount of 207,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, question.
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CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you can just help me this afternoon. $83,000 means what in
reality? Two more Worklines for us, three more Worklines for us? Chairman, I'm
happy. We can move on to the Budget Director. She might be able to respond.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we have a response from Ms. Morrison. I believe we had an adjusted
document that explained that. So, we'll have that revisited momentarily. Other than ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry. I, I, my reference is off here. I had a suggestion
or a request for six new ocean safety officers.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Not here.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, that will be under aquatics.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And that's coming up momentarily.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. KOLLER: The 103 in the Administration Program, the 83 and the next grant and the
20,000 all are related. What happened is that where it was put in the budget ordinance it
needed to be split between the two categories. And so, we've adjusted in accordance
with the, I think it was the Deputy Director's memorandum.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. And then Mr. Hokama's question was specifically what the
$83,000 represents as far as the Workline.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, that meant, you know, we would have-CHAIR KANE: Three lines, four lines.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- three lines, yeah, what that. ..
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, we'll get that answer to you, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: We're moving on, Members, Lahaina Restoration Foundation. There's an
additional 20. The Chair's recognized the 120. Any adjustments in this area? Hearing
none, moving on. The last item on Page 10, Line 479, Aquatics Program. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, I'm going to request that we
fund six new ocean safety officers. The amount is 190,000, and this is for a 12-month
allocation. I didn't reduce it by six or eight months as we had been doing. And the
reason for this is we had many safety officers testify during our, our budget hearings that
they're understaffed, they want to go to a ten hour day. This would allow for that. They
also feel there's a great need for another lifeguard tower at Hookipa Beach, and frankly I
think that it's a real safety issue that we provide funding to allow for that. So, I'm
requesting that, that we fund six new ocean safety officers.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the request is for the adjustment. Are there any objections to
this.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. There's an objection. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Thank you. And maybe Member Anderson can answer
this. The six new ocean safety officers that would be working ten hours a day, that would
be ten hours four days a week?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right that's what they want eventually to be able to
accomplish. And whether or not the, that adjustment will be made immediately, if, if we
were to fund a new tower in Hookipa, an additional tower in Hookipa, they would need to
have more officers for that too.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I'm going to adjust the amount, Mr. Chairman, because
I know, I know when I figured this 190,000 it was for a 12-month allocation.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, adjusted would be 95,000, Members, for six months if we, if you
agree with the Chair's proposed six month for expansion. So, half of 190, 95, Members.
So, that's on the table, Members. I did hear an objection to the 190 at 12 months, and it
can be revised to reflect six months. Are there objections to putting it there now?

- 89-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I object to the, the addition of personnel.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there has been an objection. Therefore, it won't move
forward, and, Ms. Anderson, just prepare for our final round. Thank you. Okay.
Members, we're going to Page 11.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could I ask Mr. Hokama if, are you just on principals
objecting to anything that's an additional position?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: In general, yes, but for this, you know -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: For this round?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: -- for this round, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Page 11 of 29, Parks Maintenance Program. Members, have
acknowledged during our first round ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had stuff for aquatics, so ...
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. I'm sorry. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, that's why I asked the question, because I wanted to
know if I should maybe save my breath for the next round. I'm requesting a pump
mechanic helper at 15,000 for a six-month salary. And also an adjustment for the sewer
water fee weight increase that was not included. Members, we had a response in the
PR02, and Exhibit F on that, that talked about the breakdown of what the additional costs
would be based on the sewer and water fee increases.
So, I, I broke it out for aquatics being the $19,340 for the, for those rate increases. And if
we don't increase it in the long run, then that can be eliminated.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, the proposal is on the table. Are there any objections to the, first,
pump mechanic helper six month salary?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 15,000.
CHAIR KANE: Of $15,000 for six months.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have an objection. Next item, sewer water fee rate increase.
Objections, Members? We have consensus.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. There is an addition 19,340 under the aquatics programs. Staff will
make the necessary adjustment. Anything further, Member Tavares, in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And it is noted in Member Tavares' submittal of changes. Okay.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Members, moving on to Park Main ...
MS. KOLLER: Excuse me.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, Ms. Koller.
MR. KOLLER: Can we get the amount, the exact amount on that, please?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, the number would be sewer/water fee rate increase $19,340. And, Ms.
Tavares, if you can work with Staff to have it placed wherever it needs to be placed. If
it's not here, we'll work to get it placed.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
response was.

No, it's here, because I already broke it out from their

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. 19340. Okay. Page 11, Members, Park
Maintenance Program, Line 486. The body has acknowledged the 2,817,271 figure. Are
there any proposed adjustments?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm not convinced that the 300,00 for tree trimming is, has been
justified, so I, I have objection to that amount at this time. I'm not convinced by
testimony that that's the right number.
CHAIR KANE: Is there a proposal, Mr. Hokama, putting forward at this time?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would cut it in half myself until they can come up with a plan to
just. .. , to explain to us how they plan to utilize the funds?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: They just came up with a number.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, are you finished?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I can look for it, but I think we got actually an amount
of 540,000 or 520,000. So, I think this tree trimming was the public trees, and the other
tree trimming is the park trees. So, there is a breakdown that was provided by the Parks
Department in one of their responses that I think fully explains it, because I was getting,
like, all nuts too, because one guy says 300, or two people say 300,000, the next one says
500,000. It's, like, get your act together. But I think it's which trees were and that might
help to clarify who meant what.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama, any final comments before I put on the table your
$150,000 adjustment to bring down the number? And then the Chair will ask for
consensus on your proposal. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And I'm, and I'm happy that Mr. Tavares with her re ... , recalling
ability to mention that. And that is why if we're talking about the roadside and, and the
shoulder work, then I would have thought we would have put that in a more appropriate
part of the budget, and not under park maintenance. Park maintenance I had always
viewed it that that would be the Park's trees and the Park's program, and when I saw this,
I'm going, hmm-hmm. And that was not what I had understood in that testimony
regarding the concern of liability on County streets and, and roadways and shoulders.
And I thought that would be under the Highway Beautification account if we would have
put money for that program in that area. And so, again, I, I, that is how I would have, I
was understanding it, but if I'm wrong, I'm happy to be corrected. Budget Director.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if you will.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, actually the Parks Department would love to
have the money in that Highway Beautification Fund, but every year we seem to use it all
up for abandoned vehicles.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I'm not talking about just the, the beautification, you know,
but if we were going to add to take care of the comment that I heard from a Arbor
Committee, Arbor's Committee member, it was about taking care of the liability on
County roadways and shoulders. And so, I, I would be willing to consider some fund ... ,
some funding support in the highway beautification account earmarked for that specific
use, and not in the Park's maintenance account.
MS. MORRISON: I think the problem is that we don't have en ... , we have 700,000 anticipated
in the Highway Beautification Fund for '06. It seems like it's '07 already; doesn't it?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
MS. MORRISON: '06, and a good chunk of that is being allocated to the, well 3 out of the $5
that goes in, that each mem ... , each car pays into that, or each car's owner pays is, is
allocated to abandon vehicles and scrap metal and those sorts of things. So, the account
doesn't leave very much left, and then even that usually gets absorbed by the abandoned
vehicle costs.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm talking about add ... , adding-MS. MORRISON: Adding more to it?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:

adding money specifically to take care of the tree ...

MS. MORRISON: I don't think we can add to that particular account?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: We cannot?
MS. MORRISON: It's a, a special. .. (inaudible) .. .fund.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I understand that, understand that.
MS. MORRISON: I think ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Excuse me. Excuse me. We have a tape going. We're verbatim, and so
I need you both to speak one at a time.
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MS. MORRISON: I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, what I would ask is I'm happy to defer. I can wait to the
next round, but if the appropriate Staff may, may review that, the comment on whether or
not we can add some general funds in the Beautification Account with this special
provision that it will be used to take care of the, the concern of the Tree Trimming
Program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Staff, you take note of that. Okay. Thank you very much.
Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Mr. Chair. The original breakdown of the $300,000
came out of my Park's Committee, and basically it was from the Arborists. They showed
a breakdown, and that was part of my committee work. So, that was the recommendation
and that is what we based this particular request on. That's all I can say.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you, Ms. Johnson, for verifying the information and where
it came from. Any adjustments in this area, Members? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No adjustment. I found the reference. It's PR2, questions
Nos. 14 and 15, and the response is dated April 21st. Just a note that the Arborist
Committee is within this division of the Parks Department and is responsible for the
public trees besides the Park's trees. But there's a full explanation in that response.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, are we ready to proceed? Any adjustments in this area, Park
Maintenance Program? Okay. No proposals. Let's move forward. We're in Parks and
Recreation, Planning and Development Program. Any adjustments, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I'm not sure if this would be the appropriate place to
add it, but on my Item No. 12, I had added to Parks Planning Budget, but I'm not sure if
it's part of the CIP, where a lot of times, you know, I, I'm just not certain if this should be
in this category, or if it should be underneath this particular section that we're reviewing
right now. But I had requested to add monies, $50,000 for planning the Kamaole Point
Building Replacement. And I had thought it would either be under CIP, it may be under
this area. I'm just unsure of where to place this money. But that was my request because
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of the public testimony with seeing whether or not that building could be kept or it had to
be replaced.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair's comment after hearing your, your comments, Ms. Johnson, would,
it seems it would be better suited in CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Because we're looking at a building and the life of the building. And so, I think
it's better suited in CIP.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, we'll get to that point, Member Johnson. So, make your note so
when we get there you can provide us with additional comment. Any, again, adjustments
under Planning and Development? Moving on to Recreational Support Services.
Member Tavares, I think you had something there.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I do. Besides Park's Maintenance Superintendent for
six months, which I know is going to have an objection, I have the waste, waste water,
water and sewer fee increases for this program at $156,860.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the proposal. Are there any objections to the
consideration or the proposal?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just personnel.
CHAIR KANE: And, again, forgive me, the fee increase figure, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: 156,860.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And the Park Maintenance Superintendent.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Was 25,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we got the waste sewer fee increase first. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have consensus Members.
Maintenance Superintendent six months, 25,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Object.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have an objection. We'll need to come back. Any additional
adjustments under Recreational Support? Moving on to PALS, Members. Moving on to
Waiehu Golf Course Golf Fund. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I also have there the last of the sewer and water fee rate
increase amounts. And for the golf course it's $850.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, proposal.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
Moving on.

There's no objection.

Let's move forward with the $850 figure.

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry, Member Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. Yeah, I still have golf stuff.
CHAIR KANE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
section?

Are you just going to go right straight through the golf

CHAIR KANE: Under Waiehu Golf Course Golf Fund. Member Tavares, you have additional
there?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, in their, in their budget details they have a dump truck
at $37,500. I would recommend putting this in the Equipment Bond. And also add their
other equipment that they re ... , requested, and it's in one of their communications. A
top dresser for $14,000, a greens mower for $29,000, and three utility carts for a total of
$20,000. It was a hundred, that will give $100,000 in equipment costs for the golf
course. And I would, you know, I just figured the debt service of six percent, and so it
came out to $6,000 for debt service if these do go into the Equipment Bond.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have the equipment
informed by Staff that we are moving a little bit fast,
being added. So, the Chair will slow down just a
meantime what we have in front of us, delete dump
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equipment top dresser, green mowers, three utility carts, and then the debt service
number.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm happy to entertain Ms. Tavares' request, because to me, from
my point it makes a lot of sense, but did you have any parameters on minimum value of
equipment that you would like to see in the bond and certain things not be in the bond,
because, because of the "AA," your parameters on, on pricing?
CHAIR KANE: Unless we have had previous discussion, then the Chair would like to, would
like to try and remain consistent with our past practice. And I believe we provided a life
span of equipment, if I'm not mistaken. I don't know if it was life span or if it was a
dollar amount, before we made that decision. Can somebody, Chair, I know you were the
Chair previously.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I don't remember.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Can anybody remember?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I thought it, it had to be a, a minimum depreciation of five years, I
thought.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think I remember that. Longer than five years.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, you know, it had to make sense for the depreciation of the
equipment to, to match up with the replacement schedule, and I'm not too sure if, you
know, we said nothing less than "X" amount of dollars should be considered from cash
and not be part of the bond, because it comes a point where you add the interest, it didn't
make sense to borrow the money to pay for the equipment. And so, again, if, if it's
within the parameters of the bond or bond discipline I'm happy to support the request
from Ms. Tavares.
CHAIR KANE: And it seems, Member Tavares, that the question come down to the three utility
carts.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: It says per item, per, per unit, it's approximately, you know, $6,500.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. Right. Yeah, if there is those guidelines or whatever,
I, I'm happy to adjust this, because I'm just trying to, to help it out.
CHAIR KANE: Members, if we can rely on Staff at this point, the Chair's preference is to put it
in -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh,
CHAIR KANE: -- and then if we can identify that there were some parameters that had been
practiced previously that we can make the adjustment and remove any necessary
equipment that may fall under the threshold that has been determined in past practice of
this Committee. Any objections to that, Members? So, we'll move forward without
objections, Members, to the request -COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: --of Ms. Tavares' request as well as the debt service?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And also check that number, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: And we'll make sure that that number is checked. Staff, you folks okay? I
want to make sure we don't leave you behind.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had, I had one more thing that's not on my list that I think I
alluded to at some point in time. I thought we were going to do the Appendix B, rates
and fees separately. And I do, I'm in the process of doing a proposal for the golf course
fees. There is one proposed by the Administration. I'm at, I'm at the point now trying to
find out how they arrived at their number.
Mr. Kubo is, is ill, and I haven't been able to get his formula, but I would like that
opportunity to present that at some time, because I am trying to get the golf course to be
self-sufficient the way they used to be, and I think we all have an interest in, in that as
well as providing for those golf and recreational activities for our community. So, if I
could get a little leeway in, in presenting I'd be appreciative.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair will recognize that request in a favorable light, and
we'll probably look at tomorrow, Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, by tomorrow.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and hopefully we can do it in the A.M., Ms. Tavares?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Objection.
CHAIR KANE: We have any more request in the Recreation and Support Services on Line 492?
And we've made adjustments, and Staff, I think, has been able to make those notes.
Okay. We're moving on. PALS Program, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, no, we did those already.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, excuse me, I'm sorry. Waiehu Golf Course, so, I'm sorry, Contribution. I
went the wrong way, Mr. Tavares, sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I threw you off.
CHAIR KANE: ERS, FICA Contributions, Health Fund Contribution, Debt Service under CIP.
Members, again, that's going to be something that we'll defer on for the moment,
Administrative Over. .. , Overhead Charge as well. Okay. Members, we're moving on.
Department of Personnel Services. We have made one adjustment, which was
acknowledged by this body.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Chair, I had -CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --I had something for Parks, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Carroll, for Parks. Under what, what program -COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: That's under-CHAIR KANE: -- Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: -- the, under no program. This is the Pa 'animai Park and the
handout that I handed out earlier.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: CIP.
CHAIR

KANE:

Okay.

This,

I

think,

would

be

a

CIP

item,

COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Also, this would, that's what I wasn't sure of.
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah, we'll probably take this up under CIP since we're talking about a
playground and access road.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so, if you can, Mr. Carroll, take note of that, so when we do
get into CIP that you can bring this to the attention of the body. Okay. Thank you.
Members, we're moving on to Department of Personnel Services. We have made an
adjustment, any objections?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Any adjustment, excuse me, sorry, under Department of Planning? Members,
again, all these adjustments have been your Chair's recommendation. We made a pass
through, so the number that we're talking about now is 3,466,512. Are there any
adjustments to this number? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, I, I have a big adjustment to this. I want to
reduce the Administration Planning Program by $260,000. I know that seems like a lot,
but, Members, if you, if you can refer to your budget details Pages 13-15, I could just
take a moment to explain. What I've done here, and we can discuss it later, Mr. Chair,
I'll just give a brief overview. They have one program where everything is lumped
together. And even though the budget details, even though the budget detail says that
you've got certain amounts of money for certain projects, the only thing that appears in
the budget ordinance ...
CHAIR KANE: Member Tavares, I know you said 13-15, but it only goes to 13-13.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: So, I think the breakdown, Members, starts from about 13-6
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 13-5, Administration.
CHAIR KANE: -- yeah, 13-5 and then it goes, in your "B" account I think they identified
starting on, it looks like 13-6, 13-7 of those, the lists that you have for General Plan
Update, etcetera.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. That's the ones.
CHAIR KANE: So, Members, you have your, you have your reference point?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: 13-6, and Member Tavares, just one --
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, oh, okay.
CHAIR KANE: -- yeah, one second.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and where's the total that she's adjusting?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well that's what I'm about to ...
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, she's going to go over that right now with us.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Great.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, okay. Go ahead, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. In the, in the budget ordinance the only things that are
Line ltemed are the MRA, the Wailuku Main Street Tri-Isle Resource Center, the
Molokai Main Street, and the U.H. Sea Grant. Everything else is not Line Item.
Therefore, all that money can be used any way you want in a program budget.
So, what I have... (change tape) . .. I've actually added line items for the General Plan
Update of 90,000, Digital Flood Mapping for 50,000, Aerial Photos 75, Spatial Growth
another 75, Pali to Puamana Parkway 80,000, Environmental Assessment 75,000. The
total of what I deleted is the $260,000. And that was the last, those are the last ones that
are on Page 13-8, it's the Bill 84 Additional Resource Study for 25,000, the Development
Mitigation Fee Study for 100,000, the Housing Cost Structure Analysis for 35,000, and
something else ...
CHAIR KANE: The Chair apologizes, Member Tavares, I'm going to ask you to maybe start-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Slowly.
CHAIR KANE: -- to just reiterate your, your, your position first.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Maybe if you can, again, explain the, the reduction only because under the
details it seems like these are actual line items.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: But they're not.
CHAIR KANE: They're not?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right. In the details they look like line items --
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CHAIR KANE: But they're not.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --but if you look at the ordinance there's only four items that
are actually line itemed, and actually the first one is No. 3, the MRA in the budget
ordinance.
CHAIR KANE: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I'm suggesting that we delete all and move the line with
$50,000 to Economic Development. So, that's one of the 50,000 that I'm reducing their
operations by. And then the, the other ones that I'm reducing is the ones I just
mentioned, and if you're looking at my memo it's on that second page of my memo. But
I'm actually giving a line item to appear in the budget ordinance, so that they are held to
those amounts for those projects.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question, please, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Ms., Ms. Tavares, you, you including the 34 for the Housing Cost
Analysis?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I'm not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Because I would have thought that would be under Housing
and ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, act. .. , actually that's where, if we're going to put it
anywhere I think it should be in the housing, and I thought that they did the Housing
Study not too long ago. That's why I didn't ask to move it.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman. I can support the request.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any additional comments on this? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And I don't know if it would be appropriate, because we're
itemizing, you know, we're shifting money around, but I had made a request that, I guess,
would have also been a line item for specific study for an outside consultant to work on
purchase and development rights, transfer development rights, and also cost of
community services study.
So, I had requested $100,000. I have no idea if this amount is sufficient to cover it, but
right now, because the planners are, you know, they're so heavily embroiled in the
general plan, if we don't provide funding, if the Department, and we don't want to, I
understand Mr. Hokama's point, we don't want to add additional personnel to the
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Department. We do need somebody to be able to address the issues for these particular
Land Use tools. Right now, the Planning Department is just going to leave these and
recommend nothing happen.
If that should occur, Mr. Chair, all of the Federal money, which we're planning on trying

to tap in for the Puamana to Pali corridor, for all these other space, space issues for smart
growth planning, there is over a hundred million dollars of Federal money that would be
made available if we have these planning tools in place. If there's no one there to
actually address these issues, and if Planning is just going to leave it sit that's money that
we cannot access. We can't even right grants for it. So, I'm asking at least to fund
something. Even if it's not the full 100,000, to move forward with the PDR, TDR and
also cost community services studies.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let the Chair take it in the order that it's been recommended. Under the
proposals set by Ms. Tavares, the reduction of Admin. Planning Program of 260.
Members, is there consensus or any objections.
Okay. We have consensus. That number will move forward. There's a reduction. Next
is the Grants and Disbursements, the MRA, delete all or move line with 50,000 to
Economic Development. Is there any objections to this request? Hearing none, we have
consensus.
Members, the Chair, because these things are being line itemed, the Chair is going to
recognize each one individually, and if you have objections please state your objection.
General Plan update 90,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Digital flood mapping.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Aerial photos.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Spatial growth model.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Pali to Puamana Parkway.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair has an objection to this. And then for Environmental Assessments.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, let the Chair be consistent. If, if there's an objection that
something won't move forward. So, at this point, Members, the Chair's going to ask, and
I guess it's the Chair's responsibility to come forward and justify why. I guess this
would move forward, and the Chair will make an attempt to justify why the Chair's not in
support of the Pali to Puamana Parkway.
It is primarily because the Planning Department has demonstrated that they are not

working cooperatively with the State Department of Transportation to work that corridor
out, and that this Pali to Puamana Parkway, in my opinion, has gone to where the
Planning Department is just going their own path, and they're making determinations
without the full support of the other entities who have the authority and the jurisdiction in
determining that public right-of-way. So, the Chair is not going to be supporting this
additional $80,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, if, if you, if you're objecting to it, we can leave it off.
I mean, I, I think, you know, if we have one objection on this side we leave it off. So, if
there's, you're, you're part of the group. So, if there's an objection on your part then we
should leave it off.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And it's not included in the 260,000?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr., Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Are you saying leave it off from a, from a line item, or
leave it out of the budget entirely.
CHAIR KANE: I have an objection to it being in the budget, however, because it was part of
what we've already agreed to, I'm just stating my objection to Ms. Tavares' -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Line item.
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CHAIR KANE: --line item. Having it line itemed. However, because there's an objection, and
I'm the only one at this point objecting, contrary to Ms. Tavares, and I, and I respect her
allowing me to do so, but I think because it's originally there, and I'm objecting it, to it
being originally there, it's, I'm making a suggestion to take it out, and I'm not going to
get consensus on that, I think.
And so, we'll just go ahead and leave it in, and I'll make my argument at the, at the
appropriate time. So, we'll leave it in, Members, but I just wanted to make sure you folks
are on record that I object to this, because it's not in a cooperative program that, that I've
been made aware of.
And, finally, Environmental Assessments, without objections the 75,000. So, Members,
all items from Member Tavares are without objections. Okay. Thank you very much.
Now to Ms. Johnson's consideration. Ms. Johnson, thank you for your, for, for yielding
on that. And you're talking about your Line 15?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there has been a request to add 100,000 to the Planning
Department budget to fund an outside consultant to assist in developing the purchase of
development rights and transfer of development rights programs. Is there any objection
to this?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: What is -CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, question?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --I, I just, can you please just repeat it for me?
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I'm just unclear.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., go ahead, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: What I'm asking for is because of the General Plan conflict
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --there's nobody that is going to help develop and integrate
this into the current planning scheme.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, we need, in order to actually do the implementation for
PDR, TDR and also oversee cost of community services, I'm asking for monies for an
outside consultant to do this particular task. It should not recur again. And it's because
there's no Planning personnel available to do it, because they'll be embroiled in the
General Plan. So, unless we can figure out a way to clone Mr. Alueta, you know, this is
going to drop, and as a result we would not be able to access the funding if we don't have
this way to actually implement the program within Planning. It will not be the person
that's going to be doing the actual work, but, you know, the person is going to make the
recommendations.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I offer this as a al. .. , alternative way to possibly still
achieve the same results. I would ask Ms. Johnson to consider them, because this is how
I, I'm understanding it. She's requesting something like an RFP, request for proposal to
put, pack ... , package this thing together for consideration. So, my suggestion to Ms.
Johnson and the Members of your Committee, Mr. Chairman, is possibly under our
professional service under Council Services Budget that we can, since this, this is more
than likely how I understand it.
A Council initiative through Ms. Johnson's efforts and not the Department who has
always been reacting to considerations like this instead of proposing it that maybe we use
it from the Council Services Professional Service Budget that our Staff assigned to our
Committee help to write an RFP, which could be let out at minimal cost, and then see
what type of response to the RFP is before, and then we can possibly take it to the next
phase or the next step to continue to have this initiative moving forward, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Ms., Ms. Johnson, the Chair will tell you that I
would have objected, because it's not being initiated by the Planning Department or a
request. So, thanks to Mr. Hokama, I'm willing to, as one of the objectors, if I'm the
only one.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, and I'm, and I'm happy to do it. I just was not certain
where it would be appropriate, and because it was a Planning mechanism I felt it was
more appropriate in that Department, but I'm perfectly satisfied with adding that amount
if Staff can remind me, or find a place in our Professional Services where we could place
this amount.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We'll make note of that somehow over at Council Services. Staff, you
need some time or can you provide comment?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Staff, we're okay? We can move forward? Okay. Members, any other
request for adjustments under the Administration and Planning Program for the
Department of Planning? Hearing none, we're on Page 12, Members, under Grants and-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, only one quick. Very fast.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Didn't we hear, you know, I, I'm pretty surprised by the Molokai
planner, but wasn't there discussion to consider half-time, because it being one of the
testifiers said the other half could be for Lanai. But, you know, those that do the
geographical, you know, thing it doesn't really work out well at times for, for us to share
the position. So, I just wanted to be sure whether we're talking a half-time planner for
Molokai, or we're talking a full-time planner for Molokai.
CHAIR KANE: At our last go around the proposal is for one or a full-time planner, and the
funding for the fiscal year '06 is six months, but the intention is full-time. And on first
pass, that was approved. And so, now, if there is an adjustment to that request I need the
Member who would like to propose an adjustment to speak now.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Seeing that there is no request for an adjustment in this area, Members,
we're moving to Page 12. We have the Tri-Isle Main Street Resource Center, 200,000.
Is there any adjustment request that will need consensus? Moving to the next item, we
have deleted Molokai Main Street Association, any adjustments? Moving to the next
item, Members. Grants and Disbursements for grant to Maui Youth Development
Agency? Member Tavares, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Is this an area that you wanted to clarify?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, this is the one. I guess I got ahead of myself there.
CHAIR KANE: For the movement; right? Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry. It was to move the MRA, any references and
monies from the MRA to Office of Economic Development. So, at this point there's a
50,000 balance left in there. That I would move that line and the 50,000 to the MRA.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, Members -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: In Economic Development.
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CHAIR KANE: --actually, technically we've already supported that, so, Members this is where
that movement will take place as far as going to Economic Development under the Office
of the Mayor instead of in the Planning. And that, I think, supports the discussion that we
had previous about removing this agency from under the, the, the leadership of the
Planning Department and allow them to lead themselves.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask the Committee to please reconsider the full 80,000,
which would be an adjustment. Would you want me to wait, or is this the appropriate
time?
CHAIR KANE: No, now is the appropriate time.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Because you're asking for an adjustment.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would ask the Committee to consider the reinstatement of the
30,000 that I also had originally supported. I believe that if we are going to help this
agency move forward and mature, that whether it be the manager or the
Director, whatever term they want to call it, one would need some staff support in the, in
the clerical side, Mr. Chairman.
Other than that their dependence on another agency or another department continues to, I
think, hinder their ability to move forward as well as possibly, so, I'm looking at 20,000
for the support staff consideration, and then the other ten I would ask that the Committee
consider that for their special status needs such as participation in the National
Redevelopment Agency Organization, and the ability to, such as we maybe could do a,
better to do some travel to go and get direct information from those that are already in
operations and have done redevelopment and not just talk about it. So, I, I present that to
the Committee.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have a request to, we've already approved the movement
under, over to E.D., under the Office of the Mayor. The additional request 30,000, and,
Mr. Hokama, we can ask for maybe some specific language for pro ... , continued proviso
of the breakdown of that 20,000 and 10,000. Members, a request that that additional
30,000 to restore back to the original 80,000 for purpose described by Mr. Hokama. Are
there any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing no objections, Members, we have consensus. Let's move it
back up to $80,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. We have, Members, Grants and Disbursements Maui Sea
Grant Program.
We're moving into the Department of Police, Members. We've made adjustments. We
have a number of 3,135,618 under the Administration's Program of the Department. Are
there any requests for adjustments?
Investigative Services Program, any adjustments? Uniformed Patrol Services Program,
any adjustments? Technical and Support Services Program, we have made some initial
adjustments. The new working number 6,099,926. Any proposals for adjustments to this
number?
We are under the Department of Prosecuting Attorney, Administration Program, any
adjustments? General Prosecution Program, adjustments have been made. The new
working number on Line 576; 3,246,138. Adjustments?
Page 13 of 29, Members, Department of Public Works and Environmental Management,
Administration Program General Fund, adjustments made. The new number 408,097.
Any adjustments? Engineering Program General Fund -- new number to work with
1,618,568. Adjustments? Special Maintenance Program General Fund, we made the
correction from 15,000 to 150,000, working number 2,938,632.
Adjustments?
Development Services Administration Program General Fund, working number
2,046,010.
We're moving on to the Highway Fund under the Department. Administration Program
Highway Fund, adjustments made, working number 425,901. Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I'm not sure. I had two different items, which would be
Item 1 and 2, and because I know these were from the Operations Budget, I think one
was on Page 16-15, one was on Page 16-20. I'm not sure if they're under this section or
not, because we're moving so quickly, I haven't had time, a chance to look it up, but the
subquotes for 6120 and 6022. So, I'm not certain if those particular lines were included
within the Budget Items that we just went over. So, I would just ask for assistance from
Staff to see if that is the appropriate place, or if I should be recommending it somewhere
else.
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CHAIR KANE: 916,155, so, we're about half way under County Building Materials and
Supplies, subquote 6120, is under utilities, electricity. Member Johnson, is that correct
you wanted to add $15,000 to the electricity class that has been represented as 60,000.
You want to make that 75,000?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: 75,000, yeah, and it was just because of the comments that
had been made by the Department, because there had been no increase anticipated at all,
and I know that was one of the areas with the fuel costs added in that they had not
anticipated that. So, when I questioned them this was one of the notes that I made during
the budget questioning.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have a request for an additional $15,000. Are there any
objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Go ahead, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Where did you hear this, Ms. Johnson, this request? I, I
didn't see anything in writing from the Department.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: This was during questioning during the verbal session when
we were going back and forth from that particular Department. I had included in my
notes to add in an additional amount, because when I pressed them for information they
had requested more, but it was not approved by the Administration. That was my
recollection.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Hang on, Mr. Hokama. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, I yield.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I can appreciate Ms. Johnson worrying about the Department, but,
Chairman, if under County Building Services, on 16-14, Members, if you'd look at the
first line under subquote 6120, you'll notice that their budget request for electricity went
from 262,500 to $615,000, Chairman. So, I think they made the, made the adjustment in
a different area.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I see.
CHAIR KANE: Because they were asking about $345,000 more in the upcoming year, Mr.
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Member Johnson, is that satisfactory to not make the adjustment?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, you know, because I had made a specific note when we're
going over each one of these things, I gather, you know, that that was one of the areas
that, I don't know if they lumped it all together, and perhaps I missed that, but my
notation was just simply for this one area under subquote 6120.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair will also note that in our discussions with the
Department, although it's under County Garages for Molokai, this is a program budget.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: And that under the $205,000 for gasoline, diesel oil, et cetera, they went from
55, and they had 205. The Chair questioned it, and they gave us a corrected figure of
$71,000. So, right there you're looking at $141,000 of excess requests.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, then I delete the two requests then-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --from No. 1 and No.2.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, just ignore that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, are there any requests for additional adjustments?
The Chair was remiss in noting that note by not looking at my detail on that Page, and if I
did, I would have made that note and made an adjustment to that. But, be that as it may,
the Chair has provided you with his formal presentation, or his formal proposal and will
not make that adjustment.
Members, we're moving on. Again, Highway Fund Administration Program. The
adjustment was made. The working number 425,901. Under contributions, Members,
for ERS; FICA; Health Fund; General Fund; Bikeway Fund; Debt Service, which will,
you can anticipate perhaps some adjustment, additional adjustment in Administrative
Overhead Charges. Any adjustments requested in these areas?
Okay. We're on Page 14, Members, we're almost half way there. We have Low Bridge
Drainage Maintenance Highway Fund, adjustment made, working number 7,139,717.
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Adjustments? Under Traffic Management Program Highway Fund, adjustments? Under
Garage Services Highway Fund, we made an adjustment, working number 1,944,142,
adjustments?
Okay. Members, we're moving into Waste Water Fund. Administration and Engineering
Program, Working number 1,453,998. Adjustments? Contributions to ERS, FICA,
Health Fund, Debt Service, Administrative Overhead Charge, adjustments? Wastewater
Reclamation Facilities Program Waste Water Fund, the working number 11,346,911.
Adjustments?
Okay. We're under Solid Waste, Members. Administration Program Solid Waste Fund.
Adjustments have been made on their first go around, working number 297,883.
Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think there needs to be an adjustment due to the reduction
in the General Fund transfer from earlier.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Staff, you can take note of, I think the action that we took yesterday, Ms.
Tavares, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: The $30, the 30,000 that's on Line 665 should be removed then since, well, let
me ask-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Unless, Mr. Chair-CHAIR KANE: You'll help Staff work-up with those numbers?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- if you let me work with Staff on the -CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: -- on the Solid Waste, because there's a whole bunch of
issues regarding this Solid Waste Fund. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
-112-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I just, I need a clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And since we're on this line it's reminding me, and I'm
afraid if I let go, I'll forget. We're deleting the SUV to fund White Goods Program. Do
the White Goods include all kinds of recyclable metal or rather metal that's being thrown
away like air conditioning units -CHAIR KANE: Refrigerators.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Stoves.
CHAIR KANE: Stoves. Those are, that's ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well I'm thinking of things other than the normal thing
like refrigerators and stoves.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Microwaves.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well just things like, I got a call from a contractor who's
very upset, because there's no place for them to take air conditioning units that they
replace, pipes, anything like that.
And I was also told, I might as well tell all of you, that there's going to be a
demonstration in front of the building Thursday morning. People are coming and
bringing, tow truck people are coming and bringing cars that they have no place to put.
And cars, and air conditioning units, and things that are backing up on their property,
because they have no place to put it. I tried to tell them we're addressing the problem
just hang tight.
But anyway I just wanted to clarify that this White Goods Program is for everything, not
just stoves and refrigerators; correct?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, the Chair is not prepared to respond to you and give you a
definite answer on that. I can ask Staff to make a request to Administration to get a
specific response to your question, and we'll do that via a phone call at the appropriate
time, but I cannot answer you right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
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MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Koller.
MR. KOLLER: Just for clarification regarding the, the deletion on Line 665, the 30,000, and
also on Line 692. That's an order to fund the overtime for the residential collection
personnel, because they work on Saturdays, and they're the ones that go out and actually
pick-up the White Goods. So, this was in order to pay, to add money into that, that
particular Department in order to pay for the overtime.
CHAIR KANE: And, Ms. Anderson, you can take note and, Members, as well take note on Line
691, under Residential Collection Program Solid Waste Fund, you have add premium pay
or overtime pay for White Goods Program.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, any additional or any adjustments needed for
Administration Program Solid Waste Fund?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a question, and I, I'm happy to wait for the response later, but
may ... , maybe the Budget Director or Corp. Counsel, can the Workline be utilized to
take care of the White goods pick-up?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We can go ahead and follow-up and see if we can get a response.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we're moving forward. Again, contributions for ERS, FICA,
Health Fund, Debt Service, Overhead Charges, Administrative Overhead Charges. Any
adjustments in these areas? And we'll work with those numbers again. We're working,
those are working numbers.
Members, moving on. Landfill Disposal Program Solid Waste Fund. We have made
adjustments, and the working number is 5,616,088. Any adjustments proposed in this
area? Residential Collection Program, adjustments have been made, new number
2, 141,572. Adjustments? Division Program, adjustments have been made, working
number 1,128,802. Adjustments?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
CHAIR KANE: On both the Diversion Program and the next one on abandoned vehicles, we
will change the notation for this to be General Fund as opposed to Solid Waste Fund.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, questions? Comments? Need additional explanation? Mr.
Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Diversion Program, Chairman, please question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Proceed.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I know that with the ... (change tape) . .. present for the MRF. The
net result, of course, Chairman, is zero. But I would be happy to, again, wait so that Staff
can contact Public Works on what is the real status of the MRF that we have funded in, in
the previous budget, Chairman?
CHAIR KANE: Have we received written response to that question already, or is that something
we need to make a phone call and get Mr. Arakawa to respond?
MS. KOLLER: We'll make a phone call.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. We'll get that.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any additional questions or requests for adjustments? Okay.
We're moving. We're under the Department of Transportation. Administration Program,
adjustments have been made, the working number is 291,756. Adjustments?
Next, we have Grants and Disbursements, MEO Dialysis. Next, we also have MEO Ala
Hou Program, both numbers. Adjustments? Okay. Page 16. Youth Transportation
Program, move to MEO Transportation Services. Any adjustments? Moving on. We
have two items, DOE School Bus Transport as well as Bus Replacement Matching Fund
items. Adjustments?
Grants and Disbursements for Air Ambulance Program, 800,000. We still do not have an
update on that, and we will be tracking that, Members, so, at the last minute, if we don't
already have that we'll make sure that we have a figure that's hopefully more accurate
than this number.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
momentarily?

Did you skip No. 5, or did I just fall asleep there

CHAIR KANE: I won't repeat what you just said.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I think I fell asleep. Can we back up.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Bus Replacement Matching Fund, 197,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, my -CHAIR KANE: Adjustment, Member Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --yes, my proposal was to delete this fund.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, any additional comment, Member Tavares, before we ask the
question?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, I'm understanding that this is the bus replacement
matching funds for the County of Maui, and I don't see us buying any buses right now.
We're getting seven turned over to us from MEO supposedly for the, the other, the two
routes that they're not going to run. Is that, is my assumption correct?
CHAIR KANE: I believe it is, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, I don't think we need the money for that. So, I'm
suggesting that we delete that 170, 197,000. I am adding some things later, but for now
we'll delete this one.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, are there any objections to the request?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Are there objections, Member Johnson, or you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I have a question.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because I want to add the Napili route my question would be
are we going to need the additional buses in order to do the Napili route? Because that
was right around the same amount of money. If we have sufficient buses fine, but, I
mean, I've been getting all kinds of calls to restore the Napili route, which is about the
same amount in money that's in this fund. If we have buses to do this, fine, but that's my
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question. Is, I don't know whether or not the Napili route can be completed without
having additional equipment.
CHAIR KANE: Did the Department of Transportation have it included in their proposal for this
year, the Napili route, and just a, just a question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: They gave us a breakdown in order of what it would cost
with one of the responses. I, I think I had in my request 120,000, but that was just doing
it at horne from memory. But then when I relooked at my figures that carne for the
breakout to restore the Napili route, add that on the to the existing route, it was $196,000.
CHAIR KANE: And that was part of their proposal to this body?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was part of the response to the questions. And they had
not included the Napili route in their regular budget for this year, but they gave us a
breakout if we wanted to add additional routes.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And that was the one that I had been continuously getting the
requests for.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, your request is for No. 14, Ms. Johnson, of 120,000 or the 196,000
figure?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, well, what I'm trying to determine is in regard to Ms.
Tavares' deletion of the $197,000, if we don't need the bus replacement, and you could
add this money then into the route expansion instead of spending it for additional buses.
My question is do we need the additional equipment in order to actually do the route, to
restore the Napili route? If we don't need the equipment, because we're getting the buses
back from MEO then, you know, that's going to influence my decision as to whether I'll
support this or not.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Committee does have another item in Committee
relating to receiving funds from the Federal Government for buses, and I think we, we,
this is an area that we need to follow-up with both Transportation and MEO. My
understanding is MEO will not be receiving Federal funds, but the question is whether
we're going to accept those, those, the grant money, and if this body does decide to
accept that, the grant funds then these matching dollars may be needed.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Member Tavares in light of that do you have any amendment
to your proposal?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Well, yes, I guess I would amend the proposal, but I think we
have to come to a decision, and I guess this is the time. Are we going to provide public
transit serv ... , services or not? Are we going to just stay with the existing routes that we
have? Are we going to add the Kahului, pick up those two, two routes that MEO isn't
going to do? And are we going to expand to Napili? And if yes to any or all of those
questions or any of those questions then we need to budget accordingly.
But until we get to that decision, and I believe we've put it off until, like now as to what
we're going to do with our transit system here for Maui County and on this Island in
particular, I guess, is the one that's up for discussion.
So, I would, I would withdraw that, and, you know, I, I, hopefully we get the
transportation people maybe here to answer our questions tonight, or I can, or somebody
can call them, or I'll call them and figure out what it is. But I think they're waiting for us
to make a policy decision about what we're going to do about transit on this Island. So, I
think it's kind of in our laps right now. So, I'll withdraw that. I'll take that off the table
for now.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay.
Johnson, I have your--

Members, it's been withdrawn.

We moved and, Member

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --your item still in, in the mind. So, it's not going to run away from me.
Members, if you've taken note, the Chair has made adjustments. We've taken the MEO
Transport Services, and we've adjusted with Highway Funds and General Funds. So, you
can see under Line 736, excuse me, 740 and 744, have been swapped. If you can see
that right below No.8 and 9, respectively.
And so, this may be a good time to call a brief recess, and get our bearings on this
discussion, because I know there may be a proposal to go the other way around, and keep
it General Fund, Highway Fund depending on which way the body wants to go. So, the
Chair's going to call for a recess. Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Could we clear up a couple more things in this area first-CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --in Transportation?
CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And I guess what I had down here was that, what we heard
about the reimbursement for the design of the Puunene airport site for MEO's baseyard
that was discontinued, or that is not being pursued, I guess. And I'm not sure if the
Budget Director or our Staff has any information about that $211,854.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Morrison, do you have comments to that?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, I, I can't definitively say, but I can say that I
have made the recommendation that the funds that exist currently in the County's
accounts include funds that were originally matching funds to a Federal grant to MEO to
design and build that facility. And because we still have the County funds in our, in our
accounts in the amount of 248,000, I believe we can fund the 211,00 from that. I've
made that recommendation to the Finance Director pending their concurrence. So, I
think at least for today, I would say we don't need to add, add that 211,000 unless I find
out otherwise.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any other areas to clear up before we take a recess?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Chair-CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --the other, the other things were if we were
forward with the Transit Program that I was going to add the $100,000 for
signage and all, all of that stuff. And the other item is the, the request made
their Transit Facility Land Acquisition in the amount of $400,000. And
would be a grant to MEO.

going to go
the bus stop
by MEO for
I guess that

CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions or comments before we recess here to provide
some clarity for some of these questions? Hearing none, Members, the Chair is going to
call a recess. We will reconvene at 4:25. We're in recess... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

4:15p.m.

RECONVENE:

4:37p.m.
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CHAIR KANE: ... {gavel) .. . Members, thank you for that recess. Unfortunately, Members, the
Chair has not been able to make some of the necessary adjustments in the Department of
Transportation in the time that I've given. So, the Chair at this time is going to request
your consideration of us taking our dinner break starting from now and returning to this
Chamber at about 6:15, Members. Okay, and that will provide us additional time to make
some necessary adjustments for our proposal as well as giving you your personal needs
and your dinner needs. So, we're going to come back at 6:15. Members, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any Member need to make any comment before we go into our recess?
Hearing none, this Committee stands in recess until 6:15 .... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

4:38p.m.

RECONVENE:

6:21p.m.

CHAIR KANE: .. . {gavel) .. . Okay. Members, we're reconvened. Hope you all had a good
dinner. Members, we are under the Department of Transportation. Your Chair has asked
for the presence of Mr. Ginoza, Director of the Department.
Members, the Chair in taking into consideration the comments from Member Tavares as
far as us making a decision on the transportation budget, the Chair will first start off by
saying or taking note that the Chair did not make adjustments to the Mayor's proposal for
the basic fact that we were unable to get fixed numbers on the option that the Chair
wanted to bring forward to the body.
So, for that, Members, the Chair apologizes that what you see before you under the
Chair's proposal does not accurately reflect what the Chair was going to ask for your
consideration. So, the Chair will just put it on the table so you folks understand where
we're at.
The Chair recognizes the need to, at a minimum, recognize the existing services that we
have, and that being Routes 1 and 2 that is currently serviced by MEO, which has
declined to continue that service as of June 30th, after June 30th, 2005, as well as the
Routes A, B, and C, which specifically are the routes that include Kahului to Kihei,
Kahului to Lahaina, and the linear route of, along Kihei from Maalaea, the Ocean Center
down to the Shops at Wailea.
Also, there is, part of Route C, there is a late Kihei run that was asked for consideration,
and the Chair will be asking for your consideration as well as the consideration by
Member Johnson of the Napili route, that's six days, to be incorporated into the
discussion, and the Chair has had a brief discussion, and Member Johnson has agreed to
include that into the discussion for, for your consideration.
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Members, it is the Chair's intent to provide you with a working number, if there is
objections, obviously, I, I'd like to ask that, Members, we, how shall I say, look at this
area a little different and perhaps give it some discussion, more discussion with respects
to the approach we're going to take, because it will tie into what the Mayor's proposal is
for the expansions, including us looking at a separate bill that is in the Budget and
Finance Committee with respects to buying brand new buses under the County's
jurisdiction. And that's something that we talked about in a previous meeting and then
deferred on until we would have this discussion. And I think Member Tavares is right
that this is the time that we make a decision once and for all, you know, on what direction
we're going.
Saying that, Members, I'll also note that out of the buses that the Maui Economic, or
excuse me, MEO is going to be giving up, they're going to be giving up a total of seven
buses that were paid for with Federal funds, I believe. That those buses will be returned
at some future date, which has not been finalized yet, according to Mr. Ginoza. Of those
buses, we had four small wheelchair access buses, which are nine passenger vans, as well
as three large buses, which are 25 passenger vans. And the intent is to attempt to
incorporate those three large buses into the continuation of Routes 1 and 2, which is the
Kahului-Wailuku routes.
With all that being said, Members, the Chair's number as a working figure I'd like to
propose to you at this time will be as follows. I'll give you the total number first, and
then I'll provide you with the adjusted figure on our Line 743, and provide you with a net
amount on Line 744.
Members, the adjusted amount first would be to, from that 1,730,210, would be to minus
or bracket out 569,991. That would give us a balance and working number in Line "F" of
1,160,219. This number represents Routes 1 and 2, at a cost that was given to us of
$305,019 with an additional $150,000 added to that number to take care of two things.
First, an anti ... , anticipated increase in the bid as well as then providing the vehicles.
And, again, this is just a working number. $500,000 will go towards Routes A, B, and C,
which we know is a fixed number; correct, Mr. Ginoza?
MR. GINOZA: Yes, that is correct.
CHAIR KANE: The Route C, late night run at 1,600 a month comes out to an additional 19,200.
And, finally, the Napili run for six days would be $196,000. Again, all these routes
would be buses that would be provided by the vendors or vendor. And, of course, the,
the associated discussion would be whether or not we're going to be moving forward
with the purchase of buses under the County's jurisdiction, which the Chair anticipates, if
we do so, that they would come into service and be ready to roll at the start of fiscal year
'07, or earlier if we can incorporate that somehow.
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Members, that's what the Chair has as a proposal on the table. And, before we begin, if I
can ask one of our Staff Members to go turn on the air conditioning in the back please.
That way we can have some cool air in here. Thank you. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Question. Thank you, Mr. Chairman. The amount that's
been deleted, the 569,991, can you tell us what that was previously allocated for?
CHAIR KANE: If you would go to your details that Item 1 was under Public Transit Program
Services.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What page?
CHAIR KANE: And it was provided to us as one lump sum.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: What page?
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, 17-6 of your details, which Members, unfortunately, just gives us
that flat number and a, and a description of Public Transit Program Services. And the
Chair believes that this was for the anticipated or the request for the expansions in
operations that the proposal from the, from the Mayor's Office included.
The proposal that the Chair's providing for you is not to, the Chair is not supporting the
expansion and instead is including funds that would take care of existing, existing
services to all five routes, and the reinstatement of the Napili route as well as the addition
to the late, the, the Kihei late run for Route C. And the Chair opens it up for discussion.
This one, by the way, Members, it seems though this one will come down to whether the
body will support as a policy, are we going to move forward with the proposal by the
Department of Transportation and the Mayor to support the expansion based on the study
that was done, or, are we not going to support, or something in between. And the Chair is
putting forward something that would support what we are doing existing except adding
the Napili run and the late night run. And then having a further discussion on what our
intent is to support any future expansion of the Department.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question?
CHAIR KANE: Before I give you the floor, Mr. Hokama, Ms. Anderson, you have the floor.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. This doesn't really tell us, Mr. Chair-CHAIR KANE: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --correct, what the 569 is deleting. Maybe Staff in
working out these figures that you just gave us, did you use a communication from the
Department of Transportation that we could reference for these details?
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CHAIR KANE: I can, I can respond. Basically how we arrived at the deletion was we took
what the costs were based on information from the Director, and the Director can
acknowledge that. And if I'm mistaken, then I'll have him make that correction. But you
received an April 19th communication from the Department of Transportation, and we
had responses from questions from the April 18th meeting. And because there was some
initial difficulty in extrapolating those numbers, and that's why the Chair asked for the
recess a little earlier.
And so, we had discussions with Mr. Ginoza, and we let Mr. Ginoza our intent as Staff
and your Chair, to get the cost to continue the existing functions and that we just minused
out anything over and above that. So that's what your Chair's proposal is for discussion
on the table.
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Ginoza, and thank you.
MR. GINOZA: Sorry, I, I have one clarification. On the Napili route for one year-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MR. GINOZA: --it was actually 198,000 not 196.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. 198. Members, take note the 2,000 difference.
MR. GINOZA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: That would be a 1,162,219. And so the adjustment would be 567,991. And,
Ms. Anderson, would you like to yield? I see you looking for, as other Members have
questions.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, please go ahead.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'll try to find that information.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And we'll come back to you. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Was there in previous comment mention made about that, the Napili
route either broke even or was able to be a profitable run? And if so, why does it need
160, $198,000? Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, are you prepared to respond? I know, Ms. Johnson, we, we had
that discussion. So, I'll provide both Mr. Ginoza and Ms. Johnson ability to comment.
Mr. Ginoza, any comments?
MR. GINOZA: Sure. We, I don't think the Department made any comments about it being
profitable or near profitable. That's, that's why last year, if you recall, in the budget
deliberations, the previous contractor Akina Aloha Tours had asked for subsidy for that
route. But that, that's basically the proposal we got was for, to reinstate that route it
would be 198,000.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: From my recollection, I think that because that route had not
been one that was originally part of the program, that had been an additionally
implemented route, my understanding was that there was increasing ridership on that
route par. .. , particularly people that were trying to get to and from work in the resort
area.
Now as the ridership was just beginning to increase they cut off the route. So, because it
was not a route that had been used, I believe at the original inception, they didn't have a
long enough history to actually find out whether or not it was going to be profitable. I
think just from the input that I've got from the people in that area, it was used by both
residents to do shopping in the area, and it was also heavily used or beginning to be
heavily used by the people going to and from work that lived in the Napili area.
So, from that perspective, I think that if we gave the route an opportunity to operate and
then if we implemented the fares, because I think for a period of time they were actually,
if I'm not mistaken, there was an initial program where that route didn't have a full
charge, you know, like, in other words, there was a grace period where they were just
charging a small nominal amount. I can't recall all the details, but I know that Mr. Levin,
Levine, had given us this information in some of our tram meetings.
So, from my perspective, I'm responding to what the people that were actually the riders
on the route were irrespective of whether it was going to be profitable or not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: To the Director. Is this one of the routes where it was running that
the vendor was able to, what's the word, Chairman, to retain whatever fares or, or
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renumeration that, that they were receiving as part of their compensation proposal that
was accepted?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: This route was never funded by the County. It was something that was wholly
independent of County or any kind of Government subsidy prior to last year when it was
discontinued. And that's why it was discontinued, because Akin a had found that it
required a subsidy. But, I mean, you make a good point, you know, that they, they had
made, they initially had asked for some subsidy, but we, we weren't able to get what kind
of ridership numbers they were getting, because it was part of their own service. And
that's what we had tried to get prior to the last budget discussions, but Akina had not
provided it to us.
So, we don't have any kind of history, ridership history to determine, you know, how,
how much subsidy would be really required. And that's why we're kind of starting from
scratch, and trying to figure it out that way.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. So, this 198, Chairman, you, you have a feel for frequency
and what, what this will provide, this route, seven day service, 16 hour days.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it would be a six day service and specifically as far as the timing, Mr.
Ginoza, and the head time.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Headway.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, headway, excuse me. Mr. Ginoza, if you're able to respond at this
time.
MR. GINOZA: Sure. They would start at 7:48, well as currently proposed it would start at 7:48
in Kapalua, and basically run to Kaanapali where, actually, no, it would go all the way to
Lahaina to the Wharf Cinema Center, where it would connect to a Route C -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: "C."
MR. GINOZA: "B "or "C", I believe. Yeah, and so, we made it so that there's time
connections. And the headways would be two hours, because it would operate between
Kaanapali and, sorry, Kapalua and Lahaina.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Lahaina.
MR. GINOZA: And so, that, those would be the, the north and south terminuses, termini.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And that would run until what time? Well what would be the end of
the day?
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MR. GINOZA: 6:30.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: 6:30 in the evening?
MR. GINOZA: Yeah. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you for my opportunity.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Hokama. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: So, the route goes from Kapalua, Kaanapali to Lahaina?
MR. GINOZA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: From Kapalua, how many stops do they make just one
area where they pick up passengers and, and travel on to Kaanapali?
MR. GINOZA: Two, two routes in Kapalua. Ritz Carlton and Kapalua Bay.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I went back to get my report on the Holokoa, Holokaa
Transit Program, and for what they described as Route 2, which was Kaanapali to
Lahaina, the fare revenue that they collected was 195,000. Then they had advertising
revenue of 9,000, and sponsorship revenue 53,000. Their total revenue was 257,000, but
they, figured here their maintenance cost at $53.00 an hour ... (change tape) .. . costs of
$71,000. In all of their, all of their routes that they reported there was an operating loss
based on that $53 an hour operations and maintenance.
MR. GINOZA: Could, could I clarify something?
CHAIR KANE: Oh, sure. You finished your comments, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, go ahead.
MR. GINOZA: Actually what I, what I had just told Mr. Hokama was slightly correct and
slightly incorrect in a way, because Akina had kept the Route 2, but not the Route 1.
Route 1, was basically from Whaler's Village, Whaler's Village up to the Ritz Carlton.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay.
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MR. GINOZA: So, that's what they discontinued. They did keep Route 2, which is what
Councilmember Tavares is referring to, which is from the various hotels in the Kaanapali
area through a couple stops in Lahaina. So, that part is still functioning. But what this
route will basically do is go from Kaa ... , I'm sorry, Kapalua and kind of trickle down
through also the N apili area -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. GINOZA: --which is what we received a lot of comment on, and I think Councilmember
Johnson as well. And actually it won't really go into the Kaanapali area like the Route 2,
so, it won't duplicate, it will just make one stop and then go to the Lahaina area to
connect to our other routes.
So, the function of Route 2 and this route would be different, because Route 2, is more
customized to getting the Kaanapali, servicing the Kaanapali hotels and getting those
visitors and, and/or resident workers to Lahaina, whereas this is more geared toward
getting the, above that Napili and Kapalua area to Lahaina. So, you know, they, they did
retain one route, which is the Route 2 that Councilmember Tavares had just referred to.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, any further comment?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, if they retain that one the other route, that Route 1,
was the Kapalua to Kaanapali Route, and that one, that one had revenues also of
$113,000, but a net operating loss of 196,000. So, you know, all of their things were
basically losses except for maybe one of them that they were making some money on. I
guess they kept that one according to you.
MR. GINOZA: Yeah, I mean, you know, on that they showed an operating loss-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
MR. GINOZA: --but they kept it.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thanks.
CHAIR KANE: Any further comments in this area? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and I know that we're trying to weigh also whether we
can get the matching funds for the buses, because that depends on, you know, whether or
not we're going to supply that as a part of the contract and try to implement at least some
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type of, maybe even a, an integrated plan, if you will, to gradually move into public
transit.
I still feel, my personal feeling is that we should, as long as the money is there where we
can get the buses, for the $197,000 matching fund, I believe that's one of the things that
was also on the table. I really do support us going after that money, because I think Mr.
Ginoza had said earlier too that even if it did not work out, we would still be able to have
that, I guess that experience of trying to at least provide the buses to achieve some kind of
cost reduction.
So, to me, I'm willing to go that additional route and try some of these innovations. It
might not be a, a complete 100 percent implementation of the, the transit plan that we
represented with, but I think it could be an interim measure that at least we're moving
forward with the bus acquisition to include that component in there. And so, then in, in
that respect it might actually help to offset some of the costs that we would be incurring
otherwise.
So, I just think it's a prudent thing to do. I don't see it as a downside. I just see it as
another opportunity to maybe take that little mini-step and then once we get a little bit of
experience under our belt and know what kind of little problems we're going to have, or
know if there's been problems, I would feel then more comfortable in moving forward
with, you know, implementing the plan, because I know the majority of Members are
still, Mr. Kane, really not sure if they want to move forward with that plan.
So, you know, to kind of move forward I just, I throw that out as a possibility of at least
moving towards an eventual public transit plan. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Johnson. Any further comments? Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. It's kind of interesting on the KapaluaKaanapali Route, I, I don't know if we're making the stops where that housing is located,
and I, I don't know if, you know, you do have hotel employees in that area that might,
you know, may utilize this particular route going to Kaanapali as well as Lahaina. The
route that you, the stops that you mentioned are basically at the hotels, and if one could
be done at that shopping mall across that housing area ...
CHAIR KANE: Napili Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Napili Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Napili Plaza.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: That will kind of help out the local residents out in that
area also.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza, comments?
MR. GINOZA: Actually the, I just mentioned the stops in Kapalua. There's a number of stops
in the Napili area and, yeah, a lot of different housing areas, both condos and, you know,
just along, what is that, Lower Honoapiilani Road. So, yeah, there are a number of stops
along the way to pick up those either in condos or in the housing areas over there. So,
yeah, it was pretty much designed to, to kind of pick up those people along the way to go
either north to Kapalua or south to either Kapa ... , sorry, Kaanapali or Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Pontanilla. Any further comments or questions in this area?
Again, just to be clear, and I'm sorry if I wasn't or if I was and am just repeating myself,
I just wanted to be clear that everybody realize that the proposal involves the costs that
would include the vendors providing the vehicles, yeah. And that in talking with Mr.
Ginoza the attempt would be to somehow incorporate the three buses, the 25 pack buses
that MEO will be eventually turning over into, you know, to function as well within the
routes that, that we're talking about.
And, again, the other discussion, Members, and the Chair, I believe will be posting it on
an agenda for May 18th, we will have that discussion about, I believe it's, and, Mr.
Ginoza, please correct the Chair if he's wrong, for the 5311 monies for the, for the buses.
If you can clarify?
MR. GINOZA: 5309.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, excuse me, 5309. I'm sorry, Members, 5309 monies, and the discussion
will be for whether or not we're going to be getting that monies for Federal, excuse me,
for the bus fleet for the County. Members, the Chair has that proposal on the table. Any
additional questions or comments? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, would this be an appropriate time to bring up the funding
source?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: For myself personally, Chairman, I would ask the Members to
consider reversing your proposal whereby, you know, I, I really believe, you know, my
understanding of our community willing to support the MEO Program through General
Fund and Real Property Taxes, and that I would ask that we consider supporting the
transit, Transportation Services from the Highway Funds.
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One, because it is paid by those that use our highways, those that buy gas as well as the
visitor component, hopefully they make up, my understanding about 30 percent of the
revenues in this area. And I think it would be appropriate for, to use those funds in the
manner that, that we've talking about regarding public transit, and the Community
Transportation Services as well as the Grants, Grant 7, Grant 8, and Grant 9 under your
proposal, Chairman.
So, I would ask the Committee to consider funding the programs that way, which is 180
degrees from your proposal.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, just for clarification, Members, and, and just as a note the reason for
the original proposal was including the two cent reduction and the Gas Tax, but because
that has not materialized, the Chair has stated to Mr. Hokama in a, a previous discussion
that he's open to having this, this discussion on the floor for your consideration.
So, to be clear, the Public Transit Program on Line 742, 743, 744, which is currently
under, excuse me, I believe it's General Funds. Excuse me, just to make sure, under
General Funds, Mr. Hokama, you, just that one to switch, or you wanted to switch all of
them back up into General Funds?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Highway
CHAIR KANE: Just, excuse me, so, switch down highway ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Switch that to-CHAIR KANE: Highway?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --Public Transit to Highway Fund.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. So, we would switch ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: And then you have MEO Transportation, Chairman, to Highway
Fund. Well is that, is that how I read your proposal on Line 737? That was General
Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It got moved from Highway to ...
CHAIR KANE: The whole, the whole request you're talking about?
Members.

Just a second, yeah,

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, I just want to make sure we, we get it right, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, so, I just wanted to get clarity. Mr. Hokama, I'll take it a step at a time
just so we're clear. No. 8 on Line 742, with the, with the Chair's adjusted number your
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recommendation is to move and, again, we're just doing it one step at a time, moving that
back down under Highway Funds and that would replace the Line 755.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: And is that the only part of the request, or did you want to move also the MEO
Grants down? You wanted to make all those movements as well? Well, we'll ask the
first one. Sorry, Members, the Chair will take it one step at a time.
I guess I'll take it in two steps. First, the first step is, Members, are there any objections
to the proposed numbers, which there is a change from the original proposal? So, the
new number will be 1,162,219, as I explained on what those monies would stand for.
And Mr. Hokama's proposal is to take that number with the adjustments and move it
down under Highway Funds where currently No. 9 on Line 755 is.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That would be correct, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Are there any comments or questions, objections to doing this
move?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Anderson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, I do have a question.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Could you tell me why it was originally moved from the
Highway Fund? What was, what was the thinking behind that?
CHAIR KANE: The Chair made a proposal of reducing the Highway Funds or, excuse me, the
gas, Gasoline Tax by two cents, which we lost approximately $1.3 million in that
reduction. So, along with that the Chair's proposal was to move these services up into
General Funds and have it funded under General Funds, which was something that we
used to do before anyway. And that the move was recently moved down when we did the
Gas Tax increase of five cents years back.
And so, the Chair's original proposal was to switch it back down again into, excuse me,
switch it back up into General Funds. But because the Gas Tax did not go through as far
as the request, Mr. Hokama's proposal is to take that right back down Public Transit and
put it right under Highway Funds.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Which gas tax will accommodate that, which I think he represented visitors as
well as residents fund that fund. And, therefore, there is a subsidy from, that's exported.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we'll make that move. Any objections? We have
consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Mr. Hokama, any additional requests in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, that's it, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Members, the additional discussion regarding the
purchase of those, of, of County fleet, which are the 5309 funds, we would have that
discussion in detail scheduled for May 18th, and that will provide us adequate time for us
to act on it prior to the end of the fiscal year. Are there any requests for Mr. Ginoza at
this time, or any additional information, or need for his presence, because...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --Ms., excuse me, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, if I can get clear -CHAIR KANE: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
matching fund to delete that.

--on what I had proposed about the bus replacement

CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: So, we should just leave that alone now until we resolve the
May 18th issue before the Council?
CHAIR KANE: That is the Chair's recommendation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Fine. I'll, I'll withdraw my deletion.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any further questions or comments in this area, Members?
Ms., okay, Ms. Morrison. So, we can have some, make sure we're all balanced here. Go
ahead, Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, the Public Transit Program itself has been
deleted; is that correct? And we're only putting in, I mean as far as the new Public
Transit Program based on the five year plan, we're only leaving in the status quo. Is that,
is that correct?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: With Napili.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: With Napili.
MS. MORRISON: Napili
CHAIR KANE: With Napili and the night run, I believe, on, on Route C.
MS. MORRISON: So, that, so, it's the status quo plus those?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
MS. MORRISON: There's not anything else about the Public Transit Program?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. At this time, that is what the body has acted on as a
recommendation to the full Council. Yeah, any, again, any additional need for Mr.
Ginoza's presence, because I'd like to cut him loose, so that he can join his, get on with
his personal life. Any ...
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: You don't have a life when you work for the County.
Don't you know that?
CHAIR KANE: Well, welcome to the County, Mr. Ginoza. Yeah, Mr. Ginoza, thank you very
much for presence this evening. We really appreciate it. Thank you for taking the time
to be here. Members, before we move any further, Mr. Hokama, you have the floor.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one thing and, again, I can, I can wait for a, for a
response, but if there is still a balance left in the Highway Fund, because of the
adjustments we made with Fuel Tax and this appropriation, that, that Committee
Members would consider that as an offset to whatever General Funds would be required
for the Bus Replacement Program.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, let's say, you know, we have a 197, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If, for example, if there's a balance of 97,000 left in Highway Funds
that does not have, that is not earmarked for anything else, then I would ask that the
Committee consider that 97 to be placed against the one nine, 197, whereby General
Fund would then just be required to put up $100,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. That will be noted. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, on, on the, the Transportation Budget where they had
requested the 100,000 for the start-up funds that would have been the markings and the
areas where the routes were actually going to be operated. I guess this would be to Mr.
Ginoza. Would you still be, even though this wouldn't be the implementation or full
implementation of the Transit Plan that was discussed and recommended by Urbitrans,
would this still be something that, in terms of at least the bus stops, any physical
improvements in signage, would you still want this money to be earmarked for those
uses?
MR. GINOZA: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Ginoza.
MR. GINOZA: Yes, I, if you recall in the Route 1 that Akina used to run we, we didn't have any
signage -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
MR. GINOZA: --and that was one of our chief complaints, or the chief complaints that came to
the County was nobody really knew where to stop for the buses. So, that would
definitely help with ridership and so forth. So, I would recommend leaving that for
signage and so forth.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Mr. Chair, then I would, I would like to, and as Mr.
Hokama has said, we don't know what the balance would be left in the Highway Funds,
but is this, it is my understanding that if there was money left in the Highway Fund, could
we utilize that money for the signage and for other things that would come under this
100,000 request?
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CHAIR KANE: I would suggest that we visit that, Members, we can talk about that now, or we
can visit that at the final round, because we don't know at this point what that balance is
going to be until we get through this.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Well, in any event, then I'm going to be asking for
the $100,000, because I think if we're going to actually try to give Public Transit a fair
chance, we're going to need to have that signage. We're going to need to have whether
it's benches or markings or some, something to indicate where these people are to go.
So, I would ask for that.
And then I had one final request in Grants, and I don't think I need Mr. Ginoza for that,
but something that I had brought up earlier and it was suggested that I move into this area
for using transportation money -CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --for another grant.
CHAIR KANE: Any, again, any need for Mr. Ginoza? I'm going to excuse him from this
evening's meeting.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Ginoza, appreciate your presence. Ms. John ... , Ms.
Johnson, and then, Ms. Tavares, I know you have a couple of items for discussion. So,
we'll go ahead and take it up now and deal with transportation.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and this would, earlier I had requested to put in a line
under Economic Development having to do with work force, and there were two separate
items. One was Hale 0' Lanakila, and the other item was. the lunchroom care issue for
Caregiver Pilot Project.
At Mr. Hokama's recommendation, I'm requesting that a $20,000 Grant, which would be
a one time grant be earmarked in this area specifically for Hale 0' Lanakila for van
transportation. And I don't know if that would be appropriate to come out of Highway
money. I would assume, you know, if we're funding other projects, you know, in that
area that this could also be eligible. But I will leave that to Staff.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there's been a request and the Chair can tell you momentarily
where the appropriate place to have that placed, put for your consideration, but the
concept of the 20,000, and I believe this is a one time request?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It would just be a one time request specifically to provide
transportation for the people that are part of their work force where they're having
difficulty, because sometimes the individuals who are participants in that program have,
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you know, let's put it this way, they're not consistently having a traditional schedule. It
would be an erratic schedule. And that's why something like MEO would not always
work. So, they want to have an additional van.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there's a proposal for adding $20,000, and, again, the Chair
will take some time to discuss with Staff where that would be, an appropriate placement,
but at this time the Chair will ask if there's any objections to the $20,000. And if there's
objection we'll, again, allow that to come forward one last time in the next round. Are
there objections to this one time $20,000 for transportation to Hale 0' Lanakila
Organization?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing no objections, Members-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: --we'll work with Staff to figure out where is the most appropriate place to have
that added.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you very much.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, Staff would you please take note, and then we'll work with, with the
Transportation Department or with the Administration to figure out the best placement of
that. Ms., Ms. Tavares, I know you have two others, and, and, Ms. Johnson, I know this
is the same one that you were talking about, bus stop signs, promotion, et cetera. Ms.
Tavares-COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --and I know you also have the MEO Transit Facility land acquisition item.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, the bus stop signs promotions, I think, we had a
communication from the Department to beef up their current, even if we adopt the current
services that we add in $100,000 to cover that signage and promotions and those, and the
like to encourage ridership on these routes.
CHAIR KANE: Was that included in the original Administration Program of 386,096, the
working number from the Mayor?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I don't believe it was.
CHAIR KANE: So, they did not include it in their proposal, or was it identified somewhere else,
and we've just deleted it, Ms. Johnson?

-136-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That was a supplemental request when we were able,
remember when we had identified additional revenues, the Administration sent down a
listing of things that they would include. And I believe the $100,000 was one of them,
so ...
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and, and you're referencing the certification?
referencing?

Is that what you're

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Well, I'll let Ms., Ms. Morrison respond to that just for verification.
MS. MORRISON: Yes, Mr. Chair, the 100,000, it was called start-up costs in that attachment to
the Mayor's letter with certification.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And that request was to be placed under the Administration's
Program in the Department of Transportation General Funds? Can you recall where,
where it was directed or the request?
MS. MORRISON: Well, at that point, I think I was thinking of it in the Public Transit Program,
whatever the Public Transit Program turns out to be in terms of its implementation with
the five year plan, or the status quo, or some combination thereof. Because it was related
to the implementation of that. It could be, it could be a line item somewhere else if the, if
the Committee prefers.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we can plug it into the Grants and Disbursements for Public Transit
Program, an additional 100,000 and proviso it for the use that has been specified by Ms.
Tavares. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Before we go forward, Mr. Hokama, question.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Just a question. The 100,000 was for the full blown request for the
Transit Program?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, it was, I don't think so. It was bus stop signage,
schedules, maps and marketing. I don't 100,000 is going to go very far if we're doing a
full blown kind of thing. I, I'm not really sure if it was for the-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I mean for the -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --Phase 1 or ... (inaudible) ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --for this year's. Yeah, for this year's.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I think it was for the existing, existing routes and
possibly the addition of the, picking up the Kahului-Wailuku one.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Members, Ms. Morrison does have comment to provide. Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair, without sufficient funds for the full implementation of the, of the
five year plan it was really a compromise number that the Administration put forth to
simply get started with those issues, which would cost much more than 100,000. And
now that I'm thinking this a little more carefully, the 100,000 number should not go into
that Bus Transit line item. It should actually be a separate line or in the Admin. Program.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you for your comments. Members, for now the Chair will put it
into Administration for your consideration and have a proviso there of what it's going to
be used for. Is there any objections to having this incorporated there?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, do we have consensus, making sure?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. -CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the new working number ...
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: We just, Staff just wants to check to make sure whether you wanted this in the
Highway Fund or you want to keep it in the General Fund?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA:
Highway Funds.

My preference is Highway Funds.

CHAIR KANE: Okay.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Concur.
CHAIR KANE: Can we accomplish that?
MS. KOLLER: We can.
CHAIR KANE: Even though we don't have an Administrative Program under Highway Funds.
MS. KOLLER: We can make it a separate line item. I guess we need a description, bus signage
and, and I'm not sure what else.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, we, I think we had the description from the Mayor's letter. And so, we'll
utilize that description. And if there's any need for change, we'll go ahead and take care
of that as we move forward. As long as we have the major intent, and it doesn't deviate
from that as we go through our readings at the Council level. Okay. Members, so, for
final clarification it will not be applied as part of Administration. Instead, it will be
applied as a separate line item under Highway Funds. Okay. Any objections, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Hearing none, any additional? Ms. Tavares, I see you have a request for
this body's consideration, MEO Transit Facility Land Acquisition, 400,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Chair. That was presented in testimony
the other day from MEO requesting some assistance with land acquisition in the amount
of $400,000. And I thought I'd put it out here for discussion and decision. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: This, this is a one time grant?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Uh-huh, that's what I understand, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Is there a request for where we put that? Again, a line item under, is the
pre ... , preference General Fund or Highway Fund?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, you know, I, I, I think it would be under General
Fund, because it's the MEO baseyard basically.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have the proposal on the table. Is there any additional
information that is needed prior to that being requested? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I, I would ask the Committee that maybe we can look at
multiple considerations to address this. I, I have been aware, aware as your, your Council
Chair to allow our, I guess Ms. Johnson's Committee to move forward with a Executive
Order consideration for land in Puunene where the original 211,000 of planning money
- 139-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

that we have, we, we were planning to support for a facility might still be a viable site in
my eyes since no land acquisition would be needed, but a land consideration approval
from Council might be required.
So, I would ask that we look at that as one option, and in the meantime, to protect the
proposal from Ms. Tavares, I would say we could also look at putting in the budget, but I
am assuming this would be a bond consideration unless, Chairman, you, you would
prefer to look at a cash, General Fund cash. But if it's a bond consideration then I would
say another way is to leave it off the bond authorization ordinance, and just include it in
the budget as a vehicle to keep the maximum options open for consideration by the
Committee.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, you, you finished your comments, I'm sorry?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Ms., Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it's been the practice of the Committee that if it's an outside
organization that we do not put it into CIP or into bond, because we would not own the
facility. That it would be, unless it wasn't on County land, and that this would probably
be a grant.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you for the reminder.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have-VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No further comment, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: --I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Do you have any additional comments? ... (change tape) . .. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I did have an opportunity to visit with Ms. Baisa, and I
mean, she's here if there are any questions. But one of the difficulties in the Puunene site
is that the space that was required would be sandwiched between other things that had
conflicting uses, and I don't believe that there's sufficient space, and the configuration
that would be needed in order for MEO to adequately utilize that space.
Now that's my understanding. I'm more than happy to entertain that as a part of the
discussion, you know, when my Committee meets, but I think it might be prudent at this
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point to perhaps ask Ms. Baisa or Sandy Baz for information for clarification. But that's
my understanding is that, that's why that site would not be able to be utilized at Puunene.
CHAIR KANE: Is there a request, Members, for, for clarification? We have the, the MEO folks
available for any type of questions. Ms. Tavares, as the maker of the original proposal,
any comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I guess if the site at Puunene is not going to be
adequate I'd like to hear about it now before we get into Committee, because that would
kind of influence where I might support this funding or not funding.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, without objections, Mr. Baz is available for comment this
evening. Thank you. Mr. Baz, if you can please identify yourself for the record, and
we'll have you respond specifically to the questions that are asked. Okay. Ms., Ms.
Tavares as the maker of the, the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, I, I would yield to Ms. Johnson, because she, she
seems to have had the conversation with them during the break.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and I really appreciate you being here, Sandy.
Apropos of the questions that the Committee is basically asking, could you address
whether or not that Puunene site would be adequate, and whether or not you've explored
those possibilities?
MR. BAZ: Sure.
CHAIR KANE: ... (Inaudible) ...
MR. BAZ: Aloha, Chair and, and Councilmembers. My name is Sandy Baz, Deputy Director at
Maui Economic Opportunity. Thank you for allowing me to come and clarify this. As
you may know, MEO was successful in getting a Technical Assistance Grant from the
Community Transportation Association of America. And they came over here with some
transportation experts and did a study on six different sites throughout the Central area
for our baseyard.
And the idea of the Puunene Airport as our baseyard, when they looked at the distance
from the Puunene baseyard to Central Kahului that, that distance would increase our
headway or our dead leg time between the baseyard and where we would actually pick up
our passengers and drop them off. And the first year would work out to be about
$600,000 in increased operational costs by moving our baseyard to that facility.
Because of that and because of the need for us to move out of where we are at in a, in an
expeditious way, we have been pursuing very strongly different avenues, and this, we
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have one site that we are working on with a large landowner to negotiate a purchase price
on, in, right there at the entrance to Kahului, and it's, you know, very centrally located.
And we hopefully can get a fair cost for it, and we think that that's, that's why we're
requesting these funds now.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And then, Sandy, the $400,000 that Councilmember Tavares
is requesting, that would be sufficient for your earnest money to put down on a site to
allow you to go forward and also to be used as matching?
MR. BAZ: Yes, we, we would like, actually we would like to request the $400,000 to, to
purchase, we're requesting ten acres of land and, you know, I don't know how the
negotiations will go with the landowner on the purchase price. If, if we were able to
reduce the cost in which we will work, work very earnestly at, we would not withdraw
that amount of funds for the land purchase, un ... , unless you would like to allow us for
extra costs to include the land purchase, like any costs for subdivision or, you know,
surveys, or, you know, cost related to that, to that type of purchase and acquisition.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, thank you, Mr. Baz. When you talked about your
$600,000 in increased operational costs -MR. BAZ: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --of moving the baseyard.
baseyard from where it is out to Puunene?

That was from moving the

MR. BAZ: Correct. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Do you have any idea if it's closer in like the property that
you are talking about acquiring, how that will impact your operational costs? Because
that's about three miles closer.
MR. BAZ: It is, it is three miles closer. I don't have the exact numbers, of course, with me right
now. From my recollection it was a little under $100,000 difference in operational costs.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Any further questions in this area? Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. Sandy, so the $400,000 that is the actual
cost of the property, or that's a match?
MR. BAZ: No, it would be the act. .. , well it would, we're trying to negotiate a price for the
properties, but it would be the cost of the property.
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COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Thank you. And that's still the ten acre parcel that you, you
reference?
MR. BAZ: Correct.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions, Members in this area with Mr. Baz?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Do you need zoning?
MR. BAZ: The, the parcel of land we were looking at is Land Use, State Land Use Commission
is zoned Urban. I think a portion of it is zoned Heavy Industrial. There's a portion of it
zoned Residential, for some reason. And there was a, and zoned, some of it zoned Ag.
So, we would definitely need to, to figure out what portions those are and make sure that
it does match zoning for what needed to, to do.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Are you going to be asking us for construction money?
MR. BAZ: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: How much?
MR. BAZ: We haven't projected those total costs yet. We have, I, I, I can't even, we have a
couple of trailers that we're going to move over there. We do need to construct our
maintenance yard. Right now we're renting from Kahului Trucking and Storage over by
Pier 2. And so, we need to, you know, move our maintenance yard over there, you know,
combine them all. But we are working with consultants on actual costs of construction.
If I may, we actually had put a request in to the County through the Department of
Transportation and the Mayor for $1.25 million as part of, part of a total package back in
the Fall. And when we, when we gave them information, providing all of our requests
for this FY '06 funding ...

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That was land acquisition and construction?
MR. BAZ: That was land acquisition and construction, planning and design, and all of that. We
also have, that was a portion of it. We were hoping to get a portion from the Federal
Government, which we have now found out that, that we cannot. And we also have a
request in to the State for, into the State Legislature this year for, actually I need to
correct Mr. Klaschka, it was actually a 10 million dollar request.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, without the State, 10, $10 million, this cannot go forward either?
MR. BAZ: We are looking at the land purchase this fiscal year, and that will allow us to go
forward in the planning and design. And then next year we will actually have solid
numbers for you for the actual construction of the facility.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: But our share would be $1.2 million?
MR. BAZ: In our initial discussions it would be about, well, it, it depends on, land costs was a
big issue. We, before when we put in the request to the State and to the County, we
didn't have this parcel of land in mind that would be a lower cost. We had actually put in
a couple million dollars for land acquisition, and this was reduced quite a bit. So, that
will, you know, help the bottom line totally. But, as you know, construction costs are
going up and up.
So, Mr., Mr. Klaschka is here, our Transportation Director, and he's been working more
on this, the construction of the, or the size of the facility and square footages and all that
we can help you with if you need.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is this more to service just Central Maui?
MR. BAZ: No, it's to serve MEO clients on Maui as well as the administration and maintenance
for the MEO transportation throughout Maui County.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Whatever you have, documentation, Mr. Baz, I think would
be helpful to the Committee.
MR. BAZ: Sure.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Your breakdowns, please, and your other funding, potential funding
sources, and, and whatever you can share with us regarding that information.
MR. BAZ: I'd be happy to.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional questions for Mr. Baz? Chair's questions to follow-up on Mr.
Hokama's question.
MR. BAZ: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Is it the intent of MEO to ask for the County's exclusive funding of this project
if Fed's, which you've already been told you cannot use and the State decides not to
support, will the County be funding this 100 percent?
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MR. BAZ: Let me answer that in one way. As the Council knows, MEO does its best to make
sure that we get as much funding from any kind of sources that we can. The State of
Hawaii, we believe, has a responsibility to fund a portion of this. We do a lot of things
that the State should be funding. The County, of course, according to the, the State
constitution is mandated to, to provide transportation, and, and so, we would be asking
the County for a portion of this.
We also are currently working with the Congressional Staff to find out if there are parts
of money that are available outside of the Federal FT A Mass Transit Funding for
facilities, but if it comes down to it, and MEO needs to move out of where we're at, and
we don't have a place to go, you know, we gotta do what we can, we can do. And so, we
may be asking you for the whole thing.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Do you have anything at the State Legislature this year since you've
made a request by the County's Administration back in last Fall for the $1.2 million?
Was there an additional request at the State level for this Legislative Session?
MR. BAZ: Yes, Chair. There's a ten million dollar request.
CHAIR KANE: And have you, can you provide us with a current status of that ten million dollar
request?
MR. BAZ: I cannot at this moment. I will be in Honolulu tomorrow meeting with our State
Legislators to find out, but as you know, they will be ending their session next week, and
they will be, you know, deciding on the budget at that point.
CHAIR KANE: Is your request, I'm assuming that your request is alive and moving?
MR. BAZ: Yes, it is a Grant in Aid. Grant in Aids are looked at, they are not separate bills that
are, are seen. They are looked at within the main Budget Bill H.B. 100.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you very much. Any further questions, Members? Hearing none,
Mr. Baz, thank you very much for your presence here.
MR. BAZ: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Appreciate it. Thank you for responding to the questions. Member Tavares,
you have the floor as the maker of the proposal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I would, I would like to keep the money in there
with a proviso that it be used for land acquisition and activities surrounding the
acquisition of the land. I think there's a better word for that, but for now, I can only think
of that. So, it wouldn't include surveying and appraisals and those kinds of things.
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CHAIR KANE:
Okay.
Members, the request for adjustment to the Department of
Transportation General Fund as a grant is on the table. Are there any objections to the
request? And we will work through the proviso language to describe the intent of this
$400,000 request. Are there any objections? Do we have consensus? Members, this
number will be moved forward as a working number.
Okay. Members, let's continue. Are there any other items under the Department of
Transportation? The Chair would like to move into the Department of Water Supply.
Members, we're, we're moving. Under the Department of Water Supply, we have under
the Administration Program Water Supply Fund. Adjustments have been made including
the feasibility study, acquisition of the Lanai Domestic Water System by the County of
Maui, working number 1,321,160. Questions? Any adjustments?
Members, Page 17, we have Department of Water, excuse me, Department of Water
Expenses, Debt Service, Insurance, Overhead Charges, Employee Benefits, Refund for
Mainland Expenses, Fiscal Customer Service Program, Engineering Programs.
Members, all these numbers have been passed through first round. Are there any requests
for adjustments in any of these program areas?
Hearing none, Members, we're moving to Water Resources and Planning Program, under
the Water Supply Fund. We have made adjustments. We have a working number of
1,099,722. Any adjustments?
Hearing none, moving under Grants No. 1, we have the Dry Forest Restoration,
Professional, excuse me, Professional Services Category, 15,000; No. 2, Grant to Maui
Nui Botanical Gardens; No. 3, Grant to the Nature Conservancy East Maui Watershed
Partnership; No. 4, Grant to West Maui Partnership through U.H. Watershed
Management, $75,000.
Members, Page 18, Grant to the Nature Conservancy for East Maui Watershed
Protection, 100,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is that a repeat of Grant No. 3?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
MS. KOLLER: Those two items we listed separately from the Department of Water Supply, and
I think they describe the two projects. I can find the reference for you.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Both grants go to the Nature Conservancy?
MS. KOLLER: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is there a problem with putting them together? It has two
different purposes, is that why it's separate?
CHAIR KANE: Could we consolidate?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: In other words, I think the question is consolidation is a problem or not a
problem? Members, we'll move forward -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --if there's no objections. Thank you for pointing that out, Ms. Tavares. We'll
move forward with a consolidation, and if there's a problem that we run into with that,
we'll make the adjustment. But for now, and before I do that, Members, is there any
objections to No.5 on Page 18, the 100,000
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No.
CHAIR KANE: --East Maui Watershed Protection. And all you Chair is doing is itemizing
these things. It was described to us as a lump sum, so we're just line iteming.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: This is similar to what I did with the Planning Department.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Because it was all lumped in together-CHAIR KANE: Exactly.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --and I broke it out. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So, this way it's program-oriented, yeah, so each one is to stand on its own. So,
the first question to, Member Johnson, any objections to the Watershed Protection for
East Maui, 100,000?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, the only thing that, there's a little bit different wording, I
guess, its through Grant No. 4, Grant to West Maui Partnership through University of
Hawaii Watershed. Is that the one you're talking about?
CHAIR KANE: No, we're talking about No. 3 -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: You're talking about 3.
CHAIR KANE: --on Line 806.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: There's the Watershed Partnership and then Watershed Protection.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I see. I see.
CHAIR KANE: So, Member Tavares' point is to
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --consolidate the two and just expand the title.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I understand now. I, because we were taking them in
sequence, I thought co-mingling East Maui with West Maui was not going to work.
CHAIR KANE: No. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hearing no objections, I'm sorry, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: You know, Chairman, I would appreciate Staff giving us, if we're
going to consolidate, which I don't have a problem, I, I, I want it, the language clear
enough so we know exactly what this, what the $200,00 is going to be for. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank, thank you, Mr. Hokama, we'll make sure of that.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. ..
CHAIR KANE: Mr., I, I'm sorry, Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The document that we got from the Department of
Water Supply was, actually it's from the Budget Director dated, the letter is March 29th,
and Water had separated out all other Professional Services, and then they provided, like,
a three page document of these grants. And they are two different descriptions, and until
-148-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

we can get back with Water Supply, I'd suggest if we could keep them separate at this
point in time, and then if we see that we, you know, they can be combined, that it could
be that there's, you know, particular reasons that they have separate agreements.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the Chair has recognized Staff in this case. If there are any
objections, we'll, we'll check with Water Department, and we'll see if we can attempt to
consolidate these two, but for the time being, the Chair will stand behind the Staff.
MS. KOLLER: I think -CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: --I think the partnership has more members that are involved in that particular
grant.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
MS. KOLLER: So it's like a consortium, and a matching, and then the other one is just for the,
the protection, and it happens to be with the Nature Conservancy.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so we'll keep it as is for now, and we'll explore that to see if
it's something that we can do to streamline it, if you will.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, thank you for that Staff comments. I would ask, just ask
the Members that if they can recall, I believe, we also had response regarding the use of
Federal Funds that the Federal Government did or continues to allow some of their
monies for watershed programs and, forgive me for not being able to give you the details.
But yet our own State of Hawaii, Department of Health restricts this and does not allow
us to use those Federal Funds for purposes that I think would fit in this category which,
for the life of me, I cannot understand their logic.
But I would hope that as part of this budget deliberations that even after we conclude the,
the formal budget that you, as our Chairman, or, or through Committee action that we try
and get that State Department of Health to recognize the benefits of allowing to use
Federal money for the intended purposes by Congress, please. I think that will be helpful
for us in the next budget cycle. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Hokama. And Staff will take note of your comments, and we
will follow-up. Okay. Members, moving forward under No. 6, East Molokai Watershed
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Partnership; No. 7, RC&D for Miconia containment- 250,000. This is the Grant to Maui
Invasive Species; No. 8, Hydraulic Model - data update, calibration, integration.
MS. MORRISON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: This grant was originally in, on the Capital Improvements section of the
Water Department's budget.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, ma'am.
MS. MORRISON: And it was at my request, with your Staff, that we discuss moving it out of
that and into the Planning Section. And I believe that's where it ultimately should
belong. However, in discussion with the Planning Division Chief, well, one of the
reasons I had proposed moving it out of the CIP was because we had trimmed their CIP,
well their entire budget, in fact, by 1.9 million, and I was looking for ways to support this
particular dollar amount.
However, it turns out that if we delete this it will only be a deletion for about six months
of their budget, because they have funding of their programs through the end of
December of '05. So that if we were able to reinstate this and Fiscal Year '07, it would
only lose six months of work, and I believe that is acceptable to the Department, since we
couldn't find another way to fund this in the first place.
And in terms of other priorities in the Planning Division it was deemed the lowest. In
terms of my request then to move it, I, I'd request now that we can delete this.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you have heard the Budget Director's proposal. Are there any
objections to what has been put forward by Administration to delete this item.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Members. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I just have a question. I, I understand what Ms. Morrison is
saying but, you know, I, I guess what I'm looking at is every bit of money that we could
utilize with Mico ... , Miconia eradication and containment and removal for ...
CHAIR KANE: We're on the next one, you know, Ms. Johnson, we're on No.8.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, I'm sorry. Oh, the Hydraulic Model.
CHAIR KANE: The, the calibration, integration of that Hydraulic
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --Model.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I guess you've lost me on that one.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you. Then that's not a problem, you know,
that's not a problem if, you know, they're not ready to proceed with it. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, so without objections we'll delete that, and the
Chair will come back to Line 790, 795, in a moment, because there will be an adjustment
there. So, hang tight while the Chair finishes up on this list of grants.
We have the final one. This is, again, the proposal by your Chair with support from
various Members initially of 75,000 for USGS Na Wai Eha. And we made the move
from OED into this area of $75,000. Any objections, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Support.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and a final comment very briefly. Oh, I'm sorry. Ms., Ms. Morrison, go
ahead.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: You have a comment. Go ahead.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. The Department, of course, was very pleased to hear
of the support for this. They had programmed it for FY '07; however, they are, again,
short of funds to pay for it, and requested that I request General Funds for this particular
grant.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and, Members, just to make note of the Department of Water's
discovery. Ms., Ms. Morrison, I don't believe we had any discussion really to, to touch
on that. So, I think now is an appropriate time to give a little background to the body as
to the references of the shortfall.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. In the questions that were proposed by you and your
crackerjack staff, one of the questions was about carryover savings figures in the budget
proposal. In the response and the research to carry forward a response to your
Committee, a number of adjustments were made to correct the carryover savings figures
for the, for they FY '06 budget.
- 151 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

A number of adjustments were made, however, the one, the one adjustment that could not
be made was the fact that the Water Department had inadvertently overestimated their
carryover savings by $1.935 million, which meant in order to balance the budget, because
that carryover savings was used as a source of revenue, that they needed to delete
expenses in the amount of $1.935 million.
The only practical way appeared to be in capital improvements. And the Department
agreed to do that, and that's why you received a number of revised versions of their
Capital Improvement Program. Included in that Capital Improvement Program at the
time was this hydraulic model, which I, we just discussed. But in, in light of the
reduction of 1.935 million they're even, their budget is even tighter than it started out to
be.
CHAIR KANE: And those comments don't include the 12 percent increase, Members, which is
part of our, part of, your Chair does not, yeah, it does not include that. Anyway, Ms.
Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES:
money--

So, with the 12 percent increase then they have enough

CHAIR KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --to cover this?
CHAIR KANE: No, this has nothing to do with the 12 percent.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Nothing to do with that.
CHAIR KANE: They had to make an additional adjustment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: In other words, that 12 percent, which your Chair has recommended in the
initial proposal from your Chair, this additional 1.935 million was an additional
adjustment they had to made, make to their capital improvement.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Is this, perhaps, one of the studies that we would want to
absorb in our own account?
CHAIR KANE: The 75,000?
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair is taking note of Ms. Morrison's comments that we consider this in
General Funds. So, Members, in light of the situation that has been described by our
Budget Director, the Chair will ask for your support of the 75,000 for USGS for Na Wai
Eha, and that we work towards, allow Staff to work towards placing it in an appropriate
place. And it may just go right back to -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: To OED.
CHAIR KANE: --OED, under General Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I can support that, and it's movement back to
Office of Economic Development, because I believe we need to get this project out.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And given the backlog of projects for the Water Department,
perhaps we should move this to OED, and, and that way we'll know that it will get out
the door.
CHAIR KANE: Members, that is the proposal on the table from your Chair and Member
Tavares' comments will be incorporated into that recommendation. Any additional
questions or comments before the Chair moves forward? And, Members, we need to
make an adjustment on the working number that is provided for you on your previous
page, Page 17 of 29. The revision will now minus back out the two new grants totaling
$175,000.
So, now, we will have a working number, and Ms. Koller, I don't have a calculator in my
brain, and not ready to make that adjustment.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, it's 630,000.
CHAIR KANE: I see that, but then actually ... (change tape) .. . appropriation figure would be
what?
MS. KOLLER: Just a minute. We, we were back in Office of Economic Development.
CHAIR KANE: Sorry.
MS. KOLLER: We can have that corrected.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so the numbers will be corrected accordingly, and it's just
basically the 175 figure is going to be removed back up. Okay. Members, 705 ...
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, question please.
CHAIR KANE: Yes. Yes.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If you don't mind.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: With this, is the Department's unrestricted funds balanced?
CHAIR KANE: Staff, are you prepared to respond to that question, or do we need Director
Morrison to provide a response?
MS. KOLLER: Oh, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, if you can restate your question, please.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Is there balances left in Water Supply Funds, either unrestricted,
more unrestricted?
MS. KOLLER: No, there is not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: So, it's all been accounted for-MS. KOLLER: We have ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --by the Chairman's new proposal?
MS. KOLLER: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Well, that, that was one of my options, Chairman. So, thank
you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional questions or comments in this area,
Members? Moving on to the next item. Again, we are on Page 18 of 29, Line 834,
Water Treatment Plant Operations Program. We have a working number of 4, 728,385,
Field Operations. We have made adjustments that was approved by you the first round.
working number 5,091,279. Any adjustments? And finally, Members, Plant Operations,
adjustments approved. New working number 8, 796,012. Adjustments?
Hearing none, Members, we have arrived at 7:45. We have finished up your operations
in this round. The Chair is going to ask for a 15-minute recess, and we will reconvene at
8:00 o'clock to start on CIP.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we are in recess... (gavel) . ..
RECESS:

7:45p.m.

RECONVENE:

8:06p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay. Members, we are reconvened. Members, at this point in
time, we're going to go walking through the Capital Improvement Projects. And for
your, for your information, the Chair intends to continue using your Exhibit 1 as of 4/25,
Members, the, the document that we've been using. And the Chair is aware of another
form that was passed out. This is, this can just be used for additional reference for
yourself, but the intent is to avoid any confusion. We're going to walk through the, the
same document that we've been going through, this first exhibit.
And we will start off with Line 850, under General Fund, Hana Community Plan District.
Members, we have made an adjustment there, and we've moved it to Operations. Any
adjustments? Mr. Carroll, you have any comments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Not on this, but I do have another CIP for Hana, additional.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there is a request by Mr. Carroll for consideration. Mr.
Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. On the handout, the No. 1 Item on the
handout is Pa 'animai Park, funding for ground ... , the groundwork for the parking lot and
access road, and the groundwork for the pavilion and playground. And this is for the
addition to Pa' animai Park. On the next page, you' II see the time line, the donation of the
additional land. I won't read it. Everybody has it before them. I would, I'm asking for
$100,000, because this was in October, we were hoping to immediately proceed with the
general groundwork, which will be grading and fill.
And in next year's budget, then hopefully we can address the rest of the park. We do
have, the community has raised money for playground equipment and some of the other
aspects of the park, and we plan to do a lot of this, some of this work in-house. $100,000
will go a long ways toward the prep of the new area and the fencing around the park.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Carroll. Is there a size consideration? What, what, how big is
this park, can we anticipate it to be?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The park is, the total area, I believe, is about, almost four
acres, around four acres.
CHAIR KANE: Four acres. Okay. Members, you hear the request.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can I see ...
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I'm sorry to reveal my ignorance, but I'd like to know
where this is.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Hana.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I know it's in Hana.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll, if you can provide us with just a geographic location, a geographic
location to this Pa 'animai Park?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The nearest landmark would be ...
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The park, the park is located, if you driving into Hana, you
pass the Police Station and the Fire Department on what we call the upper road, which is
still the Hana Highway, you go down about, maybe, 500 yards, and the park is on the left
right before the Hana subdivision. It's on the makai side of the road.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, it would service the subdivision.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It would service -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It would be like a neighborhood park?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: --the subdivision and everybody in Hana, really, because
we're all right around the area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, there has been a request for consideration to adjust this
area for CIP and General Fund, Hana Community Plan District. Would this qualify for
park assessment under new, new park? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, I, I believe it would, Mr. Chairman, except I just looked
up the Han a Park Assessment Fund, and it's like $9,800 or something.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Okay. Thank you. The Chair was going to ask for that update.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
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CHAIR KANE: So, you've got it right in front of you. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's so small.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the request is on the table. Are there any objections to the
adjustment? Ms. Johnson, question.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I, I just have a question, because I was trying to remember.
This is the community playground park similar to what was done in Haiku; is that
correct?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Carroll, I'll let you respond to that.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: The park in, the Haiku, we're building a playground, but it's
just a small part of the park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, this is not a community built playground?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: It is, but that only takes up a small part of the park. It's not a
gigantic structure like the one up Haiku. It's very similar and the same people are
working on it, but it's much smaller.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and perhaps Staff would be able to know then,
because I'm trying to remember what amount of money we put in for, I think it was our
Haiku park. Do we know what we put in the budget?
CHAIR KANE: The $20,000 that was requested.
Kalakupua Project.

Member Molina, can you recall for the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I, I believe over two budget terms we gave out, I think, one,
the first year we gave 30,000, and I believe another 20,000 the following year, if memory
serves me correct.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and that was to provide assistance for the materials to build the park?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is correct.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and in this case, I think Mr. Carroll's provision is for parking lot access
road, pavilion, playground. So, I mean, it's-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, it's different.
CHAIR KANE: --there's a, yeah, there, there's different scope to the request.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and also because there is a land donation on this one,
whereas the other playground was built on County property.
CHAIR KANE: The Fourth Marine Park -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --is County property; that is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and so, I, I kind of look at that as a matching, if you
will, because when I'm looking at these kinds of parks, I want to make certain that there's
a buy in, you know, and a contribution on the part of the local community. So, I look at
the land donation as a contribution then, on the part of the community.
So, and, and it's only because of the philosophy of how these parks are done that, you
know, we can't put in all the improvements that, but there has to be capital raised within
the community, so that there is care given to the facilities. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
$100,000?

So, Members, any objections to the Pa 'animai Park being added,

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. There is no objection. We have consensus. Members, let's move
forward. Thank you, Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: We have on Line 858, the Kaunoa, excuse me, under Paia-Haiku Community
Plan District Government Facilities, Kaunoa Senior Center Wellness Center. Move
partial costs from Bond Fund - 800,000. Members, are there any adjustments? Yes, Mr.
Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Chairman. I make note of the April 24th
memorandum that I sent to all the Members. This is a request for a roof repair to the
Haiku field house, and appropriation of $40,000.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry, Mr. Molina, we have the Kaunoa Senior Center Wellness Center
first.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, oh, I apologize. I apologize.
CHAIR KANE: And so, we'll recognize you once we get through what we have listed on here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Sorry, about that, Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: No, no. No problem. Members, are there any object... , excuse me, any
adjustments to be made here, the $800,000?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We see no objection. Members, we have one other item under this area,
Shoreline Property Acquisition for the TM ... , TMKs that are listed. The Chair has
supported the Mayor's request in this case, and I think we had provided, this case has
been, you know, Corp. Counsel, perhaps you can provide us with just some timing. I
know that the, the hearing has been moved back, but we will be getting an ... , another
adjustment perhaps to this area. Ms. Fujita-Villarosa, are you prepared to respond at this
time? Okay. If you're not prepared ...
Members, the Chair will move forward the Mayor's proposal amount of $3 million,
although we are aware that there potentially may be an additional amount incorporated,
and the Chair believes that we will be able to work with an addition number if it becomes
necessary, but until we get report from Corporation Counsel on the updated status, the
Chair's moving forward with this number. Any objections, Members?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No objection.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I, I recall $600,000 the last time we went around.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct, and it's someplace, we have it in a different place in the budget.
So, that's the number that we're going to use just in case we had that as an adjustment to
an earlier part of our budget, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. I have ...
CHAIR KANE: And, I believe we added it on Line 138, Ms. Anderson, if I'm not mistaken.
Ms. Koller, is that the area that we parked that money for the time being until we get
verification from Corporation Counsel for the need to ...
MS. KOLLER: Yes, it's in the self-insurance.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
MS. KOLLER: Line 138.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair, before you go to the next
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --unless you're not finished with this. I, I'm not sure, I
have a request, I'm not sure if this is the place to put it.
CHAIR KANE: Before you move forward, Member Anderson -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --on this 3 million, Members, if there's no objections, because if not, then
before we go into the Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, I'd like to recognize Mr. Molina who has
an addition that, for us tore ... , and then I'll recognize you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chair. I guess I just got
reenergized from that break. So, anyways, as I stated earlier $40,000 consideration for
the roof repair of the Haiku Field House. The field house has, over the years has
deteriorated and there's been corrosion on the roof, and the field house is currently
closed, because of loose panels falling from the roof, and it is an obvious public safety
hazard and should be addressed as soon as possible.
And keeping in mind of where we can get the monies for it, I've just thrown out for
consideration. Of that 40,000, 34,000 could come from the, I guess if we look back at the
finance area for the insurance programs, a slight reduction from the 600,000 that you've
put in, Mr. Chair, as an addition, a slight reduction there of 34,000, and then the other
6,000 could be taken from the Eddie Tam baseyard expansion reduction. And, again,
these are just some considerations.
I'm basically very open as to where we can get the funding, if it's from elsewhere. So
long as we get the monies to get this roof repaired, so the field house can be opened up
again in the near future. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Regarding the roof repair to the Haiku field house that
$40,000 could come out of the Countywide Parks Improvements -UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --that we added during the last round. And these are the
kinds of projects that typically what you do in that Parks Countywide Improvements,
kind of like unforeseen circumstances or kind of emergency things like this.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, as you saw me flipping through while you were saying that I was
looking for that Countywide ...
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's Line 967.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. 967, Members.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On Page 21.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. There it is.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I had to go hunt for it too.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and that number is the Countywide Park Improvements of 300,000 that
was proposed, proposed as a revision.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: And so, Members, Mr. Molina, the, the Chair will concur with Member
Tavares' recommendation that we could simply put it right through here.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That sounds fine, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: And we can proviso that dollar amount -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: --so that we make sure that that is handled specifically.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Great.
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CHAIR KANE: So, before I move any further, Members, that gets the, the proposal on the table
to have that 40,000 proviso under County-wide Park Improvements. Are there any
objections?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you give us a line, item line?
CHAIR KANE: Sure. Yeah, the Line 967 under General Fund Countywide Parks and
Recreation. We have put a revised number of 300,000 there addition, and we're saying to
take out 40,000 for, from the proviso 40,000 of that. And that, again, is for the roof
repair to Haiku field house, which is on the handout that Mr. Molina provided to the body
dated April 24th, on page, Mr. Molina, 2.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Second page, yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, it's the second page on the very top, Members.
concurrence?

Do we have

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms ...
MS. KOLLER: We just need to know the correct name, name for the facility.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's the Haiku Field House.
CHAIR KANE: It's the Haiku Field House at Haiku Community Center.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Park.
CHAIR KANE: And, Mr. Molina, if you can maybe provide the, the Committee with
verification of the, of the correct name? I don't know if you can-COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. We'll do.
CHAIR KANE: --have your Staff maybe contact the Parks Department to verify the name, the
official name, so that we can have that cited as a proviso.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We'll do. I'll get that for you tomorrow, Mr. Chairman.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you very much. Staff, so we'll have Mr. Molina provide
you with a verification. Mr. Molina. Okay. We'll go ahead and move forward to Ms.
Anderson. And your request, Ms. Anderson?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I'm not sure if this is the place,
and maybe, like Mr. Molina, I need to have this on Countywide Park Improvements, but
I'm going to bring it forward just in case this is where we need to put it. I'd like to
allocate $50,000 for a second lifeguard tower at Hookipa at the Mama's Fish House end
of the beach.
We had several ocean safety officers request this and, you know, this is one of the most
heavily used beaches by visitors. And I would say probably in an extreme sports way.
And that end of the beach is used mostly by our residents intermingling with windsurfers
and, and other people that are using the beach. And so, I think that it's important that we
have a lifeguard station down there, because as they said that end of the beach is not
being watched, because their attention is at the other end of the beach.
So, again, because this is a safety issue, I think it's important that we address it and, you
know, should, should the Members agree to an additional six ocean safety officers, then
there would be sufficient staff to man this tower. So, I respectfully request support for
this.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the request has been put forward. And, Member Anderson,
the Chair will share with you a discussion that I had with the supervisor of the lifeguards.
And he informed me that 50,000 for the lifeguard tower is not adequate to provide them
with a tower that's similar to the one that they currently have built at Hookipa on the west
end of the bay, and that they're looking at a higher figure of actually more like $120,000.
And so, Members, and, and those of you who know my position over the period of my
time on the Council, I've been very supportive of this area, but at this time I've talked to
them, and I've asked them to allow us to revisit this with firmer figures and, and, and a
deliberate approach to this whole idea of increased manpower, equipment as well as
improve facilities. But for now I'll just share with you that this $50,000, Member
Anderson, has been noted by the lifeguards themselves of, of not being adequate for their,
for their needs.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:
Chairman.

Well, I got bad information then, and I'm sorry, Mr.

CHAIR KANE: No, no, no. I'm just sharing with you a, a discussion that I had to follow-up,
because I was interested and engaged in the discussion with the lifeguards privately to, to
figure out how we could get them accommodated. But, at this time, the numbers that
they provided to me weren't, weren't, this wasn't an adequate number.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, I'd still like to have the, the option to consider this
next time in our next go around -CHAIR KANE: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --about 120,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Would this be the area to put it?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, it would be.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And it cost that much, yes.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, at $140,000.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm going to have a hairball attack.
CHAIR KANE: Any additional request in this area, Members? Okay. Let's move on to the
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District, Government Facilities. Members,
the Chair has moved forward the, well has concurred with the Mayor's proposal of
working number 429,150. Proposals? Adjustments? I believe, Mr. Molina, if I'm not
mistaken, you had a request, your No. 2 Item on your Page 2. Is this where you wanted
to look at this?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, that is regarding the Eddie Tam Baseyard expansion. I
guess adjustments in the figures. Initially, I had had a request of totally eradicating the
funding for that, but upon hearing the 34,000 for the Haiku Field House, well, 40,000
could be taken out of the Parks Improvement Fund. Maybe, you guys, we can adjust
those figures to 51,000.
Then there's also consideration, I believe, for the First Time Home Buyers Program. I
had mentioned consideration for reducing that fund by 45,000, the Eddie Tam Baseyard
expansion. And also lighting for Hoaloha Park. So, maybe we can revisit this at, at a
later time. I can come up with some adjusted figures.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But, at this point, I, I do want to leave some funds in there, but
not at 91,000. However, if the Committee feels otherwise, I, I haven't had a chance to
talk to Parks on how much of a priority this baseyard expansion is. If it is in a high
priority, then I have no problems with reducing the funding in this area.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. And the Chair recalls your comments regarding the jogging path, I
believe, was going to be ...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: There's a jogging path, and also there's some consideration of
putting, I guess, part of, as part of this backyard expansion using the Nishida property,
which this Council purchased for nearly half a million dollars for additional parking or
possible satellite DMV office in that area, which has caused some concern not only with
myself, but people in the community as well.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, you'll be deferring on your request at this time?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yes, sir.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any, Members, the Chair has a working number moved forward of
123,000. Any adjustments requested?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, I was right above that, please forgive me.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: On the 429,125, Members, okay. Let me back-up, sorry. Government
Facilities, working number, Kula Ag Park - 254,150; No. 2, the Makawao Division of
Motor Vehicle Licensing Satellite Office, with working number 429,150, any objections
or adjust. .. , excuse me, any adjustments to this No.?
Okay, and then the second Item, Members, under Parks and Recreation, we have the
Eddie Tam Baseyard Expansion, Pukalani Jogging Path, Phase II, 123,000.
Adjustments? Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: My, my adjustment, I don't know how to make this simple,
at this hour especially, but there are a number of projects, and if you refer to my Parks
CIP Fund Adjustment sheet, there are a number of projects that have been assigned under
Park Assessment. And I am questioning some of the projects, being in the Park
Assessment or utilizing the Park Assessment Funds.
The Pukalani jogging path, however, is one that I would consider appropriate for Park
Assessment. And so, all it says in this, this is General Fund money. It says 132,000.
The other balance is 138,000 that is attributed to Park Assessment. And I would, we
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have, we have to kind of leave this one like this, because the Park Assessment balance for
Makawao-Pukalani-Kula, is $138,244.
So, what I have in the parenthesis in mine saying, is the Park Assessment Fund balance.
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Tavares, and Chair apologizes, what, what reference page are you
talking about? I'm looking at your April 25th. Is that. ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, no, there's a separate one that came out just on CIP.
CHAIR KANE: Oh.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Attached to the long thing.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It's attached to the long sheet.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, you folks have that Item with you? Sorry, Ms.
Tavares, I. ..
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, no problem. You know, I can't, there's a lot of papers
around here. I couldn't find it for a while too. I, I just, I guess that what I'm, I'm trying
to, to communicate with, with you, my fellow colleagues, is that the Park Assessment
Fund is what gets contributed to when there are subdivisions. The purpose of the Park
Assessment Fund has not changed since the time it was conceived in 1974, I think it was.
And it's purpose was to provide parks and playgrounds for those subdivisions.
Now over the years, there have been changes made to that Park Assessment Ordinance,
which is in the Subdivision Chapter, by the way. And it got expanded to where people
could do, in lieu of land they could dedicate money. And you remember we've had ups
and downs about that.
Then the last iteration of what you could do instead of land and money was an
improvement to an existing park. And I know what the intent was, because I proposed it
to the Council at the time when I was in my other job. And some of the projects, or a
number of the projects that are assigned to Park Assessment in here have to do with
maintenance of existing facilities, which I do not consider appropriate use of Park
Assessment Funds. And if these Park Assessment Funds are not allowed to accumulate
large numbers, then we cannot buy parks or build parks, because each year will be
depleted by these maintenance projects.
So, I just ask for, for your consideration, Members. When we look at the Park
Assessment, maybe I shouldn't say anything until we get to Park Assessment Projects,
and look at those projects, but a lot of them should be transferred into either bond or cash
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CIP. And given the state of what our budget is looking like, you know, we, we, we may
have to make some really tough decisions about not funding some of the projects at all or
a lot of the projects.
And I just, I just throw that out, Mr. Chairman, because I am concerned that, you know,
like I said, Hana has $8,000 left in it, in their Park Assessment Fund. Kihei-Makena has
1., 1 million something, but they got a big, huge project coming up, that South Maui
Park. And if, if that, if that fund is depleted there's, you know, we're not going to get
very far. West Maui has a balance of $458,000. Lanai has 113,000.
So, Wailuku-Kahului, this is the one I can't believe, has a balance of 107,000. There's
been an awful lot of building in, in Wailuku area. I question that number, but, you know,
I guess that's a policy decision we have to make, make here, and maybe this is a
discussion after we get through this budget in the Parks Committee about making it clear
what the intent of Park Assessment was in the beginning, and as it's been amended
through the years, the purpose has never changed. It's always been the same purpose.
So, I thank you for that. Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Tavares. Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'd like to thank Member Tavares for putting
this together. I've been waiting, I asked, I specifically asked for a status on Park
Assessments, and how did you get these figures? Did we get that?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, we did. It was a Finance 2 response of April 20th.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Well it's lost in the shuffle. I haven't seen it, but I,
I do, I do very much appreciate your doing, doing this breakdown, Member Tavares. It's
very helpful. And I totally agree with what she said. We, we need to use those funds for
what they're meant to be used for not for maintenance. Although I see it's going to affect
my district a lot.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, it is.
CHAIR KANE: And as such, we can attempt to move forward on this in future discussions
outside of this Budget Session.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chair, maybe it would be easier if I don't make
any comments right ... (change tape) ... I'll recommend that something be put in General
Fund or Bond Fund, and then we can go from there rather than us going back and forth
between whether or not the project is in Park Assessment or not.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. That would help us move along quite smoothly, I think.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: If, if the Committee would, would like Staff could work on this, and we could
take Council Member Tavares' suggestions for the move on the Park Assessment, and
then move it into the General Fund, and have it for our next go around.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: That's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, thank you, Staff, for assisting us with that. Members, are
there any adjustments to the 123,000 number on Line 878? Hearing none, let's move
forward. Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District Government Facilities. The Chair
has made adjustments, and so the working number, Members, will be adjusted to
1,880,000.
We have Central Road Testing Office at the War Memorial Complex. That is the trailer,
MIS computer room improvements. The Chair has recognized the additional request by
the MIS Division. The secondary back-up computing center, the Chair has recognized.
We have made deletions in all these areas, and then we have instead provided, provided
them in Wailuku Police Station Renovation and Improvements, and included for Bond
Project. And then finally the Kalana 0' Maui, Kalana Pakui Improvements of $300,000.
Member's any adjustments requested here?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Your No. 2, Chairman, was that, that just dependent on them staying
where they are; right, on the sixth floor?
CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Morrison has a response for us, Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you, Chairman.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. This computer room is on the second floor. It's the
big main frame, and it essentially has grown so that it takes up the entire room, and
there's no ventilation, which puts the system in, in great jeopardy. The intent of these
funds is for the Treasurer to move to another location, and for this room to expand to give
ventilation, air conditioning, proper wiring, security, etcetera.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, if I may?
CHAIR KANE: Please proceed.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does, is this in any way part of the improvements needed for the
HR/Payroll -MS. MORRISON: No.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --com ... , computer requirements?
MS. MORRISON: I don't think so
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: That do the runs and do the multi-terminal input and other
requirements of the project?
MS. MORRISON: It wasn't presented to me with any connection to that at all. It, it may have
some connection, but the discussion was more about the structure and the security of the
room itself.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Further questions, Members? Adjustments? Consensus for
working number? Moving forward. Moving on to Line 895. We have Velma M. Santos
Community Center Improvements. We have moved from Park Assessment an additional
$100,000. We have a working number of $160,000.
We're moving to Line 900 under Sanitation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Wait. Mr. Chair, I'm sorry.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, in the Wailuku-Kahului area-CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I was going to ask for consideration of, I guess I'll call it
the Market Street Park, which was part of the presentation by the Wailuku
Redevelopment Agency for $300,000. This is the park that's between lao Theatre and
the restroom and the new building there. And, and Public Works is working on the
parking lot in that area.
So, when they're all done with it, we're going to have this other blank space that's just
going to basically be dirt. And I think the MRA in their plan had, had requested this
300,000 to, to do a park there, to develop a park in that, what's now that empty space
between lao Theatre and the community, restroom and comm ... , community police
station.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you have heard the request- $300,000.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: If it doesn't work out by tomorrow, because I anticipate some
comment from the new Chairman of the Agency Panel, the five member panel,
Chairman, because in my early discussions with her, Ms. Ohigashi, I asked her that
improvements within the parameter of the redevelopment area be considered as part of
their financial and funding development that they as an agency would put forward. And
she had indicated some comments, and hopefully maybe she can help us with, with this
Item.
But, you know, I, I find it worthy for consideration. I think it needs to be part of a
dovetail continuation of improvements in the area. But with all respect to my colleague
from Upcountry, I would hope that she would maybe allow me some time to get some
comment back from the Chairman of the agency, please.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares can we defer this to next round tomorrow, please?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes, we can. I just wanted to mention it, so we didn't forget
it. And I believe I heard, Ms. Ohigashi said she would be here tomorrow morning to
answer any questions we had about her latest proposal. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And, Ms. Tavares, so you can make note to reintroduce this request
tomorrow.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Under Parks and Recreation in Wailuku-Kahului, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. You know, as I looked at my
memo, I believe the request for the, the lighting at Hoaloha Park might have been more
appropriate under the General Fund, which is for the Wailuku-Kahului District. But,
we'll get to that in a moment. There's been a request made by several members from the
Hawaiian Canoe Club and the NaKai Ewalu Canoe Club to have some type of lighting to
assist with providing security.
I guess over the years, they've had break-ins, and then there's been some vagrancy issues
going on in the parking lot there. There's, I con ... , consulted with the Parks Department,
basically on your behalf as well as Councilmember Pontanilla, since this is your district,
and I did ask them to go and see you folks as well, they gave me an estimation of about
35,000 to put the four light posts in there.
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Now the land, as we know, is owned by A&B, and the canoe structures, I believe, belong
to the County. 35,000 is the number to consider. However, there is an alternative
proposal that was, I was also made aware of. High intensity flood lights could be put on
the canoe hale in place of the four light posts, which would be considerably less
expensive for about $5,000.
And Councilmember Tavares, with her expertise as a former Parks Director
recommended that the $5,000 could come out of Parks Department's operation's budget
for that. Maybe establishing a proviso or something where, if maybe Member Tavares
could further elaborate on that portion.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, any additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I guess because we're talking about $5,000 that seems like a
small amount, but it could also come out of the Countywide Parks Improvement too also.
So, I, I think that that could be handled, you know, just through conversation with Mr.
Buck. Because I'm sure he, he's aware of the situation, and I think he brought it to our
attention, or my attention, and Mr. Molina's attention some time ago.
So, I think that can be handled. I was almost going to suggest that if we did this kind of
lighting that we actually look at solar lighting for security at night instead of using the,
you know, maybe sensory control flood lights or whatever. I think that bears looking
into, and, and I think the Parks Department could do that within their operations budget.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, is there going to be some request for a proviso under the
Countywide Park Improvements suggested in this case?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares, and then I'll yield back to Mr. Molina.
comment?

Ms. Tavares, any

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I, I don't think it's necessary, but I'll yield to Mr. Molina,
since it's his project.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, I guess if, whichever way it gets the job done
whether it be by proviso or by just consulting with the Department. They didn't indicate
to me as to whether, for the $5,000 appropriation whether it should be made through the
budget, budgetary process, but if the Committee wants to go in the direction of putting in
the four light posts, then I think it would be more appropriate to go through the budget
process.
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So, at this point, I, I would consider the flood lights to begin with if that is the
appropriate, if that's the consensus of the Committee. So, maybe what I can do is consult
with Mr. Buck and just do it, have them appropriate the money through their operations
budget for the time being, since it is a minimal amount. And, again, we got some issues
with the land being owned by, by A&B, and I personally would like to see some cost
sharing, but we don't know if they would be interested in doing that as well. So, so, I'll
just leave it, leave it be, but I just wanted to make the Committee aware of this
consideration. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. Member's, any additional requests under Parks and
Recreation in Wailuku-Kahului? This is General Fund. Members, we're moving forward
to Sanitation. The Chair has included the numbers that are provided for you in this area.
We move forward the 485,000 number. Any adjustments? Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. I really don't know what kind
of adjustment is needed here, but I did bring up the issue of what, what white goods
actually include. And I did get an answer from the Budget Director. However, her, her
answer really didn't address the area that I'm looking at.
I've had several phone calls from contractors and air conditioning people who say that in
the past they have taken their used metal, whether it's a large, maybe a roof air
conditioning unit, pipes or what not to Maui Scrap Metal. And now they have no place to
take it. And it's causing them a lot of grief. And I spoke with the Environmental
Coordinator, who's been working on this issue for quite some time, and he said that the
white goods program would not include these kind of items.
So, I don't know how we're going to address this, but it seems like this is something
that's been left out of the loop. So, I'm not certain that there's money to, or even a
program to address these, these items.
So, I'm bringing it to your attention and to the Members attention, and I'll see if I can get
more answers by tomorrow, but it seems like these should, they should be included in this
program somehow, because we do have an awful lot of building going on and, you know,
when they take out air conditioning units, now, I'm not certain, but I think the Director
did include, in her answer to me, I think she did include water heaters; is that correct?
Old water heaters.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, any comments to respond?
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair. Yes, I did get a response from the Solid Waste
Division that gave the guidelines for what they consider white goods, and it did include
that. This item, however, that we're discussing is a land for 400,000, as opposed to the
program itself.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I just saw white goods, so, it rang a bell.
Okay. I just wanted to bring it to everyone's attention. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, any adjustments? If not, Page 20 of 29, we are in
General Fund, Kihei-Makena. The Chair has moved forward and concurs with the
Mayor's proposal for the DMVL satellite office for the Kihei Division of Motor Vehicles.
Any adjustments in this area? Next item, Parks and Recreation, the Waipuilani tennis
courts improvements. The Chair concurs with the Mayor's proposal. Any adjustments?
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: This is one of the ones from Councilmember Tavares that money would be
coming out of the Park Assessment Fund into the General Fund. So, there would be an
increase here, which would take it up to 169,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, the adjustment would be, if you can, please under 913, Line 913,
Ms. Koller, under where it says no revision? Is that where you'd like to see the change
for us?
MS. KOLLER: Just one moment, Mr. Chair.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I think -CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --I think this is one of the one's I can work with Ms. Koller,
because the total for, that I could figure out was $100,000. So, part of it was in Park
Assessment, and part of it's here. So, I think it was 69,000 in Park Assessment and
31,000 in General. So, it came to a total of 100,000. So, it would be, add the 69,000
there to make it in the General Fund. But rather than us take up a lot of time, we can
work it out together and double check our figures.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Ms. Koller, we'll go ahead and move forward and have
adjustments with your work with Ms. Tavares on this area. Okay, and, Ms. Tavares, if
you can make additional, just a noted comment on things that we arrive to.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we'll make the necessary adjustments in this area.
additional adjustments for Parks and Rec. General Fund, Kihei-Makena?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, dear, General Fund. Correct me if I'm wrong on this,
I'm requesting an addition of 75,000 for the oceanfront baseball field reconfiguration at
Kalama Park. This field really is wasted space, and we can't afford any wasted park
space in Kihei. It can't be used in, in, in the way it's configured right now.
And Kihei Little League is going to be hosting, next year, statewide Little League.
Actually, I think it's, it's either statewide or national. It's too late to think clearly. But
this field is really needed right now for the Little League players right now. And with the
improvements that are, are already funded for Kalama Park it does not include the
reconfiguration of this, of this baseball field.
And I've had many parents and, and coaches from Little League express their concern.
So, I'm hoping that the Members would support this. Again, I'm not sure if this is where
we're supposed to put it, but I would ask for your consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, Members, for one moment. Go ahead. Okay, Members, Chair
apologizes. Because of the potential adjustments, because of the Park Assessment figures
and with, with Member Tavares working with Staff in this area, this may be one of the
items that we can look at tomorrow, Ms. Anderson.
Another note that the Chair would like to make was in speaking to Mr. Buck, our Deputy
Parks Director, I believe one of their concerns was that the reconfiguration would create
a, a problem with the lighting and that lighting facing in a direction that was a conflict to
what was perceived by the Parks Department as optimal for, for, for that, for that field.
So, I just wanted to share with you that was a comment at, the discussion that evening
that Mr. Buck made. And I may be mistaken, but I believe that's the comment that he did
make regarding the reconfiguration and the lighting, the potential lighting conflict that
might occur.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: When you say lighting, you mean?
CHAIR KANE: The lighting of the field. If you -COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The bulbs.
CHAIR KANE: --reconfigure it, then you're going to switch the lighting, and it's going to face
in a direction that would conflict with the optimal use of that field, and it may be an
unintended consequence of having this field reconfigured. So, I say that so that we can
follow-up, and Staff suggesting that us, that we look at this tomorrow, and that would
provide us additional opportunity to get more information from Mr. Buck in this area.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's interesting. I appreciate that, Chair, because that
was never brought to my attention. In fact, the reason they want it reconfigured is
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because the lighting, the natural lighting in the daytime makes the ball field unusable.
So, I don't know if we're looking at a trade off. Either we use it during the day, or we
use it during the night. But I will be speaking with the President of Kihei Little League
about this, hopefully, if he's not asleep by the time I get home.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we are under the Kihe-Makena area, Parks and
Recreation. Any additional? I think, again, in Parks and Recreation with this Park
Assessments issue, I think we can move through those a little quicker and defer on those
items, unless you have specific adjustments to the numbers as they are presented. Ms.
Johnson, any comments or questions?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I think my only item, and, again, Staff can look into this if
they want, but this was under Parks Planning, and I, because really it was on my Item No.
12, to add monies in for the Kamaole Point Building Replacement. And I don't know if
it was under, under the, I think it was under Park Assessments CIP. But, you know, if
they want to look and see what's in that Park Assessment Fund, and see if there's
sufficient money for that, that's fine.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Staff will take note of this in the discussion, Ms. Tavares.
Okay. Members, we're moving on. The next item that we have is under Other, Line 916.
The Chair has recommended an adjustment to move to a grant, which we had previously
discussed. And so, this has been zeroed out, and we have, again, we have had our initial
discussion in this area, Members, and I believe we had consensus of the working number
So, therefore, this is where the adjustment was made.
Members, we're moving to West Maui Community Plan General Fund Government
Facilities. Again, for DMVL satellite office, the Chair concurs with the Mayor's
proposal. Adjustments?
Under Parks and Rec., this is where we have moved the traditional Hawaiian Building
Pakala/Armory Park has been moved, and that amount has been increased from 60 to
$75,000. We have a working number of 112,000. Any adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Under this one, when I was looking at the Lahaina Civic
Center improvements, the $37,000, I'm trying to recall, and if Staff knows, was that for
the sewage line improvement or the, the water line? I'm trying to recall exactly what that
was for, because I know earlier I had requested improvements to the Civic Center with
consideration for improving the Civic Center as we had previously requested into,
converting it into a shelter, because we lost our only emergency shelter up at Lahainaluna
Gymnasium.
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CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, on Page 27-10 of your program-COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: --Lahaina Civic Center Improvements, automation of irrigation systems, design
construction of an overflow parking lot, and replacement of tennis court lights.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, this is, this is coming from the General Fund
though, and I don't believe, I, I'm not sure how much money it would take to actually
improve the gymnasium area. So, perhaps what I'll do is try and work with Staff and
maybe ask Mr. Buck a question tomorrow, and I'll try and have something in this area.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional requests in this area, Members, the working
number of 112,000. Any adjustments at this time? Okay. We're moving to Lanai
General Fund. We have made an addition ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: The original request for the Hale at Armory Park was
60,000, and you, you added an additional 15 -CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --to make the total 75.
CHAIR KANE: That is correct. The Chair did not recognize, in the specific proposal, the Chair
did not recognize $15,000 noted for profit and 10,000 noted for miscellaneous.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, you got a breakdown on that?
CHAIR KANE: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: I think that was provided to all Members.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: So, the Chair decided not to recognize those two components of their proposal.
Okay. Members, moving on to Lanai, we have the Lanai Fire Station addition. The
Chair concurred as well as an adjustment to the Lanai Community Center plan and design
for expansion including the certified kitchen. Any ... and that's a 100,000 for a total of a
working number 215,000. Adjustments? Hearing none, under Parks and Recreation,
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Members, briefly we've made some adjustments there with a working number of
162,000. Adjustments? Under Other, Lanai Youth Center, we've moved to Parks and
Rec., made the adjustment.
Moving to Molokai. Members, the Chair is looking at, and we have made this move
earlier. So, the working number is 160,000. The Molokai Police cottage has been moved
to Operations and has been approved as a working number, by this body. Adjustments?
Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you. I, I'd like the body to consider the
inclusion of $40,000 for a CIP project for the Duke Maliu Regional Park parking lot
design. And, and obviously the Duke Maliu Park, the only County-owned park on the
island, because of its extreme use at this particular point, there is inadequate parking and
all of the, the majority of the, the individuals who participate in the programs, or who
view the, the venue parks along the main highway of our street on both sides of the road.
So, this is more a request that will, that will address safety concerns for our Island. And I
ask the, the body for their consideration in the request.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Mateo. Members, the request has been made to include
$30,000 for parking design. Ms. Johnson, question?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and because, is this exclusively for park users, or is this
for parking in general, because I'm, I'm not certain?
CHAIR KANE: The, the Chair can assist in the response. We had overwhelming, I believe,
discussion on the Island of Molokai during the public hearing, or a lot of comments, put it
that way, with respects to the Duke Maliu Park having inadequate parking for the use of
the facility. And, therefore, this would be for an expanded parking area within the
parking, within the park area instead of out on the road where people are currently
parking to utilize the facility. So, this request is to provide additional or design money to
expand for the park, Duke Maliu Park.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, it's exclusively for park users.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's not for, Members, just general parking.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, they're for additional use for the area other than if somebody were to go
to Kaunakakai Elementary School, as an example, which is adjacent to the park, but this
is for the use of the park.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and in addition to this, the request, will the Parks
Department, the Planning Division, be able to work on this in-house, or is this a contract
that would have to be let out to someone else to move this forward?
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, thank you very much. It, it's a project that will be
done in-house.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And the Parks Department can accommodate this?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
Consensus?

Members, the request has been made.

Any objections?

COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you we have support. Members, we will add $30,000, and we'll note it's
designated use. Page 21 of 29, Members, General Fund Countywide. We have made,
your Chair has made adjustments. We have a working number of 650,000. We've
reduced Countywide Fire Facilities 100,000, and we have increased, excuse me, we have
concurred with the Countywide Facility Building Improvements, and we have added
300,000 to Countywide Police Facilities, working number 650,000. Adjustments? Ms.
Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, when we finish with this could we return briefly
to Park Assessment? I, I missed one of my items.
CHAIR KANE: Park Assessment.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Or, or it's not Park Assessment, but the Parks General Fund
Countywide 967. I missed that line for some reason.
CHAIR KANE: Well, we haven't gotten there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: We didn't get there yet.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, oh. Okay.
CHAIR KANE: I'm on the previous one -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I'm sorry.
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CHAIR KANE: --Government Facilities... (change tape) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Hang in there, Members, hang in there. The Chair intends to take one more
break so you can get a little bit more rest, and then we'll try to wrap it up as best we can.
Members, any objections to the working number, excuse me, adjustments to the 650,000
number?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Parks and Recreation. We have made adjustments. We have a working
number of $850,000. Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, we put the proviso for the Haiku Field House at
40,000 under the Countywide Parks Improvements?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair, I'm confused, because when we were talking
about the request for Duke Maliu Park of $30,000 -CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --that was not to be under Parks and Recreation then. It, it
was going to be under Countywide Government Facilities?
CHAIR KANE:
District.

No, we had it under the General Fund for Molokai Community Planned

COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: On the previous page.
CHAIR KANE: On the previous page.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, so it's not going to be put then, it's just going to be--
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Separate line.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --separately under Molokai and not underneath the Parks at
all?
CHAIR KANE: That's correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and that was why I asked the question about parks.
Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: It can be under Parks; right?
CHAIR KANE: We can do it under Parks. We can make that adjustment. Under Countywide,
and we can proviso it, Ms. Koller?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: No, I, I'm sorry, Mr. Chair. I, I was referring to that under
the General Fund Molokai Community Plan District that it would be under Parks and
Recreation and that would be No. 1 not No.3, under Government Facilities.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, we would make it a separate heading -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Right.
CHAIR KANE: --under Parks and Recreation.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Okay. Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair apologizes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, no, no problem.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, moving forward.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, one question.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Mr. Hokama. And we are under Parks and Recreation Countywide.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yes, thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We're okay, Members.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I, I, I'm going to be speaking about Line 996, Mr. Chairman-CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: --regarding the increase due to settlement. And, again, Corporation
Counsel can signify if we need to maybe take a recess, but I, I have prepared to sent to
Council, Chairman, a settlement with the Federal Government and the County of Maui.
Is this amount part of that communication that will be forwarded shortly to Council, and
then referred to the appropriate committee, or is this something totally different?
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. I'll ask Ms. Koller to respond. Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, I believe this relates to a settlement agreement with, I, I, forgotten the
name, but we adopted the, the Council adopted the plan that was, there was a study that
was done for park improvements. Primar. .. , a lot of them at beaches and elsewhere park
facilities. And originally the amount was, like, $1.5 million per year that would need to
be done in the next five years.
And when Parks came in they had, only had 400,000 in here, but they did send a
communication that indicated that a recent meeting with the Port Master had increased
that amount by another 150,000. So, I don't think it's the same one that you're talking
about. Is it? This one was not with the Federal Government. It was a private party.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Corporation Counsel, Mr. Chairman, are, are, are you, are you able
to give comment at this time?
CHAIR KANE: Are you prepared, Ms. Fujita Villarosa.
MS. FUJITA VILLAROSA: No, I'm sorry, I'm not.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Okay. Thank you then, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the working number of 850,000 at this time, again, is a
working number. Adjustments? Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh, yes, this was the area that I had speaking about Line 967,
I believe, and this was under my Item No. 10, which would be to add $300,000 to the
Parks Department budget earmarked specifically for pool heater replacement for County
pools. I, after speaking with Council Member Tavares, at the very least, I would like to,
if we're uncertain about the type of equipment to utilize for our pool heaters, because we
continuously seem to be having these breakdowns. I would be willing, and, and, to ask
the Members to entertain some kind of allocation at least to proviso that before any
money would be expended that we make a determination as to what the best type of
equipment would be to replace these pool heaters with. Because if we keep repeating the
same mistakes or keep repeating replacement with the same equipment it's going to be
keep breaking down.
So, I just would like guidance from the other Members if they're willing to entertain this
particular budget request.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the request to add 300,000 to the Parks
Department Budget that is earmarked specifically for pool heater replacement for County
pools. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: But with the proviso that a portion of this money, before one
dime is expended, that a study be completed, you know, to determine the type of
equipment that would be more durable. Otherwise, no sense in spending $300,000 if
they're going to keep breaking all the time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares, comment.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman, Ms. Johnson and I chatted just briefly about
this, and I think, my feeling is that we should wait on this particular appropriation, and
allow the Department to do an assessment, complete assessment of all of their pool
heaters. And I, I just wanted to point out that the swimming pool heaters that were
provided in the lists that they gave us in their last, one of their communications on PR 2,
listed all the different pools and the kinds of systems they had. They're all different.
They're all different systems.
So, it's not like we've had one system installed in all of our pools. And so, there's going
to be different assessments of that, and this is actually what's tied into my request for a, a
pool heater mechanic helper for the Depart. .. , for the Aquatics Department. But that is
it. It's not the same brand, it's not the same type throughout, and so it's, it's, I would
rather see them do an assessment and let us know what they need later on with the
Aquatics Division.
Because I think, you know, we don't have to wait for six months, not six months, but it
doesn't take that long for them to do that assessment, because I think we have one
mechanic now, and I think he knows them pretty well, but he, he doesn't have, hasn't had
time to give us a complete assessment or recommendation about these pool heaters.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, as the proposer.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, you know, I can completely understand what
Councilmember Tavares is saying. My only concern would be that if we don't put it in
the budget now, you know, what, what is going to happen is that once they do the study
we may not have sufficient monies available.
So, that, that's my only concern, is that because we had so many requests from every
single district, because people are really upset, particularly Upcountry, because it's very
cold. So, I really would like, you know, if nothing else, to at least provision this. I still
would, you know, I still would like to put some money in, maybe not 300,000, but some
money so that at least we can begin replacing, because we know we're going to have to
replace them with something.

- 182-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County ofMaui

April 26, 2005

So, I, I don't know how else to accomplish it, and direct the Administration that this is
important to the people. So, I, I just throw it out there for Members consideration.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Johnson, in order to have an opportunity tonight, is there a specific
number that you would like to ask for, and we just find out if we have concurrence?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I would put in $100,000.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you hear the request specifically for the heater replacements for
County pools, $100,000. Is there any objection to this number as a working number, in
this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I wouldn't have an objection if we could move this money to
the Equipment CIP Bond.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And then that way if they're not ready to go, we don't have
to expend the money.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the adjustment. Ms. Johnson, objection?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: That's not, that's not a problem.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you hear the request under Equipment Bond, $100,000
appropriation for heater replacement for County pools. We'll allow them to prioritize
based on the demand. And, Members, I will briefly share that my children come home
with blue lips. So, but the, but the Chair will yield to, to the will of, of this body.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because I know that, what the cost for one pool heater is,
which is probably $100,000, it could be as much as a 100,000 expenditure for one really
good pool heater. I would ask then if it's going to be placed in the Equipment Bond that
we go for the full 300,000 then, because they're not going to go forward with the bond
until they get the proper equipment.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you hear the request. Okay. For Equipment Bond for
swimming pool heater replacements, 300,000 under Equipment Bond. Is there any
objection to this adjustment? Hearing none, Members, it will become a working number,
and Staff will put it in the appropriate location of our budget docket.
Members, the time now is 9:15. The Chair is going to call for a recess for 15-minutes,
and then we see how far we can go. I recognize we're getting tired, but, again, keeping
time.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: We gotta finish, Chair?
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, we gotta finish. So, we're going to take another 15-minute break, and
then, Members, I want you to hang in there, and we want to wrap this up. Okay. So, we
are in recess until 9:30... (gavel) . ..

RECESS:

9:15p.m.

RECONVENE:

9:34p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Okay, Members, here we go. Thank you very much for that much
needed break. Members, the Chair recognizes the time, and we're going to keep on
cranking through. Members, let's start back up, again. We're under Highway Funds,
Line 970, the Hana Community Plan District. We have two Items that are listed. We
have District Road Resurfacing, and the Paihi Bridge Replacement. Both Items total of,
working number, of $1.4 million. Adjustments?
Next, we have the Paia-Haiku Community Plan District Road Resurfacing, 300,000.
Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'd like, if this is the right district, I'd like to add Piiholo
Road design $400,000.
CHAIR KANE: I believe we determined that it would go into the next -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: --the Makawao.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I see it. Thanks.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you very much. Any adjustments to the 300 for Paia-Haiku? Yeah, and
this is where, I'm sorry, Members. No, that's okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You sure it was 100,000?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, all those roads look alike.
CHAIR KANE: Members, this is the area that we had, perhaps some discussion later on that we
had Community Plan Districts and this area being consistent. So, hopefully somehow, I
don't know how we can, if it's possible, that we can bring some consistency to our
districts. Our currently planned districts, if you notice, it's split up. Makawao and Paia
and Haiku should be together, but anyway.
Moving on. Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District Highway Fund, we have
concurrence with the, with the Administration and the addition of Piiholo Road for
$400,000, working number 1.6 million. Mr. Molina, I believe you have an Item for
discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you very much, Mr. Chairman and, but I
appreciate the additional funding for the Piiholo Road improvements. The Department
gave us a figure of 270, but literally, if you have the opportunity to travel it, you can
definitely see why it needs more funding. As a matter of fact, we used the County car
with myself and Mr. Saldana and Mr. Miyamoto from the Department traveled up there.
At the end of the day when we were coming down, the brakes gave out on the County
car. So, just to give you an idea of how bad that road is.
I'd like the Committee to consider a proviso to include within the Piiholo road repairs the
inclusion of Olinda and Alaluana Roads as well, if that proviso would be acceptable.
Olinda Road is a very heavily traveled road. You have Seabury Hall High School up
there. Also there is a lot of ongoing construction in the area. It's starting to grow, and
Olinda Road is the passageway, if you will, for the Makawao Rodeo during the Fourth of
July.
So, there are some repairs to that road that's needed as well. So, if the Committee would
consider that proviso as well for the Piiholo Road repairs.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Mr. Molina. And that would be for the working number of 400,000
as proposed by your Chair?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: That is, that is acceptable if, if that is the way, the, the
preference of the Committee. When, when the Department gave us the estimate it did
include Olinda and Alaluana Roads. However, if the Committee feels the additional
monies are, would be needed, it would be much appreciated by the community. I think
we heard from one testifier the last time Piiholo Road was addressed, was, I think, back
in the Tavares Administration, which was some time ago.
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So, it's been a, been a while. It just seems like the roads Upcountry need a lot of repair.
If you recall last budget, Chairman, it was Kaupakalua Road. Now we have Piiholo Road
in Makawao. So, anything above the 270 is appreciated.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have a working number of 400,000 with the proviso
presented by Mr. Molina to include Olinda and Alaluana Roads.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I would just ask my, the gentleman from Paia-Haiku, this one is,
would just be for the initial engineering and design? Because I'm sure it would take a lot
a more for construction.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: You think so?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I think it include plan and design. And, and just the,
the, the worst segments. That's what we were told, because there are some really bad
spots on Piiholo Road especially.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Yeah, Chairman, I'm happy to support the gentleman from PaiaHaiku. You know, I, I for one would not like to let the Department forget the priority
that we are placing with Piiholo.
So, I was, I'm even willing to put Alaluana and Olinda in another line if that's the
Committee's wishes, because I feel Piiholo needs the priority that I, I'm willing to give
the support for. So, that, that's just my comment, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Any additional comments, Members? Is there any, excuse me, any
objections to Mr. Molina's request for the consideration of this proviso to incorporate two
other roads, Olinda, Alaluana?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have consensus. Okay. Members, we're moving forward.
We're on Page 22.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I would like to, it just throws me off when Mr. Molina's
talking about roads in his district, because I know I follow him, but this also has Pukalani
and Kula in it, so I guess I better pipe up now.
I wanted to have considered by the Committee Omaopio Road, the 3.5 plus or minus
miles, and to add, well, it's a hundred, well $120,000 per lane mile, and I don't know if
we have to do any design on this or not, but I would like to see some monies put in there.
We've had not so, I think people just kind of gave up on this, except for the Kula
Community Association, but we had quite a number of residents last year complaining
about Omaopio, and it's the, the part above the Surfing Goat Dairy Ranch toward Kula
Highway. So, it's that section of the road that is not in good shape at all. So, I'd ask for
that consideration, and I, I would just put in like 300,000 and see where it goes.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the request to add an additional item numbered No.5, for Omaopio
Road, 300,000 addition for working number of $1.9 million. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have consensus. We have a number of $1.9 million as our working
figure. Page 22, Members ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That was Omaopio Road for 300,000?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, I had others on my list, but at this time I will
forego requesting those, those roads.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Any additional areas, excuse me, any additional items in
this district for Highway Fund? Ms. Anderson, are you raising your hand?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. It's usually your angle of raise, that's why, when you want my
attention, so ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thanks for asking.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, Page 22, Highway Fund- Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District
Road Resurfacing 600,000. Aleo Place drainage improvements we've made an
adjustment there with an additional 150,000 to the Mayor's proposed 150 for a total of
300. Imi Kala Extension, Members, we had proviso that for only two lane expansion.
Papa Avenue and Lono A venue traffic signal.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I have on my proposal to delete this project.
CHAIR KANE: Which one, Ms. Tavares?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: The Papa Avenue-Lono Avenue traffic signal, and have them
try a four-way stop prior to putting this in, the signal in. This is the one by Maui High
School.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, and, and the Chair is trying to think on his feet on this one. We provided
the Department with that opportunity to move forward. Do they have come forward with
the resolution to, to do the temporary -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I believe so.
CHAIR KANE: --four way stop?
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: They haven't Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: The proposal is to do just that and the $400,000 would
leverage on some Federal dollars. I understand that you folks made a study on traffic
light, and I had several comments from community members in regards to trying the
four-way stop first, and then if we can move forward later on, if it's required to, you
know, put in the traffic light. If there was plans to extend Lono Avenue to Kuiheilani,
then the traffic signal would be required.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. So, Member Tavares, the request is to keep the money
there, because they have the option to move forward with that temporary four-way stop
provision, and then make a determination for a proposal. And if the money is removed
then we would not be able to have any -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah.
CHAIR KANE: --improvement on that. However, if it's there ...
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COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I was concerned that if it was there they wouldn't do it the
other way.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Then we can proviso it that the four-way stop, the temporary there, is
what they have as authority. We can also proviso it that they have to do that first and
provide us with, with a, a, a traffic report to that four-way stop.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I would be comfortable with the proviso, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Members
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --and Member Johnson, before I recognize you, Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONT ANILLA: Yeah, just one more comment.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: In regards to a four-way stop, we still need to talk to
Maui High School as far as redirecting their traffic coming out of Maui High School
away from that intersection.
CHAIR KANE: And, Members, the difficulty will be that the Papa A venue coming out of the
Maui High, if you folks are aware, coming out of the Maui High School parking lot that
most people will turn south on Lono and then turn left on Papa to go out onto Puunene,
and then towards Mokulele down to Kihei since all the Kihei kids go to Maui High
School.
So, keep in mind that to redirect it, we would have to redirect it back down past Kahului
Elementary School onto Hina Avenue, right on Hina, and then down to Papa out onto
Puunene. So, if we direct the one way, keep in mind they're going to go, be driving out
past the elementary school, which his finishing school at the same time. So, Members,
with the proviso language is that acceptable? And, Ms. Johnson, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well I, I also had this one, and what I had done was I had
reduced it so that it would only be 100,000, but with the proviso I think that that will also
address the issue, because I just think that one more signal, and already there are serious,
serious backups on Puunene with the light at Papa. It's terrible. It backs up both ways,
and actually now it's affecting the traffic on Dairy Road and actually the highway coming
in. So, I, I just can't see that traffic lights are working that well. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, with the proviso, continuing W aiale Road improvements
proviso only two lane expansion. This impacts the parking for the graveyard across from
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St. Anthony School. As you can see, those of you who drove down Lower Main recently,
they are currently doing work there, as well as the addition, drainage improvement at
Papa A venue and Palama Drive.
And this has been moved from Bond, the 500,000 addition. And the Chair concurred
with Member Pontanilla's request that his district for this addition. Members, we have a
working number of $2.975 million with a proviso on the No.4 Item on Line 996. Do we
have consensus or questions? Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I brought this up earlier during the Department's, the
explanation regarding Line 995, the Imi Kala Extension for $775,000. While I can
support the, the project, Chairman, as the Director of the Department agreed to, this
project is a condition of zoning that C. Brewer, at the time of the application to get
Piihana Project District and Wailuku Project District approvals by this Coun ... , by the
Council agreed to this condition as a condition to perform as part of their Land Use
authorization.
Here we are now asking the Highway Fund to take care of the developer's agreement for
zoning. I have a philosophical problem with this, Chairman. I grant that the project is
needed, but I do not believe that the County should circumvent an agreement that was
entered into to get a Land Use approval.
And I had stated that earlier when we asked the Director, and he acknowledged that this
was a condition of zoning. That I would hope we would find or be able to get the
developer or his entity to make-up the cost of financial resources to pay for this project.
I don't think it's fair. I find it quite distasteful myself that it's even being presented to us,
and I, at this point, state my objections to this funding proposal, Chairman. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Members, the Chair realizes, and so I will ask for
concurrence with, from the body that this is the first time, I believe, that we are going
through CIP, if I'm not mistaken.
UNIDENTIFIED COUNCILMEMBER: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and so we are practiced from the beginning up until CIP was, if there's
adjustments, and we needed concurrence for the number to move. However, in this case,
because we have not gone through CIP and to try to expedite the attempt to anyway, the
Chair will recognize an objection to this, of this 775 and would ask that we get a
consensus of the majority of Members to allow it to move forward. And if there's not a
consensus of the majority of Members in this case, that it would not move forward.
And I think that can accomplish, I think, some time and not coming back and revisiting
something that we basically have made a decision on. Members, are there any objections
to the Chair moving in this manner?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, now, we have, any, are there any objections to any of the other
numbers that have been presented under this area? If not, for the Imi Kala Extension for
775, Members, Mr. Hokama has stated his objection to this number moving forward. I
will pose the question, Members, we can have brief discussion in this area, and the Chair
will ask for a hand count to see whether or not this will move forward. And I will need
five for it not to move forward. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If you're going to ask for that kind of a determination now,
could I ask a question for more information?
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Does Member Hokama, can he tell us what project this
was a condition for?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Piihana Project District approximately 20 years ago.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama, do you know the current builder or, or the person working in this
project now?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I believe it's Stanford Carr Development, Mr. Chairman, and I
believe this was one of either 11 or 21 conditions placed upon the project district. So, it
might be No. 11 of 21 conditions, but it is in the Zoning Ordinance, Mr. Chairman.
Tomorrow I'll be happy to get written verification for the Committee if they so desire.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And, and the Chair's other question would be, is there a project
that is under way that would trigger their requirement of this condition? In other words,
if they're not doing anything in the project district, are they still compelled to move
forward on conditions, if they're not moving on their project.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: My understanding ...
CHAIR KANE: Again, this is just for inquiry, so we understand where we're going.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Mr. Chairman, as I understand it, the Piihana Project District is tied
to the Wailuku Project District. And that is why part of the. .. (change tape) . .. I believe
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to Mr. Kim, and of the other conditions of this project district approval was the bridge
spanning lao Stream.
Okay. So, Mr. Kim has agreed to move his portion of the project district forward that he
will do that improvement. Part of that improvement though will be greatly enhanced
with the Imi Kala component. And, again, a part of the Piihana requirement is that it
would provide "X" amount of affordable units. If those units cannot come on line, it will
impact the, the additional market units that Wailuku Project District will be allowed to
start construction on. And I believe we are reaching close to a critical juncture where
Wailuku Project District may not continue to build more market houses, because of the,
the requirement that Piihana Project District places as part of the fulfillment of zoning
conditions, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I also think that when we look at the projects moving
forward the other consideration is the designation for lao Aquifer. And many of these
projects including the market price projects may not be able to move forward if we don't
resolve the water issues. So, many of these projects may never come to pass if we don't
address those issues and our storage.
So, I have no problem with holding this back. I, I guess a budget amendment could be
made at some point later in time, and if I'm not mistaken, wasn't this the one that the
school objected to at St. Anthony?
CHAIR KANE: They objected to a -VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: A four lane.
CHAIR KANE: --four lane.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Four lane.
CHAIR KANE: In other words, an additional 35 feet being condemned from their existing
property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But would they object if we were to leave out even
this element?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'm sure they would.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair's, the Chair's take on it, Ms. Johnson, is that they're just fine the way
it is right now -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh.
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CHAIR KANE: --because it does have, it does not have any impact as far as traffic to the school
facility
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: --because this road is adjacent to their property.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: So, if we leave this out it's not going to damage them in any
way, shape or form?
CHAIR KANE: That is correct.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we have a proposal on the floor to delete $775,000 from this working
area in the Wailuku Community Plan District. Any further discussion? And, Members,
I'll ask that you be succinct with your comments. Hearing none, Members, can I have
anybody, excuse me, Members. Support for Mr. Hokama's deletion say aye.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, let's delete. Thank you very much. The working number
now would be $2.2 million; am I correct, Staff, 2.2 million? Any adjustments, additional
adjustments in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I would just like to thank Member Hokama for bringing
this to our attention. This could have slipped through so easily, and because Piihana
District was entitled sometime ago it's, it's easy to lose sight of what their conditions are.
So, thank you very much, Mr. Hokama. This, I feel I'm appalled that this was brought
forward.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. And I would ask that the, we wait until the end to
thank each other. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You just thanked me.
CHAIR KANE: I know, that's why, thank you, Ms. Anderson. Hypocrisy. Members, moving
on. Highway Fund - Kihei-Makena Community Plan District. We have 300,000 road
resurfacing. Adjustments? West Maui 300 --
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait. Wait. Wait.
CHAIR KANE: Could you speak up? I'm looking down and reading while we're going.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You, you're going to fast. 300,000, all I can say is whoopdi-do. We've had a request for many, many, many years to pave Hauoli Street or to
provide a sidewalk at Hauoli Street. And I would request, respectfully request from the
Members a $500,000 allocation for this.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have a request to include, I see under, Ms. Anderson, your
numbers again, I'm sorry?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: 500,000. And, Mr. Chair. ..
CHAIR KANE: I'm looking at your 100,000 on your sheet.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I know, that's an error.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Again, this is a public safety issue. The items I'm bringing
forward are primarily because of public safety. And, you know, I know there has been
some concern that this sidewalk would dis. . ., displace some on-street parking.
However, there is a, a State lot at the end of this street, a dirt lot, that is scheduled for
paving for parking. So, I don't think that it's going to be a problem, and there, there are a
lot of full time residents living in Maalaea, so I think it's appropriate that we fund this.
CHAIR KANE: You're referencing Haycraft Park at the end, Ms ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No, at the other end.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Towards, towards the harbor.
CHAIR KANE: Oh, okay. Thank you. Okay. Members, the request for 500,000 to be added to
have a total of 800,000 as a working number, Kihei-Makena Community Plan District,
Hauoli Street sidewalk. Members, any discussion in this area?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Support.
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CHAIR KANE: Members, without objections.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Let's put the 500,000 in. I know the Maalaea people will be very happy,
Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, I'm not finished either, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We can, we have an 800 figure. Ms. Anderson, continue.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you. I'd also like to request the Members'
consideration of $100,000 for crosswalks on South Kihei Road. This has been an issue
for some time. We've had public testimony on it. I met with the Kihei Community
Association about this. They provided us with a list of crosswalk, crosswalks that need to
be improved, and in many cases, that means just painting them, and in a few areas where
crosswalks need, need to be constructed or, or, you know, there's nothing there now, and
we need more crosswalks.
I don't know how many of you travel South Kihei Road, but it, it's really a pedestrian
way. And the pedestrians are competing with the traffic on South Kihei Road, which is
bumper to bumper. And we've had many accidents, and I think for safety reasons, for
our visitors, we need to put in better crosswalks along South Kihei Road.
So, I, I would respectfully request support from the Members for $100,000 for crosswalks
on South Kihei Road.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, there is an option for us to consider
Countywide Road Safety Improvements, which is under Countywide Highway Funds in
this area, and we can proviso that amount, again, just as an option instead of adding to
this other side, because that was an addition over and above the Mayor's proposed
Countywide Budget. Any comments or questions, Members?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, I can support your option to address Ms. Anderson's
request.
CHAIR KANE: Member Anderson, I'm looking at Line 1030 on Page 23, and the
recommendation for your consideration is to incorporate your request of 100,000 here as
a proviso under Countywide Road Safety Improvements.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Members, any objections? Do we have consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Ms. Anderson, any items?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yes, one more, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: You know, when the, the, the fire station in Wailea was
built, lots of heavy construction trucks were used, of course, and there are many potholes
on Kilohana Road just down from, fronting Wailea Fire Station and just below it. It's
actually a small portion of the road, because there has been subdivision work done below
that, and the developer has resurfaced the road up to that point.
So, I'm sorry that I didn't have a chance to check this figure with Public Works, but I'm
asking for $35,000. There are potholes that actually, two potholes that are so large that if
you hit it, you're going to bottom out your car. And I've had complaints from several
people that this has happened too.
So, I'm requesting that we include $35,000 to patch up this roadway. And, as a matter of
fact, the County should have done this when they completed Wailea Fire Station, and
they've admitted, the Department has admitted that to people who have complained and,
and passed this information on to me. So, I don't know if there's another place we could
put this, but I'd at least like a proviso to make sure that this happens.
CHAIR KANE: Members, the Chair can request in the same area, although I know the request is
being proposed as resurface as a pothole. This may qualify under, again, Road Safety
Improvements to rectify a problem from the heavy traffic. And, again, the Chair can
recommend, as a consideration or alternative, to plug it under Countywide Road Safety
Improvements under Line 1030 as a proviso for your consideration. Members,
comments, questions?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Without objections, Members, we'll provide that as a proviso under Line
1030. Thank you, Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we are, again, still in Kihei-Makena. Any additional requests
in this area? Okay. Moving forward to West Maui Community Plan. We have Road
Resurfacing for the district of 300,000. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It, it's a little late to laugh, but I, I don't know where to
begin. The lower road doesn't have enough money to complete, just based on acquisition
of the right-of-way. We don't have Napilihau, which I had put in $100,000 last year to at
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least put some asphalt over the top at the, I guess it was the end of the lower road with the
intersection beginning at Napilihau going out towards Kapalua. That didn't get done.
The Shaw Street sidewalk project, I guess, the money's been shifted over to that. We
heard testimony from local residents that they want to have the Puukolii Road repaved.
There are currently negotiations going on with that, because there's a dispute about, or I
guess some difference of opinion as to who owns it.
Mr. Chair, I would ask just on general principal that additional money be put in, and we
try to come up with some type of priority, with the projects that I have itemized at least
be considered for some type of funding at some level, because right now our, none of it
seems to be moving forward. So, I'd ask for 700,000 to be added to the 300,00 that is in
for District Road Resurfacing.
CHAIR KANE: Members, you hear the request 700,000 to be added for a total of a $1 million
figure as a Working number, for West Maui Community Plan District. That is on the
table. Members, any objections? Okay. Members, hearing no objections the Chair will
take that as consensus, and the working number for the West Maui Community Plan
District will be $1 million. Ms. Johnson, would you like to provide the specifics as far as
to direct these monies to specific areas?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I, I will work with Staff.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Thank you. If you can please do that, and, Members, we'll try to
have that available for tomorrow's final discussion. Any additional requests in this area?
Thank you. Lanai Community Plan District, we have the Fraser Avenue resurfacing of
200,000 added to the District Road Resurfacing of 300 for a working number of 500,000.
Members, I believe we had some previous discussion, and the Chair will bring it up at
this time that certain districts may, it may be better that we do have a, a rotation and
allow every other year funding in certain areas, and this may be one of them. For the
Island of Molokai maybe, for Lanai, and perhaps Hana and the outlying districts for cost
savings of equipment transport. And in this case, this year, Lanai has its needs, but just
keep that in front of your mind for our next time around, Members, next budget that is.
Mr. Hokama, any additional comments in your district?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, all I would say is, because for Lanai, you know, it might
make better sense for us to budget on, on a two year cycle, so that we can maximize the
ability of, of hot asphalt to resurface our roads. The reason I'm asking this is because
when the Council supported the Lanai Avenue resurfacing, because of the, how should,
can I say this tactfully, the quality that Lanai Water Company upon trenching for their
waterlines after our newly paved road, resurfaced road went it, agreed to share in the cost
of the new resurfacing done last year. They have also done the same things on our, it was
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on Fraser Avenue and Ilima Avenue that you heard in testimony, Members, upon our
visit to Lanai.
But on Fraser Avenue, which is the other parallel lateral that is one of our major
components, I will be showing our good faith efforts with this funding proposal that I
will, again, have the company Castle & Cooke Lanai, put up their fair share to be able to
expand the linear length of, of the resurfacing projects. So, if the Members would
consider supporting this I would be much appreciative. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, 500,000 working number. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We're moving forward. Molokai Community Plan District. We have
300,000 for road resurfacing. This is our working number, Members. Any adjustments?
Okay. Moving to Page 23, under Highway Fund Countywide. There been have been
additions, and we've made adjustments for proviso considerations. We have a working
number, at this point of $2.9 million. Adjustments?
Members, this may be an area where if we are getting a little spend happy we may need
to make some adjustments. So, just so you know we have considerable additions so far.
We haven't had any other than the 775 from Imi Kala. Okay. I'll recognize Mr. Molina
followed by Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, thank you, Mr. Chairman. A little monetary request on
this one. I know you told us not to thank you, but I appreciate all these additions you're
making especially when it comes to the Countywide Road Safety Improvements of
500,000. I think it benefits all of us.
I'd like to ask for a proviso to be included for traffic calming devices near Paia School
and speed table signage and striping along Kealaloa Avenue in Makawao. The traffic
calming devices were estimated to cost about $5,000 for Paia School and 20,000 for
Kealaloa Avenue.
CHAIR KANE: And this would be under, I'm sorry, Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Under Countywide Road Safety Improvements, Line 1030.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have a total of, Mr. Molina, 30,000?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 25,000.
CHAIR KANE: Excuse me, $25,000, and you can work with Staff for the proviso if the body
has no objections for that consideration.

- 198-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Molina, we'll have you work with Staff. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson followed by Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and I just wanted to remind individuals that some of the
money that could, this could help support this area too is our Traffic Impact Fees,
specifically South Maui, West Maui District, but also the deferral agreements. We are
working on trying to collect the close to $1 million in those deferral agreements for the
monies that are owed in West Maui.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yeah, Mr. Chairman, I was going to suggest that, or for
consideration, that on the Countywide road resurfacing that we delete that amount. It
was, because we have added resurfacing roads in almost every district as, as add-ons. So,
I think, well, maybe not delete them totally. I would like to move like 100,000 into Road
Safety Improvements and delete the four, delete 400,000.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Ms. Tavares' request to delete Line No.1 of 1027 of 500, and
take 100,000 and add it to Countywide Road Safety Improvements for a new working
number there of 600,000. The adjustment would be now for a net appropriation on Line
1033 of $2.5 million.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Members, we have consensus. We're working with 2.5 in this area. Thank
you, Ms. Tavares. Okay. Any further requests under Countywide? Okay. Bikeway
Fund Countywide 300,000. Consensus?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Bond Fund, Members. Here we go with Bond. Hana Community Plan
District, Waiohonu Bridge Rehabilitation. I believe there's significant Federal dollars
attached to this request as matching. Okay. Moving down, Paia-Haiku Community Plan
District, Wellness Center, Kaunoa Senior Center, we had moved down to General Fund
Cash 800,000 of that project. Working number, consensus?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Wailuku-Kahului Community Plan District drainage, improvements at Papa
Avenue and Palama, and Palama Drive. We've made that adjustment as well as the,
excuse me, we have made adjustments there to zero, and we've moved it to Highway
Funds with consent from this body.
Next Item, Members, your Chair's recommendation with the support of several Members
in your initial request for consideration was to delete the Wailuku Municipal Parking Lot
Redevelopment. Working number is zero. Consensus? Moving ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chair.
CHAIR KANE: I'm sorry.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman, I just need to say I can support this. I think we are
able with the, I guess, new direction that the agency's willing to go that I'm looking
forward to consideration and proposals that we may be able to do this project with no
County dollars involved. And, and yet adjust the needs of the County as well as the, the
relief element area. So, I'm quite pleased that shortly we may be able to entertain some
wonderful proposals before this body.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Parks and Rec., Waiehu Golf Course Maintenance Building. We
have removed the Wells Park Improvements noting that State funds were depended, and
the State has not moved forward any request for this item. Therefore, the working
number, will be matching the Waiehu Golf Course Maintenance Building as proposed by
the Mayor of 3 million, 50 thousand. Concurrence?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We're moving forward. Sanitation, Central Maui Landfill Phase I and II
closure, and the increase result of reduction in FY '05, supplemental budget amendment,
and the Central Maui Landfill Phase IV "B" of $3 million. The working number moved
forward 8,525,000. Adjustments?
Page 24, Members, West Maui Community Plan District, Lahaina Wastewater
Reclamation Facility, Modification Stage "A." The Chair concurs with the Mayor's
proposal of $1 million. Adjustments?
Moving to Molokai, Government Facilities. There has been a proposal to delete the new
Molokai Baseyard to zero. Adjustments? Under Molokai Road, Kaunakakai Drainage
Improvement System, recommendation is to add $500,000, and this is to help with
Kaunakakai Drainage Master Plan progression. So, we're moving forward with
continued work with the Kaunakakai Drainage Improvement System. Working number,
concurrence, Members?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. And thank you, Mr. Mateo. Sanitation, 325,000. The Chair
concurs with the Mayor's proposal of 325, 325,000. Concurrence?
Moving forward Bond Fund Countywide. Members, we've got Hardened Shelters
210,000. The IT System Phase III of 2 million. We had acted earlier on Item 1100, our
One Main Plaza Acquisition, a deletion. No. 4, ADA Improvement for various County
facilities 400,000. We also have the Old Wailuku Post Office Acquisition and Design for
Kalana 0 Maui's Wells Annex and Kalana 0 Maui Kaohu Annex, new project, 3 million.
The working number, here $5.61 million. Adjustments?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Being that we have not gone
through CIP yet, I know you want to keep on rolling, but could you just explain why you
put in this 3 million is, how is it, how is it breaking down?
CHAIR KANE: Okay. The numbers that we're working with for Old Wailuku Post Office
Acquisition is an approximate number of 2 million. And the design for the Wells and
Kaohu Annex areas is each 500,000 to start for a total of $3 million.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Because there's still no plans that I've seen for this either, I
just, I can't, I, I really, you know, at this point in time, you know, I, I would like to see
something. I mean for the same reasons that people didn't want to move forward with,
you know, One Main Plaza, I, I can't spend money on something that I don't even know
what it's going to look like. So, I'm not going to support this at this time.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, there's been a proposal to delete $3 million, Ms. Johnson?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Object.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. To remove $3 million. Members, any discussion in this area? The
Chair will ask, is there support for Member Johnson's deletion, say aye please.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Aye.
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CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Johnson, we're going to move it forward. Okay. Any
adjustments, Members, 5,610,000? Moving down Road Improvements. We had made a
dele ... , excuse me, we had moved this item to Highway Funds with your consent. Under
Sewer, the Chair has concurred with the Mayor's recommendation of $2.7 million.
Concurrence or consents from you, Members?
We're moving under Other, add Equipment Bond for the following. Members, the Chair
asked for your consideration in the adjustments that, I believe, Member Tavares pointed
out earlier in the golf equipment area. Member Tavares, I believe that was our
discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Yes.
CHAIR KANE: Regarding their equipment, the mower, the three carts, and the -COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Top dresser.
CHAIR KANE: --top dresser, thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And one more thing, the dump truck.
CHAIR KANE: The dump truck. So, Members, I believe there was an adjustment on Line 1118
that will increase from 2.744 million to 3.1445 million. Working number, $3,144,500.
And it would include the previous discussion that we had on previous items in our, from
earlier today. So, that would be the new working number. Questions, before I move
forward? Mr. Hokama followed by Mr. Mateo.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, happy to support your proposal including Ms. Tavares'
request. Until such time, as if it doesn't make the, the standards of our bonding
requirements under equipment, I'm happy to support the addition of the golf course
requirements.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you. Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Chairman, I'd like to ask the body's consideration for addition
to the Equipment Bond of 150,000 for replacement of a rear loader refuse truck for the
Island of Molokai. The existing rear loader on Molokai, Chairman, is a 1986 model. It's
19 years old, and its back-up is 20 years old. And because of the downtime and its
increase repairs that has been ongoing, I, I felt it important enough to ask for the
replacement at this point.
And, and, just for information purposes, Chairman, the reason we waited so long was
because of Molokai's waiting for automation. And it has been pushed back to a point
right now where we're going to have wait an additional two more years for us to become
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automated. And I don't think these trucks on Molokai can wait another two years.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, and the only question I would have, Members, is with
this body's movement to continue the support of automation, I guess the question would
come out, and I won't, I won't even, I'll just come right out and ask it. Would it be
prudent for us to buy a brand new rear loader if our intention is to provide automation, or
is it possible that some ... (change tape). . . and I know it sounds like, again, another
hand me down, but if we're continuing our trek towards automation that we could take
one of the newer better condition trucks out of the fleet and, again, move it to the places
that are towards the end of the transition of automation.
So, I, I just ask that question, because that's at the top of my head, Mr. Mateo.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. Chairman, thank you very much. We're used to it. Our,
our, our new vehicles is usually Maui's old ones.
CHAIR KANE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: We're used to it. I would have really preferred automation to
have occurred, because we're the smaller of the districts yet to be serviced by the
automation program, and I think that would have been, for us, the, the quick fix at this
point. And even at that with one truck coming over to service the, the few number of
accounts that we have we still would be in need of a backup. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, we have the request before us for $150,000 for a rear loader
for the Island of Molokai to be added, included in the Equipment Bond. Members, do we
have consensus? Excuse me, any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, the new working number will be 3,294,500. Again 32,
$3,294,500. Okay. We have a new working number. Any additional requests for the
Equipment Bond before we move on? Okay. We're moving, Page 25, Lapsed Bond
Proceeds ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Excuse me, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Is the Equipment Bond where we were going to put the pool
heaters?
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Oh, yeah.

203-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

CHAIR KANE: It's in there.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, it is.
CHAIR KANE: The, the adjusted number includes that.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Staff, for staying on top of that one. Okay. Members, we're on
Page 25, Lapsed Bond Proceeds Government Facilities, Wailuku Police Station air
conditioning chiller tower, move to General Fund Cash. I have a note from Staff, and it
states change recommendation to leave money in Lapsed Bond Funds and will change
Line 891.
So, Members, if you can for a moment work with me. If you go back to Page 19 of 29,
on Line 891, we made an adjustment and put a number of 755 there.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Uh-huh.
CHAIR KANE: The Chair's recommendation is to readjust it back to 505, which would readjust
our working number, on 893. And that in this area on Page 25, that we would reinstate
with concurrence the Mayor's proposal. Concurrence, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Parks and Recreation, Boys and Girls Club of Maui Central Club
House, the Chair is moving forward the number $2.9 million for a working number on
Line 1130.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Question.
CHAIR KANE: Mr. Hokama.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, as we know this project continues to grow, you know,
originally this was at one point something, and the project grew to 2 million last year,
now we're at 2.9 million. My question is, was a bond ever floated for this whereby a
lapsed bond can be considered for funding?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Thank you, Mr. Chair. I, I'm not certain that we know that, whether that bond
was floated, but we do have Lapsed Bond Funds that are available. And so, it can be
used for this. The Budget Director, we, we requested a list, right now we only have by
project number, but we don't know the name of where the funds were, where they came
from.
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VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Does that mean Finance doesn't know where the money went?
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: I think what it means is that the, the bond that carne off of the system is by
project number, and that the actual description of that project would have to be looked up
and, and added to the list, and we haven't received that at this point. Per... , perhaps the
Budget Director can provide more clarification.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Morrison, are you able to provide additional comment at this time?
MS. MORRISON: I believe the Corporation Counsel does have the list that Ms. Koller is
referencing. I never received that list either, but apparently it was used to draft the
ordinance. So, somewhere in her files she has it.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Fujita Villarosa, if you are prepared to respond at this time, we will
recognize you. If not, we can yield, and we can move on, but just come back. But, we,
we, ask that you do provide a response before we end the evening. Mr. Hokama, any
further comments in this area?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: No, Chairman, because I would just like that to be verified, because
if Finance cannot tell us the project, it's hard for me to recognize monies that may not
really be there.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Okay. Members, why don't we go ahead and move forward, and
I'll await Ms. Fujita Villarosa's signal to respond. Under Parks and Recreation that
number is 2.9. We will defer and come back to that.
Sanitation, Central Maui Sanitary Landfill, Stormwater Discharge System. The Chair
concurs with the Mayor's proposal of 275, $275,000 Working number Moving down
under Lapsed Bond Proceeds, Lanai Community Plan District, Lanai Landfill Stormwater
and Perimeter Fence Improvements, $150,000. The Chair concurs with the Mayor.
Park Assessment Funds, Makawao-Pukalani-Kula Community Plan District, Pukalani
Park jogging path, Phase II. I think this is the area, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: And Mr. Chair-CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: --you can just skip over the whole area Park Assessment.
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CHAIR KANE: Thank you. That's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: I'd be happy to work with Staff on that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the request. The Chair will ask you to go to
Page 26.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Yes, Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Before we get that far, is it, I do, I mean are we agreeing that
the Park Assessment Fund should be preserved for buying park lands and doing new
things in parks and not repairing existing things?
CHAIR KANE: Members ...
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I support that.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah, and I think Member Tavares' question previous was that the intent of the
fund has never changed as far as language since its inception in 1974, I think, it was
started and, unfortunately, the use has changed. So, Members, we, I guess, reiterate our
support for the original intent. Ms. Tavares.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Mr. Chair, the original one was Ordinance No. 789 in 1974.
The purpose stated shall dedicate and provide in perpetuity lands for parks or playground,
for, for parks or playground purposes. The area of such lands shall be the number of lots,
etcetera. It's since 1974.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, support for that ...
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER TAVARES: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: With that, Members, I'll ask you to forward to Line 1172.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I'm sorry to stop the roll here.
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CHAIR KANE: No, you're fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: I just want to make certain that, that we're not going to be
deleting any of these amounts, we're just redirecting where they're coming from?
CHAIR KANE: We're asking Member Tavares to work with Staff to, to try and accurately
assess what belongs in Park Assessment, and what doesn't belong and make the
necessary adjustments.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Johnson, additional comments?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, I just wanted to ask Staff if we could include, because
the bids were open on Napili Park, Phase liB, and we're $45,000 short. I had made a, it
was Item No. 13, on my request list to take 45,000 and add it to the CIP for the West
Maui District.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Ms. Koller.
MS. KOLLER: Just for clarification, this Napili Park Phase liB, is this a new portion of the
park?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It's a new portion of the park. It's not, it's the, it's an
ongoing phasing in of the southern portion of the park. I think it's the ball fields and
tennis courts. Never been built before.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. We have made note of that, Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, also, I'll try to get the figures for this area, also
tomorrow, for the improvements to the Lahaina Civic Center. I don't know if it's, if we
have enough money in Park Assessment. I want to see what it would take to retrofit.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, Chair directs your attention to Wastewater Funds,
Wailuku-Kahului District, Line 1172. And all through this page, Members, the Chair has
concurred with the Mayor's numbers for Wailuku, West Maui, Countywide.
Concurrence, Members?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: Support.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Moving to the next component, State Revolving Loan Fund - Hana.
Members, there is a request, and the Chair has concurred with the Mayor's numbers.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR KANE:
Hamoa-Koali Waterline, hydrant 42 to standpipe 23; Hana Source
Development, Hamoa Well 2; the Nahiku Water Source Improvements, 570,000. Ms.
Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. This is a tough one, because
everybody wants water, but we had testimony from a Han a resident that there's a Master
Water Plan that's been developed for Hana that has had no community input. There's
eight components to this Water Plan that had been segmented. They should be, they
should be dealt with in one environmental assessment not segmented and, and addressed
piecemeal. And I know for a fact that, because I was called to a meeting, that there are
developers waiting for this water.
The, the Water Use and Development Plan that we have, Mr. Chairman, which we need
to follow when we develop water systems says that there's no change proposed for Hana.
Granted it's, it's a plan since 1992, which is why we need to update this plan, because we
shouldn't be, we shouldn't be planning the development of water sources in a piecemeal
manner. It should be done with full community input, it should be done as an overall
project not segmented in a manner that, number one, cuts out the public and, number two,
diminishes what, what impacts there may be from the overall system.
The reason this concerns me is because this water would allow development in Hana that
currently is not possible. I know we've been told that the storage tank and the, the water
line increase is for fire, fire safety, but I'm not convinced that that's what it is. And I
have a real concern about this, Mr. Chairman, because we have lands in Hana that will
be, will be developed when water is available without any public review or input. We
have not gone forward with a new rule zoning ordinance that the Community Plan for
Hana calls for that would allow parcels to be subdivided into larger pieces rather than
what our current rural zoning allows for which is half-acre.
And so, I have great reservations about this. And I know Member Carroll's not going to
like this, but I think that we need to pay attention to what the Community Plan says and,
and we need to go about developing our water sources in a manner that is consistent with
the State Water Code, the State Water Code, which includes our State Water Plan, which
is the overriding umbrella over the Water Use and Development Plans throughout all the
counties, requires that any change in a, in a Water Use and Development Plan must have
a public hearing. This has not happened.
So, for this reason I'm very hesitant to support this, Mr. Chairman. I would hope that
maybe we could put a proviso in that would allow for public hearings and public input
from the community of Hana before this project goes forward.

208-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

April 26, 2005

CHAIR KANE: Ms. Anderson, and before I recognize Mr. Carroll, if I can request you to be
specific. Is this for, No. 1, or 2, or 3, or all?
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, I'm sorry, Mr. Chairman. It would be for the, the 2.2
million that would be for 1 and 2.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. And we have ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But that excludes the Nahiku Water Source Development.
It's because these two, these first two projects are only one portion of a major Master
Water Plan for Hana. Now, it may be possible that this was discussed in the Water
Resource Committee over the last several years, and I missed it, but I don't think so.
CHAIR KANE: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And I think this is big enough that we need to have, we
need to have discussion. We, we can't just allow the Water Department to go off and do
what they want to do, and make deals with the developers to get these things done. I'm
upset about this, Mr. Chair, because I do know that a developer has requested this and
wants to be first on, in line, and trade for the land for the storage tank. And I have a big
problem with that.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Mr. Carroll.
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Thank you, Chair. First of all, I was at that meeting with
Ms. Anderson. And what she's talking about the developer what they wanted, want to do
is not on this proposal over here. That is for something in the future, and it is not what is
before us today. What is before us today, the Hamoa-Koali Waterline is from Hamoa
going up towards Drummond Hill.
This line we have been trying to get inside for the past 20 or 30 years. I have people,
classmates and others that have not been able to get water meters all these years. I have
one man that has had property over there since before the war and has not been able to
get a meter.
This is an upgrade to a substandard existing line that goes in and out of the ground. This
is not a new line. This is not a new thing. This is not a new project. This is upgrading
what we have, what we are responsible for. What Ms. Anderson is talking about cannot
take place unless this goes in. That should be addressed at that time. This is something
that we need in Han a now.
There's a lot of distrust because of Hana Ranch. A lot of the community members feel
that they're not being responsive enough to the community. But this in no way stops
Hana Ranch, prevents them from doing anything that they would want to do, develop
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over there. As a matter of fact, this would not make any difference at all for their
properties. It is for our people.
The Hamoa Well No. 2, is a redundant well, and that is, that is rather obvious. How
many people drive around without a spare tire? That is a well so we have the
redundancy. They don't pump two wells one time. It does not increase capacity. It is if
one well has a problem you shift to the other well and usually go back and forth to make
sure that both wells are operating all the time.
I know there has been discussion, there's been a lot of concern, most of it was not with
this line, it was the line going to Hana and not the Koali side. I would say, oh and, oh,
incidentally the Nahiku Water Source Improvements, I'm glad there's no objections to
that. That's another substandard system that we've been trying to upgrade for years.
I would like to say that this is another thing that if this doesn't go inside no developer is
going to suffer because of this. It's going to be my people in Hana. It's going to be our
people. No developer is going to lose any sleep if this line doesn't go in. But people
have been waiting umpteen years, they're the ones that are going to suffer. And it's their
children and my grandchildren that are going to suffer.
Can anybody recall Sam Fevella coming over here? Well, he could come back now and
probably comment on this. His wife can't because she died. And this is the same thing.
Always an excuse not to upgrade our system. If they had upgraded that system in Kula
instead of adding new systems way back, and there were arguments over there at that
time that I remember, oh, if we do that, you know, we're going to lose our community.
Well, the poor people still don't have meters and the rich people have water. I don't want
to see this happen in Hana.
This project, over here, is for Hana people. When we had an active comm. . .,
community association this came up many times before the community, and we fought
for it, and we never got it. Finally, finally, we have funding for this, and I would urge all
the Members to approve and leave this as it is. It was a long time in coming, and I, and
the people that are going to benefit from this certainly don't want to see it any longer.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Members, we have a request to remove by Member Anderson, and
Member Carroll's request is to keep it there. The Chair will recognize Ms. Anderson's
request to remove. Are there are any additional, Member Johnson and Member
Pontanilla. And I would ask that we keep our comments brief please. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, I just have a question, and this is, I know we have
gone through this before, but is the reason that this project is moving forward because the
Federal funds will lapse if we don't put this forward now? Is that the reason why this is
still continuing to move forward, because there's ties to Federal funds, or is this not the
case?
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CHAIR KANE: Ms., Ms. Johnson, this is under State Revolving Loan Fund.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR KANE: And on our page for both items Hamoa-Koali as well as the Hana Source
Development Hamoa Well, both are marked with "X's" under Other, and we're under
State Revolving Loan Funds, so that's where the money is coming from for these two
items, not Federal Funds.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, it's not coming from Federal-CHAIR KANE: No.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --but are those funds if they're not allocated for this specific
project, will we not have an opportunity to get them later on?
CHAIR KANE: The Chair would see if Ms. Morrison has any comment in this area. Ms.
Morrison.
MS. MORRISON: Thank you, Mr. Chair, only general comments. I, I don't know the specific
answer on this specific project. The State Revolving Loan Funds are applied for by the
County by project. And if funds are available and if they're eligible, it's, it's allocated by
the State on a first-come, first-serve basis. When they run out, they stop giving out the,
the funds. So, it kind of depends on if you're in line at the time the funds become
available, and you're ready to go, your possibility of getting the funds is great.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, and I share the concerns that were raised by Ms.
Anderson, because if, and this is not the first time, and he is, Mr. Blumer-Buell is not the
only person that has brought this up.
So, I, I, am uncomfortable when the community is not fully supportive of a project and
there's still issues that have not been addressed, and I think, I, I can only just look at the
Water Department, because I believe this was a project that they were supposed to meet
with the community on and get these issues settled. Obviously, they're not settled. So, I,
I really have difficulty supporting something when it's up in the air with the community.
Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Mr. Pontanilla.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair. Just a question for Member Carroll in
regards to Item No. 1, Hamoa-Koali Waterline. I remember way back when I used to
travel that Hana Highway towards Kipahulu, Kaupo area. There are certain segments off
the existing water line is above ground. Is this still true, Bob?
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COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yes, it is. It goes in and out, because the water line is in
such bad shape they've had to add driscol line here and here.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Driscol line?
COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: I, I'm not sure, plastic line, plastic line.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine.
\COUNCILMEMBER CARROLL: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER PONTANILLA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, any further questions or comments? Members, there is a request by
Ms. Anderson. Members, is there support for Ms. Anderson's request for deletion of
both Items Nos. 1 and 2? Okay. Ms. Anderson, we have two supporting you including
yourself and seven not concurring with your position.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: That's fine, Mr. Chairman. I just wanted to bring this up.
CHAIR KANE: No, that's fine.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and I, I'm, I'm sorry if, if I have this wrong, but I'm,
I'm pretty sure this was a line that was discussed at the meeting in the Mayor's Office,
and I'm going to double check on that. And I will certainly be bringing up this Hana
Master Water Plan in the Water Resource Committee for discussion to allow the public a
chance to become informed about this and maybe give some input.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, I certainly don't want to tie up a project that would be
benefiting the residents of Hana, but I also don't want to open up development in Hana
that's going to get no review from the public and from the community. Thank you for the
time.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you, Ms. Anderson. Members, we have a working number of 2,770,000.
Any further requests for adjustments? Hearing none, Members, we're moving to Water
Supply Wailuku-Kahului, State Revolving Loan Fund. One million, North Waihee
Source Project. The Chair's recommendation is concurrence with the Mayor's.
Adjustments?
West Maui Community Plan District Sewer, Lahaina Wastewater Pump Station, No. 4
Modifications, 1.7 million. The Chair has concurrence with the Mayor for $1.7 million.
Adjustments?
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Page 27, Members, Water Supply Honokohau Source Replacement as well as Lahaina
Water Treatment Plant Improvements. Total number 1,050,000. Chair has concurred
with the Mayor's request. Adjustments?
Continuing Molokai Kaunakakai Well 2 Land Acquisition 1.3 million.
Ualapue Well Replacement, 150. Chair concurs. Adjustments?

Second Item,

Paia-Haiku Community Plan, 3.1 million with items listed Kokomo Tank Replacement,
Lower Paia Tank Replacement Land Acquisition. Chair concurs with the request.
Adjustments?
Moving to Makawao-Pukalani-Haiku, excuse me, Pukalani-Kula, Water Supply Funds
restricted as was the previous Item, Members, sorry; Lower Kula Piiholo Reservoir,
Olinda Treatment Plant Improvements. We have a working number of 670,000. The
Chair concurs with the Mayor's proposal. Adjustments?
Moving next to Wailuku-Kahului Restricted Funds, lao Source Development Projects,
North Waihee Source Development Projects, Wailuku Waterline Improvements.
working number $4.788 million. Chair has concurred with those numbers. Adjustments?
Moving on to the Kihei-Makena Community Plan District Restricted Funds for Water
Supply, Kihei-Makena Waterline Replacement, $325,000. The Chair's recommendations
concur with the Mayor's. Adjustments?
Countywide Restricted Land Appraisal and Acquisition, $100,000.
Adjustments?

Chair concurs.

Members, Page 28. Unrestricted Water Supply Funds, Paia-Haiku Community Plan.
Okay. Members, there has been a proposal to delete the project and the note that the
project rename the Ulumalu, Ulumalu Waterline by Department of Water Supply. Any
additional comment, Ms. Koller, on this particular item for the request for deletion or Ms.
Morrison? Either one of you.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, sorry.
CHAIR KANE: No, Mr. Hokama, question?
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Chairman, is your following recommendations in the Unrestricted
Area due to the difference in the carry over savings of the one point so many million
dollars?
CHAIR KANE: 1.935.
VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: Thank you.
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CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Ms. Koller, if you can provide general comment in this area under
Unrestricted Funds.
MS. KOLLER: Yes, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR KANE: Since we have a note, Mr. Hokama, thank you for noting Water Supply
Unrestricted Revised.
MS. KOLLER: Yeah, this whole area was revised based upon the, I think it's the third or fourth
revised priority list. And it does delete 1 million nine hundred ... (change tape) . .. the
adjustments were made by, off of the list from the Water Department, and as I had noted,
I believe, earlier today, since then I noted they didn't make some changes in some of their
titles of projects. Those have not been changed, and in talking with the Budget Director
it was felt that we would leave the names as they originally were.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, that would take care of all of Page 28 and 29, the adjustments
to accommodate the $1.935 million adjustment by the Administration. Okay. Members,
we're there. Ms. Johnson.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I had one final thing, and I guess it's because I didn't know
where to put it. That was my pie in the sky CIP No. 19, which was for the 4.5 million for
the purchase of the Olowalu parcels, and that would be for the Puamana to Maalaea
corridor that we were continuing to work on for the land acquisition.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you have the request forward.
Comments?

Objections?

Questions?

VICE-CHAIR HOKAMA: I think we're going to be 10 million off, Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Yeah. Members, and being consistent, this, your request, Ms. Johnson, was
under CIP ...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It was under No. 19, and it was under CIP. And how we
intended to pay for it was from the Open Space Fund and by keeping the timeshare tax
rate at the higher level, and also to fund poss ... , possibly from traffic impact fees that
were owed to the County by the projects, so it had been approved for West Maui, but the
fees not yet collected, because no bill was enacted. So, that's how we intended to pay for
it.
CHAIR KANE: Okay, and, Member Johnson, if the Chair may ask is there some indication
from the Administration for negotiations to purchase these Olowalu parcels?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: It was a request, I believe, that was made by Planning to
continue on, and because of the One Main Plaza purchase, this particular item was one of
the ones that fell by the wayside, because of, I guess, being over extended on Bond. So,
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that's my understanding. I know that Planning wants to move ahead, and we're probably
have, going to have to do eminent domain.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. So, does this tie into the Planning Department's request to consider
further work for the Pali to Puamana Parkway?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, this would be the segment that would be to the north of
the Ukumehame. There is some State land, but the Planning Director stated that because
these particular parcels were critical in terms of being able to move forward with some of
the components of that corridor that he believed that in order to implement this is really
critical. And, I mean, obviously we can't fund everything, but I think it's really
important. So, that's why I put it in.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, you've heard the request to have this incorporated. The
Chair, since I'm not hearing anybody say anything, the Chair will be the first to say that
the Chair will object to this request. I believe it is premature. That we have not establish
any level of, of indication from the Administration on their pursuit to discuss purchasing
of these parcels nor have we heard from any of the landowners in this area of their intent
to sell these parcels. So, again, that's just the Chair's comments. Are there any
additional comments from Members? Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, I also support your recommendation being that we
don't have a lot of feedback, I guess from the Administration on this just for that purpose.
Although Member Johnson's intent is well intended with this matter, but I think just
based on the fact that we don't have any type of commitment or additional information
on this from the Administration standpoint, I think this is the appropriate route to go,
Chairman.
CHAIR KANE: Thank you. Ms. Johnson, Chair will recognize you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and, you know, I, I guess because of the fact that
I'm more familiar with this particular area than other people, I'm aware of which parcels
they are. I would be happy to provide that information to the other Members so that they
can have an idea. You have basically a seller, who at this point in time, just simply wants
to develop the property and preclude any future plans for the public to have access to
these areas. Everything's going to be through private sales.
So, in an effort to move forward the Planning Director and myself had, you know, at least
tried to look at some options. And he did make a request that did not make it through to
the Administration and that's why you did not hear it. But I basically believe that, you
know, it has merit. So, I'll try and get that information for the Members though.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Any further questions or comments, Members? Ms. Johnson, would it
be more accurate to depict this request as 4.5 million for condemnation?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, that's what I said it was for eminent domain.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Because I see you wrote here purchase that's why not condemnation in,
in your comments.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, yeah, I, I know. It's for purchase, but I guess I didn't
denote the method.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, so we will defer this out and, Member Johnson, you have
opportunity again tomorrow to bring this forward.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I will. Thank you.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, why don't we go ahead and call a very brief recess, and we'll
see if we can get some numbers to show you where we're at and that way we know what
we face tomorrow, our final day for the work of this Committee. Okay. Members, the
time now is a little after 11. We'll recess. Staff, how much time do you need? Let me
know.
MS. KOLLER: Mr. Chair, we can give you a general number, but it does not take the impact
between funds, and that's going to take more analysis for us. So, I mean, we can tell you
where we are just, we are roughly a million three additional revenue, but I can tell you
right now with the way the funds were going around, we're prob ... , we're probably out
of balance.
CHAIR KANE: Okay. Members, Staff is not willing to give us a time, and so instead of sitting
here not knowing how much time we're going to wait, the Chair prefers to provide you
with a surprise tomorrow morning at 9:00 o'clock. Are there any objections to that? And
that way we can close out our evening, and we can start, I was going to say fresh, but I'm
going to say we'll start tomorrow. But I'll recess now for five-minutes, Members, okay,
and then we'll come back at 11:10. So, five-minute recess. Okay, and we'll reconvene at
11:10. We are in recess ... . (gavel) ...

RECESS:

11:04p.m.

RECONVENE:

11:13 p.m.

CHAIR KANE: ... (gavel) . .. Thank you, Members, for that very brief recess. Members, it is
the Chair's intention, first, before I ask you for your consideration of adjourning for this
evening that as, as you've noticed, we have not touched upon a portion of the rates and
fees. Although we have dealt with the sewer as well as water in the proposal, and
Members have provided your initial consensus there, if you recall, Member Tavares is
going to provide us with some proposals for the Golf Fund, and the Chair's intention was
tomorrow morning when we get through that to also take up the other issues of, of rates
and fees as proposed by the Mayor in his proposed Budget.
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So, that is the Chair's intent to take that up tomorrow morning. And then with that we'll
also get some live numbers to work with for tomorrow, and take us along our continued
adventure of this, of this effort.
And so, Members, with that the Chair recognizes the time, and I want to take this
opportunity at the end of the evening to thank you for your diligence. Get a good night
sleep. And we have a very solid day of work tomorrow. So, with that, Members, before
I close it, any questions or comments before we adjourn for the evening?

COUNCIL MEMBERS VOICED NO OBJECTIONS.
ACTION:

DEFER pending further discussion.

CHAIR KANE: Hearing none, thank you very much, Members. This meeting for the 26th of
April, 2005 is adjourned ... (gavel) . ..

ADJOURN:

11:14 p.m.

Transcribed by: Jessica Cahill
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